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PART |

Item 1. Business

Frontier Communications Corporation {Frontier) is a provider of communications senvices in the Uniled Stales, with approximately
5.4 miflion customers, 4.3 million broadband subscribers and 28,300 employees, operating in 29 states. In recent years, Frontier
has completed multiple acquisitions. On Apnl 1, 2016, we acquired the wireline operations of Verizan Communications, Inc. in
California, Texas and Florida for a purchase price of $10,540 millien in cash and assumed debt.

Frontier's Service Territories

. ‘Lagaty Frontier

CTF Acquisition
CAFL.TX

How We Serve Our Customaers
We conduct business with both residential and business custamers,

Residential. We provide broadband, video, voice and other services and producls to our residentiai custemers. We deliver 1hese
services generally over a combination of fiber and copper based networks.

Business (commercial customers and wholesale carmier customers).

Commercial. Ve sometimes refer to our commercial customers as SME (smail business, medium business and Jarger enterprise)
customars. We provide a broad range of services to our SME customers, including broadband service, Ethernet service,
traditicnal circuit-based services (TDM services) and voice services., We also sell cusiomer premise equipment (CPE) and provide
CPE-related maintenance services.

- Larger Enterprise: Fortune 1000, mult-location companigs, large government entities, large educational institutions, and
non-profits.

- Medium Business: Single or multidocation companies and mid-gized govemment enfities, educational institutions and
non-profits.

- Small Business: Mostly single-location businesses, the smaller of which have purchase patterns similar to residentiat
customers.

hitps:/fiwww sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/20520/00000205201 7000003/tr-20161231x10k.htm

ey




2042097

2016 Form 10K

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Carrier. Carrier customers are often referred to as wholesale customers and include national operators such as AT&T and
Verizen, Local Exchange Companies that need {o access locations within Frontier's footprint, Competitive Local Exchange
Companies (CLECs) and wireless carriers. Carmier customers buy both voice and data services.

Services and Products

We offer a broad porifolio of communications services for residential and business customers. These services are offered on
either a standalene basis or in a bundled package, depending on each customear's needs,

Data and Infernet services. We offer a comprehensive ranga of hroadhand services, The principal residential service we provide is broadband inlemnel service,
Comtnerclal services include Ethemel, Dedicaled Intemef, Mulliprotocol Label Switching (MPLS), Time Division Multiplexing (TDM} data transport services and
optical transport services. These sarvices are all supporled by 24/7 technfcsl support and an advanced hehvork operalions cenler. We also offer wireless
broadband services (using unlicensed spectrum} fn select markets ulifizing nehvorks thaf we own or operate, In addition, we offer our Frontier Secure sulte of
produsts, including compuier security, cloud backup and sharing, identity protection and equiprent insurance.

Video services. VWe offer video services under the Vantage brand to certain of our cusiomers in portions of Connecticut, South
Carclina, Minnesota, and lllincis and under the FiOS® brand in portiens of California, Texas, Flofida, Indiana, Oregon and
Waghington, We also offer satellite TV video service to our custemers under an agency relatienship with DISH® in alt of our
markets.

Voice services, We provide voice services, including data-based VolIP, long distance and voice messaging services, to residential
and business customers in our markets. These services are billed monthly in advance. Long distance service fo and from poinis
outside our operating properties are provided by interconnection with the facilities of interexchange carriers. Our long distance
sarvices are billed in advance for unlimited use service and on a per minute-of-use basis for a fixed number of minutes.

We also offer packages of communications services. These packages permit customers to bundle their products and services,
including voice service, video and Internet services, and other product offerings.

Aeccess services. We offer a range of access services. Our switched access services allow other carriers to use our faciiities to
ariginate and terminate their local-and long distance voice fraffie. These services are generally offered on a2 manth-te-moenth basis
and the service is billed primarily on.a minutes-of-use basis. Switched access charges have been based on access rates filed with
the FCC for interstate services and with the respeclive staie regulatory agency for intrastate services. Intercarrier compensation
reform has impacied the rates that we may charge for these services, See, “Regulatory Envirenment” below., Other access
services we offer, such as special access, allow other carriers to have a continuous, nen-switched connection to customers within
aur service territory,

Customer Premise Equipment. \We offer our SME customers thind-party communications equipment tailored fo their specific
business needs by parinering with Mitel, Airbus, Avaya, Hewlett Packard, Adiran -and other equipment manufacturers. CPE Is
typlically sofd in conjunction with veice, data and Internet services, and may also be sold on a standalone basis.

Frontier Operating Strategies

Grow Broadband and Invest in aur Network. A main component of our strategy is to enable and sfrengthen the broadband
capabilities of our network, We focus on broadband as the core growth compenent of our service offering, either bundled with our
voice andfor video services, or on a standalone basis. We continuousiy improve our broadband speeds and availability in our
markets and view these invesiments as opportunities to attract and retain a greater number of customers and increase average
revenue per residential and business customer. Our capital expenditures include enhancing the existing outside plant
by expanding fiber-based infrastructure throughoul our network, upgrading nefwork hardware, expanding transport capacity of
our middle-mile and data backbone, and growing our video capabiliies. We continue {o deploy next generation Brozdband
Remote Access Servers throughout our network to facilitate the expansion of broadband and video service offerings and increase
broadband speeds, Similarly, for cur commarcial customers we are focused an expanding and upgrading our premium Ethernet
service offerings across our network.
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Improve Customer Experience and Retention. We provide mulliple service and product options in our residential and business
offerings to the custemer base in each of our markets, We beliave this strategy results in a better customer experience and allows
us to maximize retention of existing customers and to attract new cusiomers. At December 31, 2016, 63% of our residential
broadband customers subscribed to at least ene other service offering. Cur bundled services inciude broadband, voice, and video
offerings, including simplified messaging senvices, higher speed products and digital security products. In late 2018, we
anneunced a new organization structure, including separate and specialized consumer and commercial operations which will focus
on the differing needs of these customer groups.,

Improve Productivity and Operational Efficiency. We continuously engage in productivity initiatives with 2 focus on simplifying
our processes, efminating redundancies and further reducing our cost structure while improving our customer service capabilities.
We have achieved significant day one cost savings in the wireling acquisition in California, Texas and Florida in 2016. There are
substantial operational cost take-out opportunities that we are aggressively pursuing across all of our properties.

Network Architecture and Technology

Qur local exchange carrier networks consist of host central office and remote sites, primarily eduipped with digial and Internet
Protocol switches. The outside plant consists of transport and distribution delivery networks connecting our host central office with
remote central offices and ultimately with our customers, We own fiber optic and copper cable, which have been deployed in cur
networks and are the primary iransport technologies hetween our host and remete central offices and interconnection points with
other incumbent carriers.

We have expanded and enhanced our fiber optic and copper transport systems to support increasing customer demand for high
bandwidth transport services. We routinely enhance our network and upgraded with the latest Intemet Protocal Transport and
routing equipment, Reconfigurable Optical Add/Drop Multiplexers (ROADM) transport systems, Very High Bit-Rate Digital
Subscriber Line (VDSL} broadband equipment, and VolP swilches. These systems will support advanced services such as
Ethemet, Dedicated Internet, Multiprotocol Label Switching (MPLS} transport, and VolP, The network is designed with redundancy
and auto-fatlover capability on our major circuits,

We connect to the households and business iocations in our service territory using a combination of fiber optic and copper
technolegies. In some cases we provide direct fiber into a residence or a business premises. In other cases a location is served
with a hybrid combination of iber and copper, Residences in our service teritory are served by fiber-to-the-hame (FTTH) and by
finer-to-the-node. (FTTN), meaning fiber carries the traffic to an intermadiate location where the signals are convered to copper
wire for the fnal delivery to the household, We provide data, video, and voice services to the customer over both of these
architectures,

As of December 31, 2018, aur broadband availability to the heuseholds throughout Frontier's territories is as follows:

Number of Housetiolds % of Househalds with

{Downstraam speed capabifity) {in milliens) capability

Lip to 10 Mbps 13.4 8%

10 Mbps and above &.9 58%

25 Mbps and above 5.0 3%

50 Mbps and abgve 4.5 29%

100 Mbps and above 38 24%

No hroadband capability 1.8 12%

Total Households 15.2

In certain markets, we have begun 1o offer residential broadband services with 1 gigabit downioad speed capahilities.

Rapid and significant changes in fechnology are occurring in the communications industry. Our success will depend, in pari, on
our ability to anticipate and adapt to technological changes, We believe that our existing network
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architecture strategy wili enable us to respond to these ongoing lechnological changes efficiently. in addition, we anticipate
reducing costs through the sharing of best practices across operations, centralization or standardization of functions and
processes, and deployment of technologies and systemns that provide for greater efficiencies and profitability. Vve will continue to
make strategic enhancements to our network, with a focus on higher retumn investments,

Competitive Positioning
Competition for residential customers comes from cable operators, wireless carriers and online video providers, among others.

- Cable aperators: in a majority of our markets, cable operators offer high speed Intemet, video and voice services than we do
and compete with us aggressively on speed and price by marketing their offerings wilh significant promational pericd pricing.

- Wireless carriers: primarily compete with us for broadband, video, and veice services in aur markets by offering increasingly
larger data packages to mobile customers. The percentage of homes with a landline telephone has been declining, a irend
we expect will continue,

- Oriine vidao providers: many consumers are opfing for intemet-delivered video services (Over the Top, or OTT) through
providers such as Netflix, Hule, Amazon, YouTube and DirecTV Now rather than fraditional, multi-channel video. In
response, we have made invesiments in our network to deliver OTT video content 1o consumers who might not opt for
traditional video services,

Many residential customers prefer to bundie their voice, data and Internet end video services with a single provider. In areas
where we do not directly offer a network based video service, we offer satellite TV video service through DISH. This can impact
acquisition of new customers and retention of existing customers, represeniing a critical factor for the attachment of video,
breadband and voice products. As of December 31, 2016 34% of our residential customers subscribed to at least two service
offerings, and 18% subscribed to at jeast three service offerings.

Competition for business customers comes from telecommunications providers, cable operators, CLECs and other enterprises,
some of which are substantially larger than us. As compared to our residential customers, these custemers often reguire more
sophisticaied and more data-centered solutions (e.g., IP PBX, £911 netwerks, Ethernet, SIP trunking).

In order to remain competitive, wa must continue to evolve. cur product offerings to remain current with the changing neads of the
market, to provide strong customer service and support, to invest in cur network so we maintain adequate capacity and can deliver
new capabilities 2s needed, and to package our offerings to make them attractive to customers,

Regulatory Environment

Some of our operations are subject to regulation by the FCC and varicus state regulatery agenties, often called public service or
utility commissions. We expect federal and state lawmakers, the FCC and the state regulatory agencies to conlinue to revise the
statufes and regulations goveming communications services.

Regulation of our business

We are subject to federal, state and local regulalion and we have various regulatory authofizations for our requlated service
offarings. At the federal level, the FCC generally exercises jurisdiction over information services, inferstate or international
felecommunications services and over faciliies to the extent they are used lo provide, originaie or terminate interstate or
international services. State regufatory commissions generally exercise jurisdiction over intrastate tefecommunications senvices
and the facilities used fo provide, originate or terminate those services. Most of our local exchange companies operate as
incumbent camiers in the states in which they operate and are certified in those states to provide local telecommunications
services. In addifion, tocal governments often regulate the public rights-of-way necessary te install and operate netwarks, and may
require service providers to obtain licenses or franchises regulating their use of public righis-of-way. Municipalitics and other local
government agencies afse may regulale other limited aspects of our business, by requiring us to obtain cable franchises and
cansiruction permits and to abide by applicable building codes.
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Some states regulatory agencies have substantial oversight over incumbent tefephone companies, and their interconnection with
competitive providers and provision of non-discriminatory network access to certain network efements to them. Under the Federal
Teleeommunications Act of 1986, state regulatory commissions have jurisdiction to arbitrate and review interconnection disputes
and agreements between incumbent {elephone companies and competitive local exchange carriers, in accordance with rules set
by the FCC. The FCC and state regulatory commissions also impose fees on providers of telecommunications services to support
slate universal service programs. Many of the states in which we cperaie require prior approvals or notifications for certain
acguisitions and fransfers of assets, customers, or awnership of regulated entities.

In addition, in some states we are subject to operating restrictions and minimum service quality standards (the failure to meef such
restrictions may result in penalties). We also are required to report certain financial information. At the federal level and in a
number of the states in which we operate, we are subject to price cap or incentive regulation plans under which prices for
regulated services are cappad. Some of these plans have limited terms and, as they expire, we may need to renegotiate with
varicus states. These negotiations could impact rates, service quality andfor infrastruciure requirements, which could also impact
our earnings and capital expenditures. In othei states in which we operate, we are subject to rate of retum regulation that limits
levels of earnings and retums on investments, Approximately 19% of our tolal access lines at December 31, 2016 are in state
jurisdictions under the rate of retum regulatory model. We wifl continue to advocate for no or reduced regulafion with various
regulatory agencies in those states. In some of our states, we have already been successful in reducing or eliminating price
regulation on end-user services,

Federal Regulatory Environment

Frontier, along with all telecommunications providers, is subject to FCC rules gaveming privacy of specified customer information.
Among other things, these rules obligate carriers to implement procedures io: protect specified customer information from
inappropriate disclosure; obtain customer permission to use specified information in matketing; authenticate customers before
disclosing account information; and annually certify compliance with the FCC's rules. Although most of thess regulations are
generally consistent with our business plans, they may restrict our flexibility in operating our business,

Some regulations are, or could in the future be, the subject of judicial proceedings, legisiative hearings and administrative
proposals or challenges that could change the manner in which the entire industry operates. Neither the outceme of any of these
developments, nor their potential impact on us, can be predicted at this time. Regulation can change rapidly in the communications
industry, and such changes may have an adverse effect on us,

The current status of material regulatory initiatives is as foflows:

Federaf High-Cost Subsidies: The FCC has adopted rules changing the eligibility requirements for federal subsidies offered to
wireline carriers providing service fo high-cest, low-density markets, as well as the amounts of such subsidies, as follows:

Connect America Fund (CAF). On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the Universal Service Fund (USF)¥intercarrier
Compensation {ICC) Report and Crder (the 2011 Order}, which changed how federal subsidies are calculated and disbursed, and
began the transition of Federal USF (Universal Service Fund), which supported voice services in high-cost areas, to the CAF,
which supports broadband deployment in high-cost areas. Frontier received $133 million from 2012 through 2014 across two
rounds of CAF Phase | funding to make broadband avaitable to approximately 184,600 previcusly unserved or underserved
households. We completed deployment of broadband service to the first round of CAF Phase | households in 2015 as required by
the FCC rules and will complete the second round of CAF Phase | build by the March 2017 deadline.

On Aprit 29, 2015, the FCC released offers of support {o price cap camiers under the CAF Phase Il program. The intent of these
offers is to provide long-térm support for camfers for establishing and providing broadband service with al least 10 Mbps
downsiream/t Mbps upstream speeds in high cost unserved or underserved areas. Frontier acsepted the CAF Phase |l offer in 29
states, including our CTF properties, which provides for $332 million in annual support, through 2020 and & commitment to make
broadband available to approximately 774,000 households. CAF Phase Il support is a successor to the approximately $156 million
in annual USF frozen high cost support that Frontier had been receiving prior to the CTF acquisition, and the $42 million in annual
Iransitional YSF frozen high cost supporl that Verizon had been receiving in California and Texas. In addition to the annual
support levels, these amounts alse include frozen support phasedown amounts in states where the annual CAF |l funding is
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less than the prior annual frozen high cost support funding. The frozen supporl phasedown support was $35 million in 2015 and
$27 millicn in 2018, and is expected ta be $17 millicn in 217 and $8 miltion in 2018.

In 2017, the FCC is expected to adopt a competitive bidding process to continue fo distribute CAF Phase Il funding in those high-
cost areas where price cap carriers declined the FCC's offer of support, possibly presenting a new support and deployment
opportunity. The FCC's competitive bidding process has not yet been finalized, therefore, Frontier is unable to determine whether
it will participate in any competitive bid process at this time.

Intercarrier Compensaltion. In the 2011 Crder, the FCC alsc reformed Intercarier Compensation, which is the payment framewark
that govemns how carriers compensate each other for the exchange of interstate switched fraffic, and began a multi-year transition
ic the new rates. The 2011 Order provided for ihe graduat elimination of terminating traffic charges by July 2017 with a related
decline in operaling expenses. Switched access revenue declined sequentially in the third quarter of 2016, reflecting the rate
reductions mandated by the 2011 Order, and we anticipate that we have experienced nearly all of the rate decline related {c the
2011 Order. Frontier has been able to recover a significant portion of those lost revenues through end user rates and other
replacement support mechanisms, a frend we expect will continue through 2017 and beyond. There are no longer any active
Intercarrier Compensation-refated challenges to the 2011 Order, and we belisve that the 2011 Order provides a stable regulatory
framework to facilitate our ongoing focus on the deployment of broadband into our rural markets.

Special Access: The FCC also has an ongoeing proceeding, which dates back to 2015, to consider whether to make changes to its
regulatory regime goveming special access services, inguding whether to mandate lower rates, change standards for deregufation
and pricing flexibifity, or to require changes to other terms and conditions. In connection wilh its inquiry into specifically identified
special access iariff pricing plans discussed below, on April 28, 20185, the FCC released a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking on
special access or “business data” services. It sought comment on proposed changes fo the way the FOC regulates traditionat
special access services based on market competition, and on a proposal to adopt pricing rules for Ethemet services in markets
that are found to be “nencompetitive.” Qn QOctober 7, 2016, the FCC released a Fact Sheet detailing former FCC Chairman
Wheeler's proposal for addressing special access issues, though this proposat was never adopted. The composition of the FCC
has since changed following the Presidential election, and as a result the proceeding remains open and the potential impact te
Frontier of this proceeding is unknown,

On April 28, 2018, the FCC completed its inguiry into whether certain terms and condilions contained in specifically identified
special access 1ariff pricing pfans offered by four carriers, including Frontier, are just and reasenable. The FCC held that certain of
the tariff terms for business data TDM services, specifically DS1s and DS3s, were unreasenable. Specifically, the FCC struck

down “excessive” early tarmination fees and “all-ornothing” provisions. Frontier has revised its tariffs in accordance with the FCC's

Crder. The FCC's decision has no retroactive effect, and there has been no materiat impact to Frontier from it. The FCC deferred
the issue of how its ruling will affect customers currently purchasing services from these tariffs to the Nolice of Proposed
Rulemaking mentionad above.

Intrasfate Services: Some state regulatory commissions regulate some of the rates ILECs charge for intrastate senvices, including
rates for intrastate access services paid by providers of intrastate long distance services. Some states also have their own open
proceedings to address reform to intrastate access charges and aother intercarrier compensaticn and state universal service funds.
Although the FCC has pre-empted state jurisdiction on most access charges, some states could consider moving forward with their
proceadings. We cannot predict when or how these matiers will be decided or the effect on our subsidy or switched access
revenues.

Veice Over Infemet Frotocol (VoiF): Regulaters at both the federal and state levels continue to address whether VoIP services are
subject to the same or different regufatory and intercarrier compensation regimes as traditional voice telephony. The FCC has
concluded that VolP and facilities-based broadband lntemet access providers must comply with the Communications Assistance
for Law Enforcement Act, a decision that the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Celumbia Circuit has upheld. The
FCC has also required Vol providers to provide enhanced 91t emergency calling capabilities. in the 2011 Order, the FCC
detarmined that VolP-originated traffic terminating on the Public Switched Telephone Network is subject to interstate access rates.
Effective December 28, 2011, the 2011 Order reguired providers to pay interstale access rates for the termination of VolP tolf
fraffic. On April 25, 2012, the FCC, in an Order on Reconsideration, specified that changes to originaling access rates for ValP
traffic would not be implemented untif July 2014, The 2011 Order was challenged in court, and the FCC was petifioned to
reconsider various aspects. While most challenges have been resclved, on November 18, 2016, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
D.C. Circuit remanded to the FCC AT&T's challenge regarding the ability of compeiifive carriers fo assess VoiP access
charges, The net impact of the 2011 Order during the period from July
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2012 through December 2014 was not significant for Frontier. The net effect of 2011 Order changes to originating access after
duly 1, 2014 is dependent upon the percentage of VoiP traffic.

Additionafly, the 2011 Order requires VoIP providers to pay interstate terminating interconnection charges and requires all cariers
terminating traffic to provide appropriate call information, thus prohibiting so-called "phaniom trafic.” However, the FCC dedlined
to address other VolP-related issues, and the FCC has stated its intent to address open guestions regarding the treatment of VolP
services in its ongoing “IP-Enabled Services Proceeding.” Internet telephony may have an advantage in the markeiplace over our
traditional services if this service remains less requlated.

Current and polential Infernet regufatory obligations:  On June 14, 20186, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C, Circuit
upheld the FCC's 2015 Order in which the FCC asserted jurisdiction aver broadband service, utilizing its jurisdictional authority
under Title | and Section 706 of the Communications Act of 1998, classified broadband service as a “telecemmunications
service’. The FCC adopted rules to "preserve a Free and Open Intemet” (i.e., net neutrality) that impose specific abligations for
fixed and mobile providers of broadband Intemet access services and specifically prohibit the following: blocking access to legal
content, applications, services, or non-harmful devices; impairing or degrading lawful Internet traffic on the basis of content,
applications, services, or non-harmful devices; favoring some lawful Infemet traffic over other lawful fraffic in exchange for
consideration; and otherwise unreasonably hamming consumers or edge providers. These obligations are largsly consistent with
the praclices Frontier aiready had in place. The FCC also announced additional fransparency requirements, which allow for a "safe
harkor” disclosure framewerk, intended ta provide consumers more information about a provider's network management practices,
performance, speed, price, and data caps.

Several parties have asked the D.C. Circuit to reconsider its decision and, depending on the oulcome, are likely to ask the
Supreme Court {o review the Order. Frontier continues te comply with the existing regulatory requiremenis, and it is unclear
whether the pending appeal will have any impact on the regulatory structure,

In addition to the net neutrality rules, the FCC on October 27, 2018, refied on its newfound Title 1| authority to promulgate privacy
rules for broadband providers. These rules govern how broadband providers can use sensitive customer information and the
steps providers must take to protect that information. Pstitions for reconsideration of these rules were due in January 2017, and
whether these rules will remain in place is uncertain, particularly dus to the change in administration.

Video programming

Federal, state and local governments extensively regulate the video services industry. Our FiOS and Vantage video services are
subject 10, among other things: subscriber privacy regulations; requirements that we carry a local broadcast station or obtain
consant to carry a local or distant broadcast stafion; rules for franchise renewals and transfers; the manner in which program
packages are marketed to subscribers; and program access requirements.

We provide videc programming in some of our markets in Califomia, Connecticut, Florida, Indisna, Minnesota, North Carolina,
Qregon, South Carolina, Texas and Washington pursuant to franchises, pemmits and similar authorizations jssued by state and
local franchising authorities. Most franchises are subject to termination proceedings in the event of a material breach. In addition,
most franchises require payment of a franchise fee as a requirement to the granting of authority.

Many franchises establish comprehensive faciliies and service requirements, as well as specific customer service standards and
monetary penalties for non-compliance. In many cases, franchises are terminable if the franchisee fails to comply with material
provisions set forth In the franchise agreement governing system operations. We believe that we are in compliance and meeting
all material standards and requirements. Franchises are generally granted for fixed terms of at least ten years and must be
periodically renewed. Local franchising authorities may resist granting a renewal if either past performance or the prospective
operating proposal is considered inadequate.
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Envirommental requfation

The local exchange carmier subsidiaries we operate are suhbfect to federal, state and focat laws and regulalions goveming the use,
storage, disposal of, and exposure {o hazardous materials, the release of pollutants into the environment and the remediation of
contamination. As an owner and former owner of property, we are subject to environmental laws that could impose liability for the
entire cost of cleanup at contaminated sites, including sites formerly owned by us, regardless of fault or the lawfulness of the
activity that resulied in contamination. We believe that our operations are in substaniial compliance with applicable environmental
laws and reguiations.

Segment Information

We cuirrently operate in cnly one reportable segment.

Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Opsrations and Export Sales
We have no foreign operations.

General

The dollar amount of our crder backlog is not a significant consideration in our business and is not a meaningful metric for us, We
have no material confracts or subconiracis that may be subject to renegotiation of profits or termination at the election of the
federal govemment.

Intellectual Property

We believe that we have the trademarks, trade names and intellectual property licenses that are necessary for the operation of our
business.

Employees

As of December 31, 2016, we had approximately 28,300 employees, as compared to approximately 19,200 employees as of
December 31, 2015. During 20186, reduction in workforce activities resulted in the severance of approximately 1,950 employees of
which approximately 450 employees remained as employees as of December 31, 20168, Approximately 17,900 of owr total
employees are represented by unians. The number of employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement that expired in
2018, but have been extended and are stilt effective for 2017, is approximately 800. The number of employees covered by
collective bargaining agreements that expire in 2017 is approximately 3,800. We consider our relations with our empioyees to be
good. :

Available Information

Ye are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act}. Accordingly, we file
periodic reparts, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). These reporis,
proxy statements and other information may be oblained by visiting the Public Reference Room of the SEC at 100 F Street, NE,
Washington, D.C. 20549 or by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet site (www.sec.qov)
that contains reports, proxy and information statements and othar information regarding Frontier and other issuers that file
electronically,

YWe make available, free of charge on cur website, cur Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Repaorts on Form 8-K and amendments o these reports filed or fumished pursuant to Section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act,
as soon as practicable after we electronically fite these documents with, or furnish them to, the SEC. These documents miay be
accessed through our website at www. frontier.com under “Investor Relations.” The information posted or linked on our website is
not part of this reporl. We atso make our Annual Report avaitable in printed form upon request at no charge,

We also make available on our website, as noted above, or in printed form upon request, free of charge, our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Specific Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Provisions for
Centain Officers, and the charters for the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance committees of the
Board of Directors. Steckhalders may request printed copies of these materials by writing to: 401 Merritt 7, Norwalk, Connecticut
06851 Attentien: Corporate Secretary.
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Forward-Locking Statements
This Annual Repori on Form 10-K confaing "forward-locking statements,” related to future, not past, events. Forward-iooking
statements address our expected future business and financial performance and financial condition, and contain werds such as
"expect,” "anticipate," "intend," "plan,” "believe,” "seek,” "see,” "will," "would,” or “arget." Forward-looking statements by their
nature address matters that are, to different degrees, uncertain. For us, particular unceriainties that could cause our actual results
to be materially different than those expressed in our forward-looking statements include:

=competition from cable, wireless and wireline carrers, satellite, and OTT companies, and the risk that we will not respond on a
timely or prefitable basis;

«our ability to successfully adjust to changes in the communications industry, including the effects of technological changes and
compelition on our capitat expenditures, products and service offerings;

» our ability to implement successfully our organizational structure changes;

«risks related to the operation of properties acquired from Verizen, including our ability to retain or obtain customers in those
markets, our ability to realize anticipated cost savings, and our ability to meet commitments made in connedtion with the
acqguisifion;

ereductions in revenue from our voice customers that we cannot offset with increases in revenue from breadband and video
subscribers and sales of other products and services;

» our ability to maintain relatienships with customers, employees or suppliers;
» the impact of regulation and regulatory, investigative and jegal proceedings and legal compliance risks;
scontinued reductions in switched access revenues as a result of regulation, competition ar technology substifutions;

sthe effects of changes in the avaifabifity of federal and state universal senvice funding or ather subsidies to us and our
competitors;

= our ability to effectively manage service qualify in our tertitaries and meet mandated service quality metrics;
« our ability fo suceessfully introduce new preduct offerings;

+the effects of changes in accounting policies or practices, including potential future impairment charges wilh respact to our
intangible assets;

«our abilty to effeclively manage our operations, operating expenses, capilat expenditures, debt service requirements and cash
paid for income taxes and liguidity, which may affect payment of dividends on our commen and preferred shares:

= the effects of changes in both general and local economic conditions on the markets that we serve;

« the effects of increased medical expenses and pension and postemployment expenses;

» the effects of changes in income tax raies, tax laws, regulations or rulings, or federal or state tax assessments;
« our ability to successfully renegetiate union centracts;

schanges in pension plan assumptions, interest rates, requlatory rules and/or the value of our pension plan assets, which could
require us to make increased contributions to the pension pfan in 2017 and beyond;

= adverse changes in the credit markets;

10
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« atverse changes in the ratings given to our debt securities by nationally accredited ratings crganizations;
» the availability and cost of financing in the credit markets;
= covenants in our indentures and credit agreements that may limit our operational and financial flexibility;

«the effects of state regulatory cash management practices that could limit our ability to fransfer cash among our subsidiaries or
dividend funds up to the parent company;

+the effects of severe weather events or other natural or man-made disasters, which may increase our operating expenses or
adversely impact customer revenug; and

» the impact of potential infermation fechnology or data security breaches or other disrupticns.

Any of the foregoing events, or other events, could cause our results to vary from management’'s forward-faoking staiements
included in this report. You should consider these important factors, as well as the risks set forth under Hem 14, *Risk Factors,” in
evaluating any statement in this report or otherwise made by us or on our behalf, We have no obligation to update or revise these
forward-looking statements and de not undertake to do so.

Investers should alse be aware that while we do, at various limes, communicate with securities analysts, it is against our policy to
disclose fo them selectively any material non-public information or other cenfidential information. Accordingly, investors should not
assume that we agree with any statement or report issued by an analyst, imrespective of the content of the statement or report. Te
the extent that reports issued by securilies analysts contain any projections, forecasts or opinions, such reports are nof our
responsibifity.

11
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tem 1A. Risk Factars

Before you make an investment decision with respect to any of our securities, you should carefully consider alt the information we
have included in this Annuat Report on Form 10-K and our subsequent periodic filings with the SEC. In particular, you should
carefully consider the risk factors described below and the risks and uncenrtainties related to "Forward-Looking Statements,” any of
which could materially adversely affect our business, operating results, financiat condition and the actual outcome of matters as to
which forward-ocking stalements are made in this annual report.  The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only
anes facing Frontier, Additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial or
that are not specific to us, such as general economic conditions, may also adversely affect our business and operations. The
following risk factors should be read in conjunction with the batance of this annual report, including the consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in this report.

Risks Related to Our Business

We will likely face further reductions in voice customers, switched access minutes of use, long distance revenues
and subsidy revenues.

We have experienced declining voice customers, swilched access minutes of use and related revenues, long distance
revenues, federal and state subsidies and refated revenues because of ecanomic conditions, increasing compedtition, changing
technelogy and consumer behavior {such as wireless displacement of wireline use, e-mail use, instant messaging and increasing
use of VolP), technalogy and regulatory constraints, and financial decisions by govemmental authorities. We will likely continue to
experierce further reductions in the future. These factors, among athers, are likely to cause our local network service, switched
network access, leng distance and subsidy revenues te continue to decline, and these factars may cause cur cash generated by
operations {o decrease.

We face intense competition.

The communications industry is extremely competitive, Through mergers and various service expansion strategies,
service providers are siriving to provide integrated solutions beth within and across geographic markets. Our competitors include
competitive local exchange caners, internet service providers, wireless companies, OTT, VoIP providers and cable companies,
some of which may be subject to less regulation than we are; these entities may provide services competitive with the services that
we offer orintend to introduce, We also believe thal wireless and cable telephony providers have increased their penetration of
varigus services in our markets. We expect that competition will remain robust. Our revenue and cash flow will be adversely
impacted if we cannot reverse cur custorher losses or continue to provide high-quality services.

We cannet predict which of the many possible future technologies, products or services will be important in order to
maintain our competitive positien or what expenditures will be required to develop and provide these technoelogies, producis or
services. Our ability to compete successfully will depend on the effectiveness of capital expenditure investments in our properties,
our marketing efforts, our ability to anticipate and respond to various competitive factors affecting the industry, including a changing
regulatory environment that may affect our business and that of our competitors differently, new services that may be intreduced,
changes in consumer preferences, demographic trends, economic conditions and pricing strategies by competitars. Increasing
competition may reduce our revenues and increase our markeling and other costs as well as require us 1o increase our capital
expenditures and thereby decrease our cash flows.

Some of our competitors have superior resources, which may place us at a cost and price disadvantage.

Some of gur competitors have market presence, engineering, technical, marketing and financial capabllifies, substantially
greater than ours. In addition, some of these competitors are able to raise capital at a lower cost than we are able to.
Consequently, some of these compelitors may be able to develop and expand their communications and retwark infrastructures
more quickly, adapt mere swiflly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements, take advantage of
acquisition and other apportunities more readily and devole greater resources {o the marketing and sale of their products and
services than we will be able to, Additionally, the greater brand name recognition of some competiters may require us to price our
services at lower levels in order to ratain or
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obtain cusiomers. Finally, the cost advantages and greater financial resources of some of these competitors may give them the
abifity ta reduce their prices for an extended period of time if they sc choose. Our business and results of ocperations may be
materially adversely impacted if we are not able to effectively compete.

We may be unable to stabilize or grow our revenues and cash flows despite the initiatives we have implemented,

We must produce adequate revenues and cash flows that, when combined with cash on hand and funds available under
our revelving credit facility and ather financings, will be sufficient fo service our debt, fund our capital expenditures, pay our taxes,
fund our pension and other employee benefit obligations and pay dividends pursuant to our dividend policy. We have experienced
revenue declines in 2016 and 2015 as compared to prior years for our Frontier legacy operations, and our recently acquired
operations have alsc experienced revenue declines. VWhile we have identified potential areas of opportunity and implemented
several revenue and cos! initiatives, we cannot assure you that these efforts will be successful or that these initiatives will improve
our financial position or our results of aperations.

Weak economic conditions may decrease demand for our services or necessitate increased discounts.

We could be adversely impacted by weak economic conditions or their effects. Downturns in the economy and
competition in our markets could cause some of our customers o reduce or eliminate their purchases of our basic and enhanced
voice sefvices, broadband and video serviges and make it difficull for us to obtain new customers or retain existing cusiomers. In
addition, if econormic conditions are deprassed or further deteriorate, our customers may delay or discontinue payment for our
services or seek more competitive pricing from other service providers, or we may be required to offer increased discounts in order
to retain our customers, which could have a material adverse effect on our busingss or results of operations.

Disruptiort in otr networks, infrastructure and information technology may cause us fo lose customers and/or
incur additional expenses.

To attract and retain customers, we must pravide reliable service. Some of the risks o our networks, infrastructure and
information technology include physical damage, security breaches, capacity imitations, power surges or cutages, software
defects and other disruptions beyond our control, such as natural disasters and acts of terrorism.  From time fo ime in the ordinary
course of business, we experience short disruptions in our service due to factors such as cable damage, theft of our equipment,
inclement weather and service faflures of our third-party service providers, We could experience more significant disruptions in the
future. We could also face disruptions due to capacily mitations if changes in our customers’ usage patterns for our broadband
services result in a significant increase in capacily utflization, such as through increased usage of video or peer-to-peer file sharing
applications. Disruptions may. cause interruptions in service or reduced capacity for customers, either of which could cause us to
lose customers and/or incur additicnal expenses, and thereby adversely affect our business, revenues and cash flows,

Our business is sensitive to the creditworthiness of our wholesale customers.

We have substantial busingss relationships with other communications carriers for which we provide service. While
bankruptcies of these carriers have not had a materlal adverse effect on our business in recent years, fuiure bankruptcies in.the
industry could result in the loss of significant customers, as weil as cause more price competition and an increased allowance for
doubifuj accounts receivable. Such bankrupicies may be more likely in the future if economic conditions stagnate. As a result, our
revenues and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

A significant portion of our workforce is represented by labor unions.

As of December 31, 2016, we had approximately 28,300 employees. Approximately 17,900 of our total employees were
represented by unions and were subject to collective bargaining agreements. As of December 31, 2016, we had approximatsly
600 employees covered by & collective bargaining agreement that expired in 2016, but have been extended and are stilt effective
for 2017. Of the union-represented employees as of December 31, 2016, approximately 3,800, or 21%, of the unionized warkforce
are coverad by collective agreements thai expire in 2017 and approximately 3,500, ar 20%, of ihe unicnized workforce are covered
by coltective bargaining agreements that expire in 2018.
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We cannot predict the outcome of negotiations of the collective bargaining agreements covering our employees. If we are
unable o reach new agreements or renew existing agreements, employees subject to collective bargaining agreements may
engage in strikes, work slowdowns or other labor actions, which could materially disrupt our ability fo provide services. New labor
agreements or the renewal of existing agreements may impose significant new cests on us, which could adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations in the future.

¥ we are unable to hire or retain key persannel, we may be unable {o operate our business successiuily.

Our success will depend In part upon the continued services of our management, We cannot guarantee that our key
personnel will not leave or compete with us. The loss, incapacity or unavatlability for any reasen of key members of our
management team could have a material impact on our business, in addition, our financial results and our ability to compete will
suffer if we are unable to altract, integrate or retain olher qualified personnel in the future,

We may be unable to realize the anticipated benefits of recent acquisitions.

In recent years, we have completed multiple acquisitions. ¥e cannot assure you that we will be able to realize the full
benefit of any anticipated growih opportunities or cost synergies from such acquisitions or that these benefits will be reafized within
the expected time frames.

We may complete a fulure significant strategic lransaction that may notachieve intended results or could
fncrease tiie number of our sutstanding shares or amount of outstanding debt.

We continucusly evaluate and may in the future enter into additional strategic transactions. Any such transaction could
happen at any time, could be material ta our business and could take any number of ferms, including, for example, an acquisition,
merger or a sale of certain of our assets,

Evaluating potential iransactions and integrating completed ones may divert the attention of our management from
ordinary cperating matters. The suscess of these potential transactions will tdepend, in part, on our ability to realize the anticipated
growth opportunities and cost synergies through the successful integration of the businesses we acquire with our existing
business. Even if we are successful in integrating acguired businesses, we cannot assure you that these integrations will result in
the realization of the full benefit of any anticipated growth cpportunities o cast synergies or that these benefits wili be realized
within the expected time frames. In addition, acquired businesses may have unanticipated liabilities or contingencies.

If we complete an acquisition, investrment or other strategic transaction, we may require additional financing that could
resull in an increase in the number of our outstanding shares of stock or the aggregate amount and/or cost of our debt, which may
result in an adverse impact to our ralings. The number of shares of our stock or the aggregate principal amount of our debt that
we may issue may be significant. Moreover, the ferms of any debt financing may be expensive or adversely impact our results of
operations,

Negotiations with the providers of content for our video systems may not be successful, potentially resulting in
our inability to carry certain programming channels on our FIOS and Vantage video systems, which could result in the
loss of subscribers. Afternatively, because of the power of some content providers, we may be forced to pay an
increasing amount for some content, resulting in higher expenses and lower profitability.

We must negotiate with the content owners of the programming that we carry on cur mullichannel video systems
(marketed as FiOS video and Vantagas videa). These content owners are the exclusive provider of the channels they offer. If we
are unabte te reach a mutually-agreed contract with a content owner, including pricing and carriage provisions, our existing
agreements to carry this conterit may not be renewed, resulting in the blackout of these channels, The loss of content could resuit
in our loss of custemers whe place a high value on the particular content that is lost. In addition, many content providers own
multiple channels. As a result, we typically have to negotiate the pricing for multiple channels rather than one, and camy and pay
for content that customers do not much value, in order to have access to other content that customers value quite highly. Some of

eur competitors have materially larger scale than we do, and may, as a result, be better positioned than we are in such
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negotiations. As a result of these factors, the expense of content acquisition may continue to increase, and this could result in
higher expensas and lower profitability.

Risks Ralated to Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capitalization

We expect to make contributions to our pension plan in future years, the amourt of which will be tmpacted
by volatility in asset values refated to Frontier's pension plan andfor changes in pension plan assumptions,

Frontier made contributions of $28 million and $62 million to its pension plan in 2016 and 2015, respectively, and we
expect to continue to make coniributions in fulure years. Volatility in our asset values, liability calculations, or returns may impact
the costs of maintaining our pension plan and our future funding requirements. Any future material contribution could have a
negative impact on our fiquidity by reducing cash flows.

We currently have a significant amount of indebtedness, including secured indebtedness, and are able to incur
substantial additional indebtedness and grant substantial addiffonal liens In the future. Such debt and debt service
ohfigaiions may adversely affect us.

We have a significani amount of indebtedness, which amounted to $18.2 billion outstanding at December 31, 2018, of
which $2.3 billion was secured. We also have access to a $750 million secured Revolving Credit Facility, which currently is
undrawn.

The terms of our indentures and credif facifities aflow us to incur subs{antial additional indebtedness and grant
substantial additional liens in the future. In addition, these terms do not prevent us or our restricted subsidiaries from incurring
various types of ohligations that do not constitute “indebledness” under these terms.

If we incur any additional indebtedness that ranks equally with our senior notes and debentures, the holders of that new
debt will ba entitled 1o share ratably with holders of our senior notes and debentures in any proceeds distributed in connection
with any insoivency, liquidation, reorganization, dissolution or other winding up of Frontier, If any such additional indebtedness is
secured, if will be effeclively senior te our unsecured senior notes and debentures o the extent of the collateral securing such
indebtedress, This may have the effect of reducing the probabllity of payment, or the amount of proceeds paid, to helders of our
senior notes and debentures.

In addition, to the extent other new debt is added to our and our subsidiaries’ current debt levels, the substaniiat ieverage
risks described below would increase.

The potential significant negative consequences on our financial condition and resuits of operations that could result from
our substaniial debt include:

+  [Imitaticns on our abifity to abtain additional debt ar equity financing on favorable terms or at all;

« instances in which we are unable to comply with the covenants contained in our indentures and credit agreements or to
generate cash sufficient to make required debt payments. which circumstances have the potential of accelerating the
maturity of some or all of our outstanding indebtedness;

» the allocation of a substantial portion of our ¢ash flow from operations to service our debt, thus reduging the amount of
our cash flows available for other purposes, including capital expenditures and dividends that would otherwise improve
our competitive position, results of operafions or stock price;

= requiring us to issue debt or equity securities or to sell some of our core assets, possibly on unfavorable ferms, to meet
payment obligations;

« compromising our flexibility to plan for, or react to, compefitive challenges in-our bugsiness and the telecommunications
industry; and

« the possibility of our being put at a competitive disadvantage with competitors who; refative to their size, do not have as
much debt as we do, and competitors who may be in a more favorable position to access additional capital resources.
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In addition, our senier netes and debentures are rated below “investment grade” by independent rating agencies. This
can result in higher borrowing costs for us. We cannot assure you that these rating agencies will not lower our current debt
ratings, if in the rating agencies’ judgment such an action is appropriate, A lowering of a rating may further increase our future
horrowing cosis and reduce our access to capital.

The indentures and agreements governing our debt, including our senfor notes and debentures and our credit
facilities, contain cavenants that impose restrictions on us and cerfain of our subsidiaries that may affect our ability to
operate our business, make payments on our debt, and pay dividends.

_ The indentures and agreements governing our existing indebtedness contain covenants that, among other things, fimi
our ability and the ability of certain of our subsidiaries to:

. incur additional indebtedness, guarantee indebtedness or issue preferred stock;
. create liens;
s enter into mergers or consolidations, or transfer or sell all or substantially afl of our assets;

« pay dividends on, or make distributions in respect of, or redeem or repurchase, capital stock, make certain investments
or make other restricted payments;

. make certain asset sales;

» enter into agreements that might prevent certain of cur subsidiaries from making distributions, loans or advances to us
or other subsidiaries; and

. engage in transactions with affiliates.

In addition, cur credit facilities require us to comply with additional covenants, including financial ratios. Any future
indebtedness may also require us to comply with similar or other covenants, These restrictions on cur ability te operate our
business could seriously harm our business by, among other things, limiling our ability o take advantage of financings, mergers,
acquisitions and other corporate opportunities.

Various risks, uncertainties and events beyond our controj could affect our ability to camply wilh these covenants. Faiture
to comply with any of the covenants in our existing or future financing indentures and agreements could result in a default under
those documents and under other agreements containing cross-default provisions. A default would permit lenders to accelerate
the maturity of the debt and to foreclose upon any coliateral securing the debt. Under these circumstances, we might not have
sufficient funds or other resources to satisfy alt of our obligations. In addition, the limitations imposed by indentures and credit
ggreements on our ability to incur additional debt and to take other actions might significantly impair our ability to obtain other

nancing.
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Fronticr is primarily a holding company and, as a result, we rely on the receipt of funds from our subsidiaries in
order to meet our cash needs and service our indebtedness, including our senior notes and debentures.

Frontier is primarily a helding company and its principal assets consist of the shares of capiial stock or other equity
instruments of its subsidiaries. As a holding company, we depend on dividends, distributions and other payments from our
subsidiaries to fung our cbligations, including those arising under gur senior notes and debentures, and meet our cash needs.
We cannot assure you that the operating resuits of our subsidiaries at any given time will be sufficient to make dividends,
distributions or other paymenis to us in order to allow us {0 make paymenis on our indebtedness, including our senior notes and
debentures, In addition, the payment of these dividends, distributions and other payments, as well as other transfers of assets,
between our subsidiaries and from our subsidiaries 1o us may be subject to legal, regulatory or contractual restrictions. Some
state regulators have imposed and others may consider imposing on regulated companies, including us, cash management
practices that could limit the ability of such regulaled companies to transfer cash between subsidiaries or to the parent company.
While none of the existing state regulations materially affects our cash management, any changes to the exisling regulations or
imposition of new regulations or restrictions may materially adversely affect our abflity to transfer cash within our consolidated
companies.

Our senior notes and debentures are structurally subordinated fo labllifies of our subsidiaries.

Our subsidiaries have not guaranteed our sentor notes and debentures. As a result, holders of such securities will not
have any claim as a creditor against cur subsidianes. Accordingly, all obligations of aur subsidiarias (including any liens granted
by our subsidiaries on any of their assets to secure any of our obligations) will have to be satisfied before any of the assets of
such subsidianies would be available for distribution, upen a liquidation or othenwise. Although the indentures goveming our
senior notes and debenlures, and our credit agreements, limit the indebtedness our subsidiaries may incur, cur subsidiaries are
able to incur a substantial amount of additional dett. Additionally, although the indentures and credit agreements limit the fiens
that may be granted on the assets of our subsidiaries, our subsidiaries are able to grant ens to secure a substantial amount of
liabilities, including, wilhout limitation, certain indebtedness under our credit facilities,

Qur senior notes and dehentures are unsecured and subordinated to any secured indebtedness.

Qur senfor notes and debentures are unsecured and therefore are subordinated to our existing and future secured
indebtedness, to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness. At December 31, 2018, our secured
indebtedness consisted of obligations under the 2015 Credit Agreement, the CoBank Credit Agreements, the Revolving Credit
Agreement and the Continuing Agreement for Standby Letters of Credit dated February 4, 2008 between Frontier and Deutsche
Bank AG New York Branch, sach of which is secured equally and ratably by a pledge of all of the outstanding shares of capital
stock of Frontier North Ing., a wholly-owned subsidiary. In the event of a bankruptcy or similar procesding, the assets that serve
as coltateral for our secured indebtedness will be available to satisfy the obligations under the secured indebtedness before any
payments are made on the senior notes and debentures from the proceeds of such assets. The indentures governing our senior
noles and debentures permit us, subject to specified limitations, to incur a substantial armount of additional secured debt,

If the senior notes issued in September 2015 are rated Investment grade by af least two of Moody's, S&P or
Fitch, many of the covenanis will nat apply and the holders of the notes will lose the protection of the covenants.

Each of the supplemental indentures goveming our senjor notes issued in September 2015 coniain certain covenants
that will be suspended during any period in which such series of notes are rated investmeni grade by af leas! two of Moody's,
S&P or Filch and no default or event of default has aecurred and is continuing. Such covenants limit, among cther things, our
ahility to pay distributions, incur debt and enter into certain olher transactions. There can be ne assurance that any series of
notes will evar be rated investrment grade, or that if they are raled investment grade, ihat the series of notes will maintain these
ratings. To the extent the covenants are subseguently reinstated, any such actions taken while the covenants were suspended
would not result in an event of defauit under the supplemental indentures governing the applicable series of notes.
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Our varfable rate indebfednass subjects us to interest rate risk, which could cause gur debt service obligations
{o increase.

Al December 31, 2016, approximately 12% of our totat debt is subject to variable rates of interast. Borrowings under our
credit facilities are at variable rates of interest and expose us to inferest rate risk. If interest rates were to increase, our debt
service obligations on the variable.rate indebtedness would increase even though the amount borrowed remained the same, and
ournet ingome and cash flows, including cash available for servicing our indebtedness, would correspondingly decrease. In the
future, we may enter into interest rate swaps that involve the exchange of floating for fixed rate inferest payments in order to
reduce interest rate volatility. However, we might not maintain inferest rate swaps with respect to all of our variable rate
indebtedness, and any swaps we enter intc might not fully mitigate our interest rate risk.

We may not have sufficient funds to repurchase our senior notes upon a change of control triggering event.

The terms of our senjor notes require us to make an offer fo repurchase the notes upon the occurrence of a Change of
Contro} and Ralings Dedine (as defined in the indentures governing the notes) at a purchase price equal to 101% of the
respective principal amounts of the notes plus accrued 2nd unpaid interest to, but not including, the date of the purchase. It is
possible that we would not have sufficient funds at the time of such a change of control triggeririg event to make the required
repurchase of the applicable series of notes and would be required to obtain third party financing to do so. We may not be able to
obtain this financing on cammercially reasonable terms, or on terms acceptable to us, or at all. In addition, the occurrence of
certain ¢change of control events may constitute an event of default under the terms of our credit facilities. Such an event of
defaylt would entitle the lenders under our credit facilities to, among other things, cause aill outstanding debt thereunder to
become due antd payable.

We cannot assure that we will be able to continue paying dividends.

The amount and timing of fulure dividend payments is subject to applicable jaw and will be made at the discretion of our
Board of Direciors based on factors such as cash flow and cash requirements, capital expenditure requirements, financial
condition and other factors.

Cur abiiity to declare and pay dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock may be fimited.

Our declaration and payment of dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock in the future will be determined by our Board of
Directors in its sole discretion and will depend on business conditions, our financial condition, earnings and figuidy and other
tactors. Qur ability ta declare and pay dividends and make other distributions with respect to aur capital stock, including the Serfes

A Preferred Stock, is restricted by the terms of certain of our existing financing arangements and may bs restricted by the terms of

financing arrangements that we enter into in the future. In the event that the agreements goveming any such indebtedness restrict
our ability te declare and pay dividends in cash on the shares of Series A Preferred Stock, we may be unable to declare and pay

dividends in cash on the shares of Series A Preferred Stock untess we can repay or refinance the amounts outstanding under such

agreements.

In addition, under Delaware law, our Board of Directors may only declare and pay dividends on shares of our capital stock
out of our statutory “surplus” {which is the amount equal to total assets minus fatal Fiabilities, in each case at fair market value,
minus statutory capital}, or If there is no such surplus, out of our net profits for the then current and/or immediately preceding fiscal
year. Furiher, even if we are permitied under our contractual obligations and Delaware law to declare and pay cash dividends on
the shares of Series A Preferred Stock, we may not have sufficient cash to do so through the mandatory conversion date of Jurie
29, 2018.
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We Have a significant amount of goodwill and other intangible assets on our halance sheet. If our goodwilf or
other infangible assets become impaired, we may be required to record a non-cash charge to earnings and reduce our
stockholders’ equily.

Under generally accepted accounting principlas, intangible assets are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis or more
frequently whenever events or circumstances indicate that their carrying value may nof be recoverable. Frontier monitors relevant
circumstances, including general economic conditions, enterprise vatue EBITDA mulliples for other providers of communications
services, our averall financial performance, and the market prices for our steck, and the petential impact that changes in such
circumnstances might have on the valuation of Frontier's goodwill or other intangible assets. | our goodwilt or other intangible
assets are determined to be impaired in the future, we may be required o record a non-cast charge to eamings during the period
in which the impairment is determined, which would reduce our slockholders’ equity.

Risks Related to Regulation
Changes In federal or state regufations may reduce the switched access charge revenues we receive.

A porticn of Frontier's total revenues (3170 million, or 2%, in 2016 and $177 million, or 3%, in 2015) are derived from
switched access charges paid by other cammiers for services we provide in originating and terminating intrastate and interstate fong
distance traffic. Frontier expecis a portion of our revenues will continue to be derived from switched access charges paid by these
carriers for these services. The amount of switched access charge revenues that Frontier will receive for these services is
regutated by the FCC and state regulatory agencies and the rate Frontfer can charge for terminating switched access is expected
to dedfine in 2017.

In 2011, the FCC adopted the 2011 Order regarding Intercarrier Compensation, which is the payment framework that
governs how camiers compensate each other for the exchange of interstate traffic. The 2011 Order began a multi-year transition
that moves the rate for terminating traffic to near zero by 2017, Frontier is permitted to recover a significant portion of those
revenues through end user rates and other replacement support mechanisms., Additionaily, the 2011 Order requires VolP providers
to pay interstate terminating intercennection charges and requirss all carriers terminating traffic to provide appropriate call
information, thus prohibiting so-called “phantom traffic.” The reform of the Universal Service Fund shifts the existing High-Cost
portion of the fund from supporting voice services fo supporting broadband deployment in high-cost areas. The 2011 Order
preempis the states with regard to the regulation of intrastale terminating access rates. The 2041 Order has been challenged in
court and ihe FCC was petitioned to reconsider various aspects of it. The only issue that remains active cn appes! is the ability of
competitive carriers tc assess Vol access charges.

The FCC also has an ongoing proceeding considering whether to make changes lo its reguiatory regime governing special
access services. When and how these proposed changes will be addressed is unknown and, accordingly, we cannot predict the
impact of future changes on our results of operations.

Cenrtain siates also have their own open proceedings to address reform to intrastate access charges and other infercarmrier
compensation and state universal service funds. Although the FCC has pre-empted state jurisdiction on most access charges,
many states could consider moving forward with their proceedings. We cannot predict when or how these matters will be decided
or the effect on our subsidy or switched access revenues. However, future reductions in our subsidy or switched access revenues
may directly affect our profitability and cash flows as those regulatery revenues de not have an equal level of associated variable
expenses.

We are refiant on support funds provided under federal and state Jaws.

A portion of Frontier’s total revenues (3626 million, or 7%, in 2016 and $500 milken, or 9%, in 2015) are derived from
federal and state subsidies for rural and high-cost suppori, commonly referred to as USF. The FCC's 2011 Qrder changed how
federal subsidies are calculated and disbursed, with these changes being phased-in beginning in: July 2012, These changes
transition the USF, which supports voice seqvices in high-cost areas, to the CAF, which supporis broadband deployment in high-
cost araas.,

Fulure reductions in these subsidies; or in our ability to recaver such fees, could have a material adverse effect on our
business or resuits of operations.
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Frontier and our industry will likely remain highly regqulated, and we could incur substantial compliance costs that
could censtrain our ability to compete in our target markets.

As an incumbent local exchange carrier, some of the services we offer are subject to significant regulation from federal,
state and local authorities. This regulation eould impact our ability to change our rates, espedially on our basic voice services and
our access rates, and could impose substantial compliance costs on us, Regulation could constrain our ability to compete and, in
some jurisdictions, may restrict cur ability to expand our service offerings. In addition, changes to the regulations that govemn our
business (including any implementation of the 2011 Order or the 2015 Order) may have an adverse effect on our business by
reducing {he allowable fees that we may charge, imposing additional compliance costs, reducing the amount of subsidies or
otherwise changing the nature of our operations and the competition in our industry. At this time it is unknown how these
regutations. will affect Frontier's operations or ability to compete in the future. This and other FCC rulemakings and state regulatory
proceedings, including these relaling to intercairier compensation, universal service and broadband services, could have a
substantial adverse impact on our operations.

Ir addition, on June 14, 2018, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit upheld the FCC's February 26, 2015 order
that changed the regutatory classification of broadband service from an “information service” to a “telecommunications service®. In
the Order, the FCC adopted specific obligations for fixed-mobife providers of broadband Intemet access services and specifically
prohibiled the: foilowing: blocking access to legat content, applications, services, or nen-harmiful devices; impairing or degrading
lawful Internet traffic on the basis of content, applications, services, or non-harmful devices; favoring some lawful Infernet traffic
ovar other lawful Intemet traffic In exchange fer consideration; and otherwise unreasonably harming consumers or edge providers,
and announced additional transparency requirements intended ta provide consumers more information about a providers network
management practices, performance, speed and data caps.

Our Internet access offerings could become subject to additional laws and regulations as they are adopted or applied to
the Internet. As the significance of the internet expands, federal, state and local govemments may pass jaws and adopt rules and
regutations, or apply existing laws and regulations te the Intemet (including Intemet access services), and related matters are
under consideration in both federal and state legislative and regulatory bodies. We cannot predict whether the outcome of pending
challenges to the FCC’s order cr future proceedings will prove beneficial or detrimental te our competitive postion.

Risks Relatad to Technology

We may be unable to meet the technological needs or expeciations of our customers, and may lose customers as
a resuit.

The telecommunications industry is subject to significant changes in technelogy, and repiacing ar upgrading our
infrastructure to keep pace with such technoiogical changes could result in significant capital expenditures. If we do not replace or
upgrade technology and equiprent as necessary, we may be unable to cempete effectively because we will not be able to meet
the needs or expectations of our customers,

In addition, enhancements to product offerings and the management of broadband speed and capacity issues may
influence our customers to consider other service providers, such as cable operators or wireless providers. We may be unable to
attract new or retain existing customers from cable companies due to their deployment of enhanced broadband and VolP
technology. In addition, new capacity services for wireless breadband technelogies may permit our competitors to offer broadband
data services to our customers througheut most or all of our service areas. Any resulting inability to atiract new or retain existing
eustomers cauld adversely impact our business and resulls of operations in a material manner,

Our services could be adversely affected and we may be subject to increased costs and claims in connection with
Internet and systems security and malicious practices.

We use encryption and authentication technology licensed from third parties to provide secure transmission of confidential
information, including our business data and customer information. We also rely on employees in our network operations centers,
data centers, call centers and retail stores to follow our procedures when handling such information. Any unauthorized access,
computer viruses, accidental or intentional release of confidential information or other disruptions eould result in increased costs,
customer dissatisfaction leading to foss of customers and revenues, and fines and other liabilities.
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In addition, Fronfier ar Frontier's customers using our network to access the Internet may become victim to malicicus and
ahusive Intemet aclivities, including unsaolicited mass advertising ("spam”}, peer-to-peer file sharing, distribution of viruses, worms

and other destructive or disruptive software. These activities could adversely affect our network, result in excessive call volume at
our ¢all centers and damage aur or our customers’ equipment and data,

Frontier maintains security measures, disaster recovery plans and business continuity plans for its business. Howsver,
Frontier's information fechnology networks and infrasiruciure may nonetheless be vulnerable to damage, disruptions or shutdowns
due to attack by hackers or breaches, employee error or malfeasance, power outages, computer viruges, telecommunication or
utility faifures, systems failures, natural disasters or other catastrophic events. Any such events could result in legal claims or
proceedings, lability or penalties, disruption in operations, misappraptiation of sensilive data, damage to Frontier's reputation and
costly response measures, which could adversely affect Frontier’s business. There can be no assurance that such disruptions or
misappropriations and the resulting repercussians will nat be material to our resulis of operations, financial condition or cash flows.
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Itern 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Naone.

Item 2. Properties

We own property, which consists primarily of land and buildings, office and warehouse facilities, central office equipmant, software,
autside plant and related eguipment. Cutside communications plant includes aerial and underground cable, conduit, poles and
wires, Central office equipment includes digital switches and peripherat equipment. As such, our properties do not provide a basis
for description by character or location of principat units. Al of our property is considered to be in good working condition and
suitable for its intended purpose.

Our gross investment in property, by category, as of December 31, 2016, was as follows:

{% in mifligns]

Land ] 235
Buiidings and leasehold improvements 2,300
General support 1,495
Central officefelectronic circuit equipment 7,683
Pales 285
Cable, fiber and wire 10,267
Conduit 4,611
Other 52
Construction work in progress 803
Total 3 25,541

Item 3. legal Proceedings

3ee Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part iV of this report,

We are party to various legal proceedings {including individual, class and putative class actions) arising In the normat course of our
business covering a wide range of matlers and types of claims including, but net limited to, general contracts, billing disputes,
rights of access, taxes and surcharges, consumer protection, trademark and patent infringement, empfoymert, regulatory, tort,
claims of competitors and disputes with other cariers, Litigation is subject to uncertainty and the outcome of individual matters is
not predictable. However, we believe that the ultimate resclution of all such matters, affer considering insurance coverage or other
indemnities to which we are entitfed, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of aperations, or cash
flows.

itemd. Mine Safety Disclosures
Nat applicable,
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PART N
{tem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is currently traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbal FTR. The amount and timing of
dividends payable on our common stack are within the sole discretion of our Board of Directors. On Becamber 11, 2014, our Board
of Directors approved a 5% increase over the 2014 dividend rate in the planned quarterly cash dividend rate, commencing with the
dividend for the first quarter of 2015. Dividends on shares of the Series A Preferred Stock are payable on a cumulative basis when,
as and if declared by our Board of Directors {or an authorized committee thereof) at an annual rate of 11.125% on the liquidation
preference of $100.00 per share, on the last business day of March, June, September and December of each year, up to the
mandatory conversion date of June 29, 2018. Serfes A Preferred Stock dividends of $214 million and $120 million were paid in
2016 and 2015, respectively, Cash dividends paid to common shareholders were $493 millicn and $458 million in 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The dectaration and payment of future dividends on our commeon stock is at the discretion of our Board of Directors,
and will depand upon many factors, including cur financial condition, resuifs of operations, growih prospects, funding
requirements, payment of cumulative dividends on Series A Preferred Slock, applicable law, restrictions in agreements goveming
our indebtedness and ather factors our Board of Directors deem relevant,

A portion of the dividends on commen stock is classified as total ordinary dividends and represents qualified dividends, and a
portion of the dividends is classified as non-dividend distributions and represents a refurn of capital. For the year ended December
31, 2018, all dividends on common stock were classified as non-dividend distributions and represented a return of capital.

The following table indicates the high and low intra-day sales prices per share of common stock, as reperted by the NASDAQ
Global Setect Market, and sets forth dividends paid per share of comman stock during the periods indicated,

2018 2015
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quarter $ 58 § 381 8 0.105 $ 846 § 638 & 0,105
Second Quarter $ 5% $ 457 5 2.105 $ 750 % 4.96 3 0.105
Third Quarter 3 522 § 407 % 8.105 $ 584 § 4.19 3 0.105
Fourth Quarter 5 438 § 3.10 % 0.108 % 547 % 4.44 $ 0105

As of February 10, 2017, the approximate number of securily holders of record of our comimon stock was 419,210, This
information was oblained from our transfer agent, Computershare Inc.
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STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The fellowing performance graph compares the cumulative tatal return of our common stock to the S&P 500 Stock Index and to
the S&P Telecommunication Services Index for the five-year peried commencing December 31, 2011,

COMPARISOH OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURM
Bty Feomber Communications Corporalion, the B5P S00 ndex,
ting the SEP Telscommunmstlion Serucis ndax
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d— Frontier € | Corparati — i e - SEE SO0 vdex Auene SRE Tl ieatipn Sendoes

The graph assumes that $100 was invesied on Becernber 31, 2011 in each of our common stock, the S&P 500 Stock Index and
the S&P Telecommunication Services Index and that all dividends were reinvested.

INBEXED RETURNS
Base Years Ending
Period
Company / Index 211 12112 12/13 12114 12/45 1216
Frontler Communications Corporation 100 9118 i08.83  166.51 12617 100.44
S&P 500 Index 100 14600 5357 17460 {77.04 188.18
S&P Telecommunication Services 100 115 3% 431.83 135.82 140 44 175,42

The foregoing performance graph and related information shall not be deemed “soliciting malerial” or to be “filed” with the SEC, nor
shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future filings under the Securiies Act of 1932 or the Securilties
Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended, except to the extent we specifically incorpoarate it by reference into such filing.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES, USE OF PROCEEDS FROM REGISTERED SECURITIES
There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the fourth quarter of 2016.
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total Number of Shares
Period Purchased

Average Price Paid per
Share

October 1, 2016 to Octabar 31, 2016
Employee Transattions 2,070

November 1, 2016 to Navember 30, 2016
Employee Transactions ' 2,384

December 1, 2018 to December 31, 2016
Employee Transactions " 5,205

Totals October 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016
Emptoyee Transactions " 9,684

3 4,02

$ 3,25

5 3.68

$ 3.64

™ fncludes restricted shares withheld {(under the terms of grants under employee stock compensation plans) to offset minimum tax withhalding
chligations that occur upon the vesting of restricted shares. Frontiers stock compensation plans provide fhat the value of shares withhald

shall be the average of the high and tow price of our commeon stock on the date the relevant transaction occurs.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The foflowing tables present selected historical consolidated financial information of Frontier for the periods indicated. The selected
historical consolidaied financial information of Frontier as of and for each of the five fiscal years in the period ended December 31,
2016 has been derived from Frontier's historical consolidated financial statemnents. The selected historical consolidated financial
information as of December 31, 2016 and 2018 and for each of the years in the three-year pericd ended December 31, 2016 is
derived from the audited historical consclidated financial statements of Frontier included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The
selected historical consolidated financial information as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 and for each of the years ended
Decembear 31, 2013 and 2012 is derived from the audited histerical consolidated financial statements of Frontier not included in
this Form 10-K,

if in mitlions. s share amaunts Year Endedt Decemnber 31, ™

2016 2018 2014 2013 2012
Revenua § BAS 3 5578 & 4772 § 4762 % 5012
Operatmy Incame 3 L T45 & 820 5 881 % BET
Het income (loss) w15 5 (373 5 {186y & 132 &8 1ns % 153

het Ingome [loss) atirbutable to Frontier

common shareholders * &1 E g (587} § {316) 8 133 s 13 8 137
Metincame (loss) afiributable 1o Fronter

camman shargholders per basic

sham B $ {051 & wam § 013 8 011§ 0,44
Netincame {joss) attibuiable to Frondier

commen shareholders par difuled

share R 5 {051 % I s 013 5 ['REI- 0.3
Cash dividends declased (and paid) par

common share 5 042 % o4z § Q40 § 040 & 0.40
Cash dividands declared (and paid) per share

of Series A Freferred Stock § 11,125 § g4 g - & - %

As of Devemnber 31,

14 in miltiens] 206 2015 2014 2012 2012
Tetgl assets % 23013 § 27084 0§ 18810 & 16540 % 17.577
Leng-lerm debi 5 17560 3 15508 % 9393 § THIO ¥ 82324
Tetal shareholders' equity of Frontier % 4518 % 5614 5 BEEE 3 4068 § 4,108

(10perating results include acilvities forthe CTF operations from the date of their acquisiticn from Verizon on Agrit 1, 2016 and the Cannecticut
operations from the date of their acquisition from AT&T on Oclnbar 24, 2014,

(20perating results include the pre-tax impacts of fosses on retirement of debt of $169 million {$59 mitlion, or $0,10 per share, after tax) and $90
million ($57 million, or $0.08 per share, after tax) for 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(})Operating results include pre-tax acquisition and integrafion costs of $438 milion ($283 million, or $0.24 per share, after tax), $238 million
{5133 million, or $0.12 per share, after tax), $142 million {$91 million, or $0.08 per share, after tax), $10 milfion ($6 million, or $0.01 per share,
after tax) and $82 million ($51 million, or $0.05 per share, after {ax) for 2018, 2015, 2614, 2013 and 2012, respactively.

(4)Operating results include pre-tax restructuring costs and other charges of $91 million {$58 million. or $0.05 per share, after tax), $2 miilion ($1
million after tax), $2 miltion ($1 million, after tax}, $12 million {$7 million, or $0.01 per share, after tax) and $32 million (520 million, or $0.02 per
share, after tax} for 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

{5} Operating results include pre-tax pension setlement costs of $44 milior ($27 million, or $0.03 per share, after tax} for 2013.

(6)Represents dividends on the 11.125% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, from the issuance date of June 10, 2015 through
December 31, 2015,
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ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Introduction

{a) Results of Operations
2016 Compared to 2015

On April 1, 2016, we completed our acquisition of Verizon's wireline properties in California, Texas, and Florida (the CTF
Acquisition). Froniier's scope of operations and balance sheet chanlgedbma{errall as a resulf of the completion of the CTF
Acquisition. Historical financial and OPeratlng dafa presented for Frontier includes the results of the CTF Operations that were
acguired in the CTF Acquisition from the date of acquisition on April 1, 2016 and is nof indicative of future operating results. The
financial discussion below includes a comparative analysis of our resulls of operations on a historical basis for Frontier operations
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, Unless otherwise noted, the variance e)f:planalmns discussed below
;are2 81aged upon an analysis of the 2016 financial data for Frontier legacy operations {excluding the CTF Operations) in comparisen
o .

The sections below include tables that present customer counts, average montily revenue per customer (ARPC) and residential
customer chum which we define as the average of the amount of residential customer deactivations during the month divided by
the number of residential customers at the beginning of the month. The following also categorizes revenue into customer revenue
(residential and business) and regulatory revenue (switched access and subsidy). The decline in the number of customers was
partially offset by increased penetration of additional higher revenie generating products and services sold to both residential and
husiness customers, which has increased our average monthly revenue per customer in 2018 as compared to 2015. Similar to
other wireline providers, we have experienced declines in the number of traditional voice customers, switched access minutes of
use and rates per switched access minute of use, due {o the FCC's intercarrier compensation reform, as a result of competition
and the availability of subslitutes, a frend which we expect will continue.

Management believes that residential customer counts and average monthly revenue per customer are imporant factors in
evaluating our residential customer trends. Among the key services we provide fo residential customers are voice service, data
service and videp service. We continue to explore the potential to provide additional services to our customer base, with the
chjective of meeting alt of our customers’ communications needs.
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2016 CUSTOMER RELATED METRICS COMPARED TO 2015

A5 of of for the year ended December 31,

2016 % Increase (Decrease) 2015

Customers (in thousands) 53g3 m 58 % 3,413
Residential customer metrics;
Custamers (I thousands) 4831 = 51 % 3424
Average monthly residenlial

revenue per customer $ 77.47 21% 5 63.93
Cuslomer monthiy chum 1.98% 9% 1.82%
Business custamer shetrics:
Custamers {in thousands} 502 T4 % 289
Avarage monthly business

revehue per cusiomer g 873.72 (21% 5 6O0.65
Broadhand subseribers (in thousands) 4271 = 73% 2467
Videa subscribers {in thousands) 1419 = 156 % 554
Switched access minutes of use (in thousands) 19,450 27 % 15,327
Employees 28,332 45 % 18,160

(112,283,000 residential customers, 250,000 business customers and 2,533,000 total customers were acquired at the lime of the
April 2018 CTF Acquisition,
212,052,000 broadband subscribers and 1,165,000 video subscribers were acquired at the time of the April 2016 CTF Acquisition.

Cusfomer Trends

We provide service and product oplions in our residential and business offerings to the customer base in each of our markets
which results in a better customer experience. that allows us to maximize retention of existing customers and attract new
customers. As of December 31, 20186, 63% of our residential broadband customers were subscribed to at least one other service
offering.

During 2016, we gained approximately 2.0 million customers, net, as compared to a luss of 96,000 customers, net, in 2015.
Although we added approximately 2.5 million customers in 2016 following the CTF Acquisition, we lost & net of approximately
553,000 customers across all of our markets. These customer losses were more heavily weighted in the newly acquired CTF
markets due to transifion disruptions following the acquisition, resuiting in higher than normal custorner chumn, as well as the
suspensian of collection activities prior to and after the closing of the CTF Acquisitien, and the suspension of marketing efforts for
a period of time following the acquisition. These actions resulted in fewer additions than would otherwise have been achieved.
Higher than normal customer losses are expected to continue into 2017 as collections efforts are caught-up for definquent
accounts and marketing efforts ramp up.

We had approximalely 4.9 million and 3.1 million total residential cusiomers as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Although we added approximately 2.3 million total residential customers attributable to the CTF Acguisition in 2015, we lost
approximately 516,000 residential customers, net, during 2016, composed of losses in both our legacy markets and in the CTF
markets, principally driven by declines in veice sustomers. Our residential customer monthly chum was 1.98% far 2016. Average
manthly residential revenue per customer {fesidential ARPC) increased $13.54, or 21%, to $77.47 during 2016 as compared to
2013. The overall increase in residential ARPC is a result of higher video revenue from our GTF Operalicns and improvernents in
data services revenue for our legacy operations, partially offset by lower voice services revenue. We expect to improve our video
and data subscriber trends for our Frontier legacy and CTF cperations. We anlicipate continuing declines in voice services
revenue as fewer residential customers subscribe to landling voice services, Frontier expects continuing increases in data services
revenue, primarily driven by increased broadband subscribers, and continuing declines in voice services revenue.
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We had approximately 0.5 milion and £.3 million total business customers as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Althaugh we added 250,000 total business cusiomers atiributable to the CTF Acquisition in 2618, we lost approximately 38,000
business custcmers, net in 2016, composed of losses in both our legacy markets and in the CTF markets, Average monthly
business revenue per customer (business ARPC) decreased $17.16, or 2%, to $673.72 during 2016 as compared o 2015. The
husiness ARPC decrease is primarily attributable to our CTF markets having lower ARPC per SME (small business, medium
business and larger enterprise customers) customer and proportionally fewer wholesale cusiomers refative {o total business
customers as compared to our legacy markets. Frontier expects the declines in voice sarvices revenue and wireless backhaut
revenues from business customers te continue in 2017, mitigated, in pant, by increases in data services revenue. We have seen
moedest increases in our revenues from smallifmediunyenterprise (SME) customers throughout 2016, and our Ethernet product
revenues from our SME and carrier customers has grown by 8% for the Frontier legacy operations dusing 2016.

At Decemnber 31, 2016, we had approximately 1.8 million more broadband subscribers than we did at December 31, 2015, We
added 2,052,000 subscribers as part of the CTF Acquisition; however, we lost approximately 243,000 net subscribers, primarily
due to fewer gross activations and higher custormer churn, At Decermber 31, 2016, 57% of our consolidated residential breadband
cusiomers subscribed to speeds in excess of our 6 Mbps basic speed tier, up from 29% at December 31, 2015.

We offer videa services under the Vantage brand to our customers in Connecticul, South Carolinz, Minnesota, and Hlincis and
under the FIOS* brand in California, Texas, and Florida {and con a limited basis in Indiana, Oregon and Washington). We also offer
salelite TV video service to our customers under an agency relationship with DISH® in all of cur markets. During the year, we
added 1,165,000 video subscribers in the CTF Acquisition. For the full year, we lost approximately 300,000 net video subscribers
across all markets. At December 31, 2016, we had 1.14 million linear video subscribers that are served with FiOS or Vantage
video service. In addition to our linear video subscribers, we have 274,000 DiSH satellite video customers.

2016 REVENUE COMPARED TO 2015

Far the Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015
Frontier Leqscy {excluding CTF Operations)
Consclidated CTF § Increase. % tncrease
($.in mifligns) Amoint Cperations Amounl {Decraase) {Decrease) Amount
Voice services 5 2886 § 1,077 % 1808 & (213) {41} % § 2,022
Diata and Interet services a3.892 1,368 2,327 [§[V] {0} % 2337
Video services 1,244 978 266 (19} 7% 285
Other 276 26 250 {5) (2} % 266
Customer revenus 8,088 3,447 4 652 (247} {5} % 4,899
Switched access and
subsidy 787 175 g22 (55) {8y % 677
Tota revenue $ 8536 % 3622 § 5274 5 (302) 5) % 5 5,576
For the Year Ended December 31,
2018 2015
Frentier L egacy (excfuding CTF Operalinhs}
Caonsolidated CTF $ Increase % Increase
(& in milfions) Amounl Operations Amount {Decregag) (Decrgase) Amoun
Residenlial B 4383 % 2082 % 2,281 % {141} 8) % 5 2,432
Business 3716 1,355 2.381 {106} 4 % 2467
Customer revenug 8,089 3447 4,652 (247} (5) % 4,899
Switched aceess and
subsldy 767 175 522 {55) {8) % 677
Total revenue $ 8806 3 3822 % 5274 % {302} (5) % 5 5576

29

hitps:/iwww.sec.gov/Archivesfedgar/data/20520/000002052017000003/f-20161231x 10K tm 30107



712012017

2016 Form 10K

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
REVENUE

We generate revenues primarily through either a monthly recurring fee or a fee based on usage, and revenue recognition is not
dependent upon significant judgments by management, with the exception of a determination of a provision for uncollectible
amounts.

Consolidated total revenue for 2016 increased $3,320 million to $8,896 milion as compared to 2015. Excluding addiional revenue
of $3,622 million in 2016 attributable to CTF operations, our revenue for 2016 decreased $302 million, or 5%, as compared to
2015, This decline in 2018 is primarily the result of decreases in voice sarvices revenues and lower switched and nonswitched
access revenue, partially offset by an increase in data services revenue, each as described in more detail below.

Custarmer revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018 increased $3,200 million to $8,099 million as compared to 2015,
Excluding additional customer revenue of $3,447 miliion aftibutable to the CTF Operations, our customer revenue for 2016
decreased $247 million, or 5%, as compared to 2015.

Consclidated residential customer revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016 increased $1,951 million, or 80%, as compared
to 2015. Consolidated residential customer revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016 included $2,092 miffion of revenue
attributable to the CTF Operations. Residential cusfemer revenues for our legacy operations for the year ended December 31,
2016 decreased $147 million, or 8%, compared to 2015, primarily as a result of decreases in voice services revenue, partially
offset by increases in data services revenue. Similar o other wireline providers, we have experienced declines in the number of
traditional voice customers and switched access minutes of use as a result of competition and the availability of substitules, a
frend we expect to continue. The consolidated monthly average revenue per customer {ARPC) for our residential customers
increased 21% for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to 2015, The overall increase in residential ARPC is a result
of higher videa revenue from our CTF Gperations and improvements in data services revenue for our legacy operations, partially
offset by lower vaice services revenue,

Consolidated business customer revenue for 2016 increased $1,249 million, or 51%, as compared io 2015, Consolidated
business customer revenue for 2016 included $1,355 million of revenue attributable to the CTF Operations. Business customer
revenue for our legacy operations declined $106 miltion, or 4%, as compared lo 2015, principally as a result of decreases in our
voice services revenue and wircless backhaul revenue. The consolidated ARPC for our business customers decreased 2%, for the
year ended December 31, 2016 as compared with 2015. The business ARPC decrease is primarily attributable to our CTF
markets having lower ARPC per SME (small business, medium business and larger enterprise custormers) customer and
proportionally fewer wholesale customers refative to total business custamers as compared to our legacy markets.

Consclidated switched access and subsidy revenue of $797 million represented 9% of our revenues for 2016. Switched access
revenue was $170 millian in 2016, or 2% of our revenues, down from $177 million, or 3% of our revanues, in 2015. The Report and
Order released by the FCC on November 18, 2011 (the. 2011 Order) provided for the gradual elimination of terminating traffic
charges by 2017 with a related decline in operating expenses, Switched access revenue dedlined sequentially in the third quarter
of 2018, reflecting the rate reductions mandated by the 2011 Order, and we anticipate that we have experienced nearly all of the
rate decline related to the 2011 Order. YWe have been able to recover a significant portion of these lost revenues through end user
rates and other replacement support mechanisms, a trend we expect wilt continue throughout 2017, We expect declining revenue
trends in switched access revenue lo continue in 2017 in our legacy operations, Subsidy revenue, including CAF Phase |l
subsidies, was $628 million in 2016, or 7% of our revenues, which increased from $500 million, or 9% of our revenues, in 2015.

Woe categorize our products, services and other revenues among the following five categories:

Vo ervices )
Voice services include traditional local and long distance wireline services, data-based Voice over Intemet Protocol (VolR)
services, as wall as voice messaging services offered to our residential and business customers. Voice services also include the
fong distance voice origination and termination services that we provide to our business customers and other carriers,

Voice services revenue for 2018 decreased as compared with 2015, primarily due to the continued loss of voice customers and, to

a lesser extent, decreases in individual feature packages, as well as long distance revenue among those customers that do not
have a bundled long distance plan, partially offset by increased lacal voice charges to residential and business end users.
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Data and inte i

Data and Intemet services Inclutde broadband services for residential and business customers. We provide data transmission
services to high velume business customers and other carriers with dedicated high capacity circults (*nonswitched access”)
including services to wireless providers {*wireless backhaul"). In addition, we offer our Frontier Secure suite of products, induding
compuier security, cloud backup and sharing, identity protection and eguipment insurance. Frontier Secure also provides technicat
support services for businesses.

Daia and Internet services revenue for 2016 decreased as compared with 2015, Data services revenues for 2016 increased $45
million, or 3%, primarily due to higher Frontier Secure revenues. Nonswitched access revenues decreased $55 million, or 6%,
primarily due to lower monthly recurring revenues for wireless hackhaul and other carrier services. We expect wireless data usage
to continue fo increase, which may drive the need for additional wireless backhaul capacity. Despite the need for additional
capacity, in the near term, we anticipate that our cverall wireless backhaul revenues (which comprise approximately 3% of our total
revenues) will continue to be subject to decline in 2017, as our carrier customers migrate to Ethemnet solutions at lower price points
or migrate io our competitors,

Videg Services
Video senvices include revenues generated from services provided directly to residential customers thraugh the FiOS video and
Vantage video brands, and through DISH satellite TV services,

Video services for 2016 decreased primarily due to a decrease in the total number of video subscribers.

Other .
Other customer revenue includes sales of customer premise equipment to our business customers and directory services, less our
provision for bad debts.

Other revenues for 2016 decreased primarily due to jower directory services revenue.

Switched Access and Subsidy

Switched access and subsidy revenues include revenues derived from aflowing other camiers to use our network to criginate
and/or terminate their lecal and fong distance voice traffic (“switched access”). These services are pamarily billed on a minutes-of-
use basis applying teriffed rates filed with the FCC or state agencies. We also receive cost subsidies from state and federat
authorities, including the Connect America Fund.

Switched access and subsidy revenue for 2018 decreased as compared to 2015. Subsidy revenues decreased $16 million, or 3%
in 2016, primarily attributable to the one-time true-up payments and phasedown support recegnized in 2015 in connection with the
CAf Phase |t program. Switched access revenue decreased $39 million, or 22%, in 2016 primarily due to the impact of the
decline in minutes of use related to access line losses and the displacement of minutes of use by wireless and other
communications services, combined with the lower rates enacted by the FCC’s intercarrier compensation,
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2016 OPERATING EXPENSES COMPARED TO 2015

NETWORK ACCESS FXPENSE
For the Year Endsd December 31,
2016 2015
Frontier Legacy (exciuding CTF Operations}
Consolidated CTF $ Increase % Increase
{4 in aillions) Ampunt QOperations Amottat (Decreass) (Decrease) Amaount
Network access expenses % 1470 § B5Z 8 618 § (22) (3) % 3 640

Network access expenses include access charges and other third-party costs direclly attributable te conneciing customer Iocations
to our network and video content costs. Such access charges and ather third-party costs exclude network related expenses,
depreciation and amortization, and employee related expenses,

Network access expenses for 2016 decreased in our legacy markets, primarily due to lower long distance costs and video content
costs as a result of a decline in video customers, partialiy offset by increases in customer premise equipment costs, pole and
conduit rental expense, and Fronifer Secure costs,

NETWORK RELATED EXPENSES

For lhe Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015
Frontier Eegacy (excluding CTF Operations)
Consolidated CTF 5 Increase % Increase
(£ in mifffons) Amount Opearations Amount (Decreaze) (Decrease) Amount
Metwork retated expenses % 1887 % 623 % 1264 § {23) 2} % § 1,287

Network related expenses include expenses associated with the delivery of services to customers and the operation and
maintenance of our network, such as facility rent, utifities, maintenance and other costs, as well as salaries, wages and related
benefits associated with personnel who are responsible for the delivery of services, operation and maintenance of our network.

Network refated expenses for 2016 decreased due to lower compensation costs, primarily related to decreased employee
headcount, and certain benefits, including incentive compensation, pension and OPEB expense (as discussed below), and a
reduction in rentat costs for vehicles under operating leases that were medified during 2016, resulting In the classification as
capital leases.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015
—_Fronlisr Legacy (exciuding CTF Qperations)
Cansclidated CTF $ Increase % Increase
(40 milffions) Amound Qperations Amaunl {Decrease} (Dacrease) Amount
Selling, general and
administrative expenses % 2093 § 731 8 1,362 % 16 1 % S 1,345

Selling, general and administrative expenses {SG&A expenses) include the salaries, wages and related benefits and the related
costs of corporate and sales personnel, travel, insurance, non-network related rent, adverlising and other administrative
EXpeEnses.

SGAA expenses for 2016 increased due to higher costs for compensation, primarily related to increased employee headcount due
to additional services provided by Frontier Secure, and certain benefits, including pension and OPEB expense (as discussed
below}, pariially offset by lower incentive compensation for the year.
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Pension and OPEE Costs

Frontier allocates Pension and OPEB costs to network related expenses and SG&A expenses. Total consolidated pension and
OPEB costs, excluding special termination benefits of 526 million in 2018, for tha years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
were as follows:

For the year ended Decembear 37,

I itficn: 2016 20715
Telal penston/OFPER expense % 129 E 95
Less: capitalized inta
capiat expenditures {26} (20
Net pension/OPEDB costs 3 104 5 75

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

For the year ended December 31,

20156 2015
Frontier L egacy {excluding CYF Operations)
Consolidated CTF § Increase % Increase
iy it Amount Operalions Amount (Decrease) {Decrease) Amount
Depreciation expense 5 1388 & 439 % G949 % {34) {3 % § 983
Amortization expense 643 ‘361 282 (55} {16} %% 337
5 2031 B 800 % 1231 % {85} {7} % ] 1,320

Depreciaticn and amortization expense for 2016 decreased primarily due fo the accelerated method of amortization related fo the
cusfomer base that was acquired in our 2010 Acquisition with Verizon and in the Connecticut Acquisition, combinad with changes
in the remaining useful lives of certain plant assets and a lower net asset base.

RESTRUCTURING COSTS AND OTHER CHARGES

For the year ended Decerber 31,

2018 2015
Fronbier Lenacy (excluding CTF Operallons;
Consolidated CTE $ Increase % Increase
(& i miflions) Amount Operations Amaunt (Decrease} (Decrease) Amotint
Restruciuring costs and other charges -1 M8 34 5 57 & L NM % % 2

NM — Not Meaningful
Restructuring costs and other charges increased in 2016 compared io 2015 primarily due to a reduction in the warkforce of

approximately 1,950 employees resuiting in an increase in severance ang related expenses of 330 million and
pension/OPEB special terminaiion benefit enhancements of $25 million.
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2015 Compared to 2014
On Cctober 24, 2014, Frontier completed the Conneclicut Acquisition. The financial discussion below includes a comparalive
analysis of our resuits of operafions on a historical basis for our Frontier operations as of and for the years endad December 31,
2015 and 2014. Unless otherwise noted, the vanance explanations discussed below are based upon an analysis of the 2015
financial data for Frontier legacy operations (excluding the Connecticut Operations) in comparison to 2014 financial data for
Frontier legacy operations (excluding the Connecticut Operations).

2015 CUSTOMER RELATED METRICS COMPARED TO 2014

As of or for the year entdad Dacermber 31,

2015 % Increase (Decrease) 2014

Customears (in ihousands) 343 (3)% 3810
Residential customer mtrics:
Customers (in thousands) 3,124 (3% 3205 ™
Average monthily residential

revenue per cuslomsy 5 63.93 5% $ 61.11
Customer monthly chum 1.82% 5% 1.73%
Business customar mefrics:
Customers {in thousands) 284 (B)% 305 -
Average monthly business

revenue per customer § 590,88 4% 5 661.15
Broadbang subszcribers (in housands} 2.482 4% 2380 =@
Video subscribers (in thousands) 554 {9)% 582 &
Swilched sccess minules of use (n thousands) 15,327 1% 15193
Employees 19,160 10 % 17,354

(466,000 residential customers, 49,000 business customers and 517,000 total customers were acquired at the time of the
October 2014 Connecticut Acquisition.

385,000 broadband subscribers and 192,000 video subscribers were acquired at the time of the October 2014 Connecticut
Acquisition.

Customer Trends
During 2015, we Jost 96,000 customers, net, compared to a gain of 435,000 customers, net, in 2014. Although we added 517,000

custemers in 2014 following the Connecticut Acquisition, we lost 82,000 customers, net, in 2014 across all of our markets.

We had approximately 3.1 million and 3.2 million totat residential custorners as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Although we added 468,000 total residential customers aftributable to the Connecticut Acguisition in 2014, we lost approximately
81,000 and 67,000 residential customers, net during 2015 and 2014, respectively, composed of losses in bath our legacy markets
and in the Connecticut markets, principally driven by declines in voice customers. Cur residential customer monthly chum was
1.82% and 1.73% for 2015 and 2014, respectively. Residential ARPC increased $2.82, or 5%, to $63.93 during 2015 as compared
o 2014. The overall increase in residential ARPC is due to a higher percentage of Frontier's residential customers who subscribe
le our broadband services, the increase in our Frontier TV and FiQOS-branded video customers, which is primarity aftributable to
aur Conneclicut Operatiens, and the increase in custorners subscribed to multiple sarvices.

We had approximately 6.3 million total business customers as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. Although we added 49,000 total
business customers attributable to the Connecticut Acquisition in 2014, we lost approximately 16,000 and 15,000 business
customers, net, during 2015 and 2014, respectively. Business ARPC increased $29.73, or 4%, to $680.88 during 2015 as
compared to 2014. The overall increase in business ARPC is pimarily due 1o declining customer counts for our small business
customers that carry a lower ARPC.
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During 2015, Frontier added approximately 102,000 net broadband subscribers. During 2014, Frontier added approximately
493,000 (including 383,000 from the Conneclicut Acquisition) net broadband subscribers. As of December 31, 2015,
approximately 64% of our residential broadband cusiomers subscribed to a bundle of services. As of December 31, 2015, we were
able to offer broadband to approximately 7.9 millien households, or 93% of the 8.5 million households in our rrarkets. The increase
in broadband subscribers contributed to our improved data services revenue performance. At Decemnber 31, 2015, 29% of ouwr
regidential breadband customers subscribed to speeds in excess of our 6 Mbps basic speed fier, up from 24% at December 31,
2014, We offer FIQS-branded video services in three states, Frontier Tvibranded video services in Connecticut and satellite video
services through DISH throughout our territories. We lost 28,060 video subscribers, net during 2015 primarily due to the foss of
DISH subscribers. At December 31, 2015, we had 554,000 videc customers.

2015 REVENUE COMPARED TO 2014

For the Year Ended D ber 31,

2015 2014

Frontier Legacy
{excluding Connecticut Dperations}

Frantier Legacy

[exciuding
Connecticut
Consolidated  Connecticut 51 % | Gonsolidated  © Operafians)
(§ i evitions) Amotn! Operations Amounl {Decrease) {Decrease) Arnoand Operations Amoun
Woice sefvices 5 2022 - as53 5 1,668 3 {208) fA1)1% 5 1.851 5 T4 3 1,877
Dala and Internet services 2337 424 1,913 53 3% 1,945 8B 1,860
Video services 285 180 65 - - 134 k] a5
Other 255 35 216 2 1 % 220 [ 214
Customer revenie 4,899 1.005 3853 {153 (43 4,253 207 4,046
Bwilched acceas and
subsidy BY7 43 B34 124 24 % 518 4 518
Folal revenue 5 5576 3 1.048 5 4_52_7 3 {222 {11% 5 4,772 5 215 3 4 558
For Ine Year Entled £ ber 31,
2015 2014
Frontier Legacy
{excluding Connecticut Qperations}
Fronter Legacy
{excluing
Connecticul
G i d C icut § hnurease % Increase Consefidated Connscticul Oparafions}

In emitions) Amount Operalions Amgunid {ftecreqse) {Dacraase) Amotnt Dperapons Amaunt
Resldential 5 2432 3 £41 % 186t 5 75 Ik 2082 g 18§ 1,976
Business 2,457 475 1.992 {78 [4) % 2,361 91 2,070

Customar reveanue 4 By 1,006 3.883 {153) [4) % 4253 207 4,045
Swnlchoed accass. and

subsidy af7 43 B34 124 24 % 515 ] 510

Tolal revanue 3 5576 5 1048 _ S 4537 _ % [29) % & 4772 & 18 % 4 556

REVENUE
Consolidated lotat revenue for 2015 increased $804 million to $5,576 million as compared to 2014. Excluding revenues attributable
to the Connecticut operations, our totaf revenue for 2015 decreased $29 million, or 1%, as compared to 2014, This decline in 2015
is primarily the result of decreases in voice services revenues and lower switched and nonswitched access revenue, parially offset
by an increase in data services revenue and subsidy revenue, each as described in more detail below.

Consolidated residential customer revenue for 2015 included $531 million of revenue attributable to the Conneciicut operations.
Consolidated residential customer revenue for cur Frontier legacy eperations declined 575 miliion, or
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4%, as compared with 2014, primarily as a result of decreases in voice services revenue, partially offset by increases in data
services revenue.

Consalidated business customer revenue for 2615 included $475 million of revenue altributable to the Connecticut operations.
Consolidated business customear revenue for our Frontier legacy operations declined $78 miflion, or 4%, as compared with 2014,
principally as & result of decreases in our vaice services revenue and wiraless backhaul revenue.

Consclidated switched access and subsidy revenue of $677 million represented 12% of our revenues for 2015. Switched access
reveriue was 5177 million in 2015, or 3% of our revenues, down from $201 million, oF 4% of our revenues, in 2014. Subsidy
reverue was $500 million in 2015, or 9% of our revenues, which increased from $319 miltion, or 7% of our reverues, in 2014,

Voice Services

Voice services revenues for 2015 decreased as compared with 2014, primarily due to $180 million, or 12%, in lower jocal and
enhanced services revenue. This decrease is primarily due to the continued loss of voice custfomers and, to a lesser exten,
decreases in individual features packages, partially offset by increased local voice charges to residential and business end
users. Long distance services revenue decreased $28 million, or 8%, primarily due to 2 10% decrease in minutes of use driven by
fewer customers, pariially offset by increased cost recovery surcharge rates.

Data and Intemet Servipes

Data and Intemet services revenues for 2015 intreased as compared with 2014, Nonswilched access revenues decreased $68
million, or 8%, primarity due to lower monthly recurring revenues for wireless backhaul and other carrier service revenues. These
decreases were more than offset by increases in data services ravenues of $121 million, or 12%, primarily due o a 4% increase in
the total number of broadband subscribers and higher Frentier Secure revenues.

Video Services
Video services revenue for 2015 remained the same as compared to 2014,

Other
Other revenues for 2015 remained relatively flat primarily due to changes in our provision fer bad debts and increased customer
premise equipment revenues, offset by lower directory services revenues.

Wi nd_Subsid
Switched access and subsidy revenue for 2015 increased as compared to 2014, Subsidy revenues increased $164 million, or 52%
in 2015, primarily due to the additional CAF Fhase || funding, which increased support by mere than $159 million in 2015,
Switched access revenue decreased $40 million, or 21%, in 2015 primarily due to the impact of a decline in minutes of use related
to access fine losses and the displacement of minutes of use by wireless and other communications services combined with the
lower rates enacted by the FCC's intercarrier compensation reform in July 2013,
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215 OPERATING EXPENSES COMPARED TO 2014
NETWORK ACCESS EXPENSE

Forthe Year Ended Decembser 21,

2015 2014
Frontier Legacy
{exciuding Connecticit Operations)
Frontier Legacy
{excluding
Connecteut
- i o it 51 o, | C Tdnkad o Operations)
(& in pvilliong} Amouani Opergiions Amounk {Decrease] {Decrease} Amount Operations Arngunl
hetwork goeess
ENpENsES ) a4l 3 220 ] 420 H {81 1% £ 465 1) 39 5 425

Netwaork access expenses for 2015 decreased, primarily due to lower long distance costs as a result of decreased minuies of use
and lower pole renfal costs, partially offset by an increase in network access expenses related to higher broadband subscriber

counts and costs for providing new circuits to our markets.

NETWORK RELATED EXPENSES

For the Year Ended Decernber 31,

2015

2014

Fromier |.ogacy
(excluding € Operahons)

Fronier Legacy
{excluding
Connecticut
Caonsolidated Cannechicul 3 Increase % [ntrease o C cticut Qperati
{§ in mithons) Amguni Operations Amount {Decrease) {Decrease) Amount Operations Amount
Network relaled
BXPENEES $ 1,287 5 182 1 1,105 5 a8 4% 3 1,118 1 a1 5 1,067

Network refated expenses for 2015 increased due fc higher costs for compensation, primarily due to siorm-refated cosis, and
certain benefits, incfuding pension and OPEB expense (as discussed bslow), and increased fleet and facilities costs, parlially

offsef by reduced instaltation and repair costs.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

For the Year Ended Decamber 21,

2018

2014

Frontier Legacy
{excluding Connsclicut Qperalicns}

Fronler Legacy

fexcluding
Conneclicut
c dated ¥ ey 5 Increase % i [+ = 18]
($.in mifians] Amount Dparahons Aroun {Dacraasa) {Deciease) Amaunt Operations Ameun
Sefling. general and
administrative
TRPENSES 3 1.346 5 245 5 1,100 3 44 4% 5 10868 5 30 5 1,056

SGE&A expenses for 2015 increased due to higher costs for compensation, primarily related to increased employee headcount due
to additionat services provided by Frontier Secure, and certain benpefits, including pension and OPEB expense {as discussed

above), partially offset by lower litigation and facilities costs.
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Pension and OPER Costs
Frontier allccates Pension and OPEB costs fo network related expenses and SG&A expenses. Tofal consolidated pension and

OPERB cosis for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Far the year ended December 31,

{3 in milions) 2015 2014
Total pensionOPEB expense s 95 S 74
Less: capilalized inlo
capital expenditures {20 (15}
Nel gension/OPEB costs g 75 b 59
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
For the Year Ended December 21,
2015 2014
Fremtiar Legacy
{@xcluding Connecticut Operations}
Frantier Lagazy
{axcluding
Cannocticul
v lidated C licut § ncrease % Increase C lidated Cor t Cpearalons)
{3 in mithgry) Amaunl Cperatiens Amount ;Deuease; {Decrease] Amount Oparatons Amount
Diepreciation expense § 983 & 204 5 FEi-I &) {20 % $ 235 % 3 5 757
Amortizalion exp 337 a7 240 1443 (15 % 204 20 28B4
$ 1320 & 01 _§ 109 3 162} G% 3 1138 8 58 § 1,881

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2015 decreased primarily due to the accelerated method of amortization related to the
customer base that was acquired in the 2010 Acquisition with Verizon, changes in the remaining useful lives of certain plant assets
and a lower net asset base.

ACQUISITION AND INTEGRATION COSTS
For lhe year ended Decamber 31,

2016 2015 2014
§ Increase % Increase & Increase % Increase
(&.in mifiians) Amount (Decrease) (Decrease) Amnotnt {Decrease) {Decrease] Amaunt
GTF Acquisition $ 435 s 235 122 % $ 196 & 198 100 %% & -
Connecticut Acguisition 1 {39) {98Y% 44 {103} (F2)% 142
Totaf acquisition and integration
costs g 436 5 200 85 % 3 238 _§ 94 65 % & 142

Acquisiion cosis include legal, financial advisory, accounting, regulatory and other related costs. Integration costs include
expenses that are incremental and directly related to the acquisition, and were incurred to integrate the network and information
technology platforms and te enable other integration inftiatives.

We invested $142 millien and $129 miflion in capital expenditures refated to the CTF Acquisition during the years ended Dacember
31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

We alse invested $24 million and $116 million in capital expenditures related to the Connactlicut Acquisition during the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSE
Far the Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
$ Increase % Increase § Increase % |ncreasa
{ in millions) Amount {Decrease) {Decreaze} Amgunt {Decrease) {Decrease) Amoun!
Investment and other
incoms, nel 5 20 $ 13 186 % s 7 5 (32} (82) % 8 29
Interest experse 5 153 $ 418 B Y $ 1,113 g 417 B0 % & 696
Ineome tax expense (benefity $ {250y 8 {85} 52 % g {185 § {185} MK % 5 ls}

NA — Not Meaningful

investment and Other Income, Net

Investment and other income, net for 2016 increased $13 million for 2 gain on expiration/setilement of customer advances
combined with higher inferest and dividend income of $6 millien, primarily due to interest earned on restricted cash during the first
guarter of 20186, partially offset by a decrease of §7 million due to a loss on debt exchanges.

Investment and other income, net for 2015 decreased due to a $25 miflicn gain on the sale of our minority interest in a wireless
partnership and a $12 million gain on the sale of an intangible asset in 2014, partially offset by higher interest and dividend income
of $5 million in 2015,

Interest expense

Interest expense for 2016 increased, ptimarily due {o addilional interest of $755 million in 2018 on the 35 billion senior notes
offering and the $1,625 million term loan facility related to the CTF Acquisifion. We incurred commitment fees of $14 million and
$184 million for the Verizon Bridge Facility {as defined below) related to the CTF Acquisition during 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Ouwr composite average borrowing rate as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was 8.55% and 8.99%, respectively.

Interest expense for 2015 increéased primarily dug o interest on the $6.6 billion senior notes offering completed in September
2015, as well as $184 million in commitment fees for the Verizon Bridge Facility (as defined below) related to the CTF Acquisition
as compared to the commitment fees of $23 million on the bridge loan facility related to the Connecticut Acquisition during 2014,
We also incurred additional interest in 2015 on the $1,900 million debt financing related to the Connecticut Acquisition,

Income tax expense (benefitf)

Income tax benefit for 2016 increased compared to 2015, primarily due to the increase in pretax ioss. The effective tax rate on our
pretax loss for 2016 was 40.2% as compared with 45.8% for 2015, Income taxes for 2016 include the impact of $36 million of tax
benefits resuiting primarily from the adjustment of deferred tax balances due to the CTF Acquisition in 2016.

Income tax expense (benefit) for 2015 was an income tax benefit of $165 million compared to income tax expense of $30 million
for 2014, The change in income tax expense (benefil) was primarily due to the change from pretax income to pretax loss. Our
effective tax rate was 45.8% for 2015 compared with 18.7% for 2014. Income laxes for 2015 include the impact of a $2 million
benefit arising from the adjustment of deferred tax balances and a $5 million benefit from the federal research and development
credit.

We received $120 million in tax refunds in 2016 as compared to net cash taxes paid of $28 million and $70 miflion in 2015 and
2014, respectively.

Net income fioss} attributable to Frontier cammon shareholders
Net income (loss) aitributable ic Frontier common sharehciders for 2016 was a net loss of $587 million, or $0.51 per share, as
compared to a net loss of $316 mittion, or $0.29 per share, in 2015 and net income of $133 million, or $0.13 per share, in 2014,
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(b} Ligquidity and Capital Resources
Analysis of Cash Flows

‘As of December 31, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents aggregating $522 million, Qur primary source of funds during 2016

was restricted and unrestricted cash, additional borrowings, along wilh cash generated from operations. In 2016, we used cash
flow from operations, restricted cash, and cash on hand fo principally fund all of our cash investing and financing activities,
primarily the CTF Acquisition, capital expenditures, dividends, and debt repayments. On April 1, 2018, we used the restricted cash
obtairred from net proceeds of the Séptember 2015 senior notes offering and June 2015 equity offerings, along with additionat
borrewings and cash on hand, to finance the CTF Acquisition.

At December 31, 2016, we had a working capital deficit of $788 million, including $363 million of long-term debt due within one
year, as compared to a working capilal surplus of $8,238 million at December 31, 2015. The decline in werking capital Is primarily
due fo a reduction in restricted cash and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $8,858 million, primarily related to funding the
CTF Acqguisition, and an increase in curent liabilities of $551 miflion.

Fio vided b erating Activith

Cash flows provided by operating activities increased $365 million, or 28%, to $1,666 miflien in 2016 as compared ic 2015. The
increase was primarily the result of the addition of our CTF operations, partially offset by unfavorable changes in working capital
atong with higher interest expense and acguisition and integration costs.

We received $120 miflion in tax refunds in 2016 as compared o net cash taxes paid of $28 million and $70 million in 2815 and
2014, respectively,

In connection with the CTF Acquisition, Frontier recognized acguisition and integration costs of $436 million during 2016 compared
1o $198 mitlion during 2015. interest expense of $755 million was incumed during 20186 related to the September 2015 debt offering
and the 2015 Credit Agreement (as defined below) compared to $189 million in interest expense during 2015. Additionally, Frontier
incurred §10 million of interest expense retated to the Verizon Bridge Facility in 2016 compared to $184 million during 2015,

in connection with the Cennecticut Acquisition, Frontier recognized 340 million and $142 million of acquisition and integration costs
incurred in 2015 and 2014, respectively, and $23 million of interest expense in 2014, in connection with the bridge Joan facility
refated to the Connecticut Acquisition.

sh by nvesting Activiti

Capital Expendifures

In 2016, 2015 and 2014, our capital expenditures were, respectively, $1,401 millian, $863 million and $688 millicn {incuding 5142
milfion, $153 million and $116 million of integration-related capital expenditures in 2018, 2015 and 2014, respectively, associated
with the CTF Acguisition and the Connecticut Acquisifion}. Frantier received a total of $133 million dwing the 2012-2014 period
from the Connect America Fund (CAF) Phase | Program to support broadband deployment in unserved and underserved high-cost
areas. In addition to the capital expenditures mentioned above, network expansion funded by the previously received CAF Phase 1
funds amounted to $22 million and $56 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. Capital expenditures refated 1o CAF Phase IF are
included in our reported amounts for capital expenditures. We anticipate capital expenditures for business operations (o be
approximately $1.00 billion to $1.25 billion in 2017, as compared to $1,258 miflion in 2018.

CTE Acquisilion

On Aprll 1, 2016, Frontier acquired the wireline operations of Verizon in California, Texas and Florida for a purchase price of
310,540 mifion in cash and assumed debt (the CTF Acquisition), pursuant to the February 5, 2015 Securities Purchase
Agreement, as amended. In addition, Frontier and Verizon settled the working capital and net debt adjustments with $15 million
paid to Frontier in Octeber 20186,

Conneclicut Acquisition

On Qclober 24, 2014, Frontier acquired the wireling properties of AT&T in Conneclicut. After including the working capital
adjustment payment of $18 milfior, the total purchase price for the Connecticut Acquisition was $2,618 million.
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C lows used b ided from Financi Tyiti

Debt Financings
Refer to the below discussion under Capital Resources — Term Loan Facilities.

Financir Acguisiti

On September 25, 2015, Frontier completed a private offering of $6,800 million aggregale principal amount of senior unsecured
notes, as follows: 1,000 million of 8.875% Senicr Notes due 2020; $2,000 million of 10.50% Senior Notes due 2022; and $3,600
million of 11.00% Senicr Notes due 2025. Each was issued at a price equal to 100% of its principal amount. Frontier used the net
proceeds from the offering (after deducting underwriting fees} to finance a portion of the cash consideration paid in connaction with
the CTF Acquisition and to pay related fees and expenses. The net proceeds of the debt offering of $6,485 million were included in
“Restricted cash” in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015. In April 2016, we completed an exchange offer of
registered senior notes for the privately placed senior notes.

Financing the Conneclicuf Acquisifion

Cn September 17, 2014, Frontier completed a registered debt offering of $775 million aggregate principal amount of 6.25% Senlor
Notes due 2021 and $775 million aggregate principal amount of 6§.875% Senior Notes due 2025, We received net proceeds, after
deducting underwriing fees, of $1,518 million from the offering. Frontier used the net proceeds fram the offering of the notes,
together with borrowings of $350 million under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below, and cash on hand to finance
the Connecticut Acguisition, which closed on October 24, 2014,

During 2015 and 2014, we also entered into secured financings totaling $3 miflion and $11 milion, respectively, with four year
terms and no stated interest rate for certain equipment purchases.

Debt Reduction

During 20186, 2015 and 2014, we retired an aggregate principal amount of $453 million, $298 million and $260 million, respectively,
of debt consisting of $23 million, $235 million and $257 million, respectively, of senior unsecured debt and $1 million during 2615
and 2014, of niral utilities service loan contracts. Additionally, we refired $430 million, $3 million and $2 million of secured debt
during 2018, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Additionally, during 2016 we completed non-cash debt exchanges induding related accrued interest, of $397 million of our 8.25%
Notes due April 2017 for approximately $147 million of our 8.50% Notes due April 2020, $66 million of our 8.875% Notes due
September 2020 and $188 million of our 10.50% Notes due September 2022. A pre-tax loss of approximately 57 million was
recognized and included in “Irvesiment and other income, ret” in our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

Subject to limitations contained in cur indentures and credit facifities, we may from time io time make repurchases of our debt in
the open market, through tender offers, by exereising rights to call or in privately negefiated transactions, We may also refinance
exisiing debt or exchange existing debt for newly issued debt obligations,

Common Stock Offering

On June 10, 2015, we completed a registered offering of 150,000,000 shares of our common stock, par value $0.25 per share, at
an offering price of $5 per share. On June 24, 2015, Frontier issued an additional 15,000,000 shares of common stock in
connection with the over-aliotment option that was exercised in full by the undenwriters. Aggregate net proceeds were
approximately $799 million after deducting commissions and expenses. We used the net proceeds from this offering to fund a
portion of the acguisition price of the CTF Acquisition and for related fees and expenses,

Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (Serjes A) Offering
On June 10, 2015, we also compleied a registered offering of 17,500,000 shares of our 11,125% Mandatory Convertible Preferred

Stock, Series A, par valug $0.09 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock”), at an offering price of $100 per share. On June 24,
201%, Frontier issued an additional 1,750,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock in connection with the over-allotment eptian that
was exercised in full by the undenwriters. Aggregate net proceeds of the offering were $1,868 millien afier deducting commissions
and expenses. We used the net proceeds fram this offering to fund a portion of the acquisition price of the CTF Acquisitien and for
related fees and expenses.
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Capital Resources

We believe our cperating cash flows, existing cash balances, existing revolving credit facility and access to the capital markets, as
necessary, will be adequate to finance our working capital requiremsnis, fund capital expenditures, make required debt interest
and principal payments, pay taxes, pay dividends to our stockhelders, and support our shortderm and long-<term operating
strategies for the next twelve months. A number of factors, including but not fimited to, losses of customners, pricing pressure from
increased competition, lower subsidy and switched access revenues, and the impact of economic conditions may negatively affect
our cash generated from operations, As of Dacember 31, 2018, we had $383 million and $733 million of debt maturing in 2017 and
2018, respeclively.

Bridge Facilifies

On February 5, 2015, we entered into a commitment for a bridge loan facility (the Verizon Bridge Facility) and recognized related
interest expense of $10 milion and $184 millien for the years ended Decenber 31, 2018 and 2015, respeciively. The Verizon
Bridge Facility terminated in accordance with its terms on September 25, 2015.

On December 18, 2013, we signed a commitment letter for a bridge loan facllity {the Connecticut Bridge Facility} to finance the
Corneclicul Acquisition and recognized interest expense related to this commitment of $23 million during the year ended
December 31, 2014. The Connecticut Bridge Facility terminated in accordance with its terms on September 17, 2014,

Term Loan Facilities
Borrowings under each of Frontier's term loan credit agreements are secured by a pledge of the stock of Frantier North Inc., a
wholly owned subsidiary, primarily representing Frontier operations in Hlinois, Indiana, Michigan, Ohio, and Wisconsin.

On August 12, 2015, Frontier entered into a credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as-administrative agent, and the
lenders party therefo, for a $1,500 million senior secured delayed-draw term loan fagcility {the 2015 Credit Agreement). Frontier
exercised its right under the 2015 Credit Agreement to obtain additional commitments and increased the size of the facility to
$1,625 million. On April 1, 2016, in connection with the dosing of the CTF Acquisition, Frontier drew $1.550 million under that
facility, with the additional $75 million drawn subsequently. The final maturity date s March 31, 2021. Repayment of the
outstanding principal balance will be made in quarterly installments, initially in the amourt of $20 millon per installment, which
commenced on June 30, 2016. The quarterly installments will increase to $41 million, beginning with the 13th guarterly
instalimen{. The remaining outstanding principal balarice will be repaid on the final maturity date. Borrowings under the term loan
will bear interest based on margins over ihe Base Rate (as defined in the 2015 Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of
Frontier. Interest rate margins under the facility {ranging from 0.75% to 1.75% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.75% to 2.76% for
LIBOR borrowings) are subject to adjustment based on Frontier's Total Leverage Ratic {as defined in the 2015 Credit
Agreement).

Frontier hias a credit agreement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead amranger and a lender, and the other lenders
party thereto, for a $350 million senier unsecured term loan facility (the 2014 CoBank Credii Agreement). The facility was drawn
upon closing of the Connecticut Acquisition with proceeds used to partially finance the acquisition. The maturity date is October 24,
2019. Repaymertt of the outstanding principal balance will be made in quarterly installments of $9 million, which commenced on
March 31, 2015 with lhe remaining outstanding principal batance to be repaid on the maturity dafe, Borowings under the 2014
CoBank Credit Agreement will bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate (as defined in the 2014 CoRank Credit
Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of Frontier. Interest rate margins under the facilty (ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% far Base
Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR bomrowings) are subject to adjustments based on our Total Leverage Ratio, as
such term is defined in the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement. The interest rate on this facility at December 31, 2018 was LIBOR
plus 3.375%.

Frontier has two senior secured credit agreements with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a lender, and the
other lenders party lhereto: the first, for a $350 million senior term loan facility drawn in 2014 (the 2014 CoBank Credit
Agreement}, matures on October 24, 2019, and the second, for a $315 million senior term foan facility drawn In October 2016 (the
2016 CoBank Credit Agreement), matures on October 12, 2021. We refer to the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement and the 2016
CoBank Credit Agreement collectively as the CoBank Credit Agreements.
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Repayment of the outstanding principal balance under each of the CoBank Credii Agreements is being made in guarterly
instaflments ($9 million, with respect {o the 2014 CoBark Credit Agreement, and $8 million, with respect to the 2016 CoBank
Credit Agreement), in each case with the remaining outstanding principal balance to be repaid on the applicable maturity
date. Borrowings under each of the CoBank Credit Agreements bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate (as
defined in the applicable CoBank Credit Agreerment) or LIBOR, at the election of Frontier. Interest rate margins under the facifities
(ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rale barrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject to
adjustments based on our Total Leverage Ratio, as such term is defined in the applicable CoBank Credit Agreement. The interest
rate on these facilities at December 31, 2016 was LIBOR plus 3,375%,

Revolving Credit Facility
Borrowings under Frontier's Revolving Credit Agreement are secured by a pledge of the stack of Frontier North Ing.

Fronfier has a revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, the lenders party therete and
the other parties named therein (the Revolving Credit Agreement), for a $750 millian revolving credit facility {the Revolving Credit
Facifity) with a scheduled termination date of May 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2016, the Revolving Credit Facility was fully
available and ne borrowings had been made thereunder, Assodiated commitrnent fees under the Revolving Credit Facility will vary
from time to time depending on cur debt rating (as defined in the Revolving Credil Agreement) and were 0.45% per annum as of
December 31, 2016, During {he term of the Revalving Credit Facility, Frontier may borrow, repay and rebomow funds, and may
obtain letlers of credit, subject to customary borowing conditions. Loans under the Revolving Credit Facility will bear interest
based on the allemate base rate or the adjusted LIBO Rate (each as determined in the Revolving Credit Agreement}, at our
election, plus a margin based on our debt rating {ranging from 0.50% to 1.50% for altemate base rate horrowings and 1.50% to
2.50% for adjusted LIBO Rate borrowings). The interest rate on this facility would have baen the alternate base rate plus 1.50% or
the adjusted LIBO Rate plus 2.50%, respaclively, as of December 31, 2018, Letters of credit issued under the Revolving Credit
Facility will also be subject to fees that vary depending on our debt rating. The Revolving Credit Facility is available fer general
corporate purposes but may not be used to fund dividend payments.

On February 27, 2017, Frontier amended and restated its April 2021 term loan and its revoelving credit facility, combining them into
a single credit agreement and unifying the covenants. The amended and restated credit agreament provides Frontier with more
flexible terms, increases the revolving credit facility to $850 mitlion and extends the maturity of the revolving credit facility from
2018 to 2022. The determination of interest rates remaing unchanged. The most significant change in the covenanis is an
increase of the maximum Leverage Ratio {(as defined} te 5.25 1o 1.0 initially, migrating to 5.0 to 1.0 beginning in the second guarier
of 2018, 4,75 t0 1.0 in the second quarier of 2019, and 4.5 fo 1.0 in the second quarter of 2026. in addition, under the amended
and restated credit agreement, Frontier will be expanding the security package to inchude piedges of the equity interests in certain
Frontier subsidiaries and guaranties by certain Frontier subsidiaries.

Letters of Credit Facility

Frontier has a Continuing Agreement for Standby Letters of Credit with Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch {(the LC Agreament).
As of December 31, 2016, $i105 million of undrawn Standby Lelters of Credit had been issued under the LC
Agreement, Borrowings under the LC Agreement are secured by a pledge of Frontier North Inc.,

Covenants

The terms and conditions contained in our indentures, the CoBank Credit Agreements, the 2015 Credit. Agreement and the
Revolving Credit Agreement inciude the timely payment of principal and interest when due, the maintenance. of gur corporate
existence, keeping proper books and records in accordance with GAAP, restrictions on the incurrence of liens on our assels
securing indebtedness and our subsidiaries’ assels, restrictions on the incurence of indebiedness by our subsidiaries and
restrictions on asset safes and transfers, mergers and other changes in corporate control subject to important qualifications and
exceptions, We would be restricted frem declaring dividends by the CoBank Credit Agreemenis, the 2015 Credit Agreement and
the Revolving Credit Agreement if an event of default occurred and was continuing at the time or would resuit from the dividend
declaration. In addition, under the Cerificate of Designations of our 11.125% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, we
would be restricted from paying dividends on cur cormmon stock if we failed to declare and pay dividends on our Series A
Preferred Stack.

The CoBank Credit Agreements, the 2015 Credit Agreement, and the Revolving Credit Agreement each contain 3 maximum
leverage ralio covenant. Under those covanants, we are required to maintain a ratic of (i} total
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indebtedness minus cash and cash equivalents in excess of $50 million to (if) consolidated adjusted EBITDA (as each such term is
defined in the agreements) over the last four quarters not to exceed 4.50 to 1.

Indentures for our senfor unsecured debt obligations limit our abifity to create liens on our assets securing indebtedness and our
subsidiaries’ assets or merge or consolidate with other companies, our subsidiaries” ability te borrow funds and o engage in
change of conlral transactions, subject {o important exceptions and qualifications. The indentures for our 8.875% Senior Notes due
2020, our 10.50% Senior Notes due 2022, and our 11.00% Senior Notes due 2025 contain covenants that are customary for
similarly rated issuers. Among other things, these covenants limit our ability to incur additional indebtedness if our leverage ratio
exceeds 4.5 {0 1 (as defined in the indentures), limits Jiens and subsidiary debt o 1.25 times EBITDA {as defined in the
indentures}, limits cumulative restricted payments, including dividends, to cumulative ERITDA less 1.4 fimes cumulative interest
expense (as defined in the indenture), if our leverage ratio does not exceed 4 to 1, and fimits cumutative restricted payments,
including dividends, to a lesser amount during periods, if any, In which our leverage ratio exceeds 4 to 1, and restricts our ability ta
divest substantially all of the assets of Frontier.

As of December 31, 2018, we were in compliance with alt of our indenture and credit facility covenants.

Dividends

We intend fo continue to pay regular quarterly dividends an our esmmon and preferred stock. Our ability to fund a regular quarterly
dividend wilt ba impacted by our ability fo generate cash from operations. Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitied to
receive cumulative dividends at an annual rate of 11.125% of the initial liquidaiion preference of $100 per share, or $11.125 per
year per share, Series A Preferred Stock dividends of $214 millien and $120 million were paid during 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The declaration and payment of future dividends on our common stock is at the discretion of our Board of Directors, and will
depend upon many facters, including our financial conditien, results of operations, growth prospests, funding requirements,
payment of cumulative dividends on Series A Preferred Stock, applicable law, restrictions in agreements goveming our
indebtedness and other factors our Beard of Directors deem relevant.

Off-Balance Sheef Arrangements
We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements, fransactions, obligations or other relationships with unconsofidated
entities that would be expected to have a material current or future effect upoi our financial statements.

Future Contractual Obligations and Commitments
A summary of our future contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of December 31, 2016 is as follows;

Paymenis due by period

{$ in mitlions] Total 207 2018 2019 2020 2021 Thereafter
Long-term debt obligalions,

excluting interest § 18,178 % 383 $ 733 % B1d § 2,42¢ § 2554 § 11,281
Irterest on long-term debt 11,263 1,833 1,827 1,465 1,378 1,146 4214
Operating {¢ase cbligations 247 a1 18 18 23 21 78
Capital lease obligations 147 39 kg 26 15 a b
Financing lease cbligations 105 g ] ] g ] 60
Purchese abligations 108 42 41 7 & 2 {i|
Liablity for uncertain fax positions 17 8 <3 2 3 - -

Tola! $ 30,085 § 2085 § 2368 & 2346 § 3863 5 374§ 15,662

During 2016, we increased our outstanding performance Jetters of credit from $50 million to $125 million at December 31, 20186,
On April 28, 2015, the FCC released its right of first refusal offer of support to price cap carriers under the CAF Phase It program,
which is intended fo provide long-term support for broadband in high-cost unserved or underserved areas. In June 2015, Frontiar
accepled the CAF Phase Il offer, which provides for $332 million in annual suppor, including $49 million in annual support related
to the properties acguired in the CTF Acauisition,
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through 2020 to make available 10 Mbps downstream/1 Mbps upstream breadband service to approximately 774,000 households
across certain of the 29 states where wa now operate,

To the extent we do not enable the required number of households with 10 Mbps downstream/1 Mbps upsiream breadband service
by the end of the CAF Phase If term, we will be reguired to return a portion of the funds previously received.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparafion of our financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumpiions. There are inherent
uncertainties with respect to such estimates and assumptions; accordingly, it is possible that actual results could differ from those
estimates and changes {o estimates could ocour in the near term. The estimates which require the most significant judgment are
listed beiow.

These critical accounting estimates have been reviewed with our independent registerad public accounting firm and with the Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors. For a discussion of these and other accounting policies, see Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Alfowance for Doubtful Accounts

Ye maintain an allewance for doubtful accounts based on our estimate of cur ability to collect accounts receivable. Our estimates
are based on assumptions and other considerations, including payment his{ory, custemer financial performance, carder billing
disputes and -aging analysis. Our estimation process includes general and specific reserves and varies by custemer category. in
2016 and 2015, we had no “critical estimates” refated io bankrupicies of communications companies or any other significant
customers. See Notes 1 and 4 of the Netes to Consofidated Financial Statements for additional discussion.

fndefinite-lived infangibles

Our indefinite-ived intangibles consist of goodwill and trade name, which were generated as a result of business combinations,
We test for impairment of thase assets annually as of December 31, or more frequently, whenever events occur or facts and
clrcumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of an operating segment below its camying amount.
Events that might indicate impairment inciude, but are not lmited to, strategic decisions made in response o economic and
competitive conditions, the impact of the economic environment an our customer base, material negative changes in refationships
with significant customers, and/or a significant decline in our stock price for a sustained period,

We perform the fwo-step goodwill impairmant test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of a2 goodwill
impairment loss o be recognized, if any. The first step in the goodwill impairment test compares the carrying value of net assets of
the oparating segment to its fair value. If the fair value exceeds the carrying value, no further testing is required. However, if the fair
value is [ess than the carrying value, an indication of impairment exists and a second step is performed. These tests are performed
at the reporting unit level, which at December 31, 2018, was our seven regional operating segments. In early 2017, we will
evaluate changes to the management reporting that our chief operating decision makers review from this regional construct to a
functional construct including consumer, commercial, operations and engineering, which may lead to different operafing segments,

We use a market mulliples approach to defermine fair value. Marketplace company comparisons and analyst reporls have
historically supperted a range of fair values of multiples between 5.0x and 7.9x annualized EBITDA. For the purpose of the
goodwill impairmery test we define 2016 EBITDA as operating income, net of acguisition and integration costs, non-cash pension
and OPEB caosts, and restructuring cosis and other charges, plus depreciation and amortization. We estimated the enterprise fair
value using a multiple of 5.8x EBITDA. Cnce delerminad, this estimate of enterprise fair value is then allecated to the operating
segmenis based upon each unit's relative share of consolidated EBITDA. The result of this first step Indicated that fair values of
each operating segment exceed their carrying values, As a result, the second step of the goodwill impairment test was not
required. As an additional step to carroborate the results of the first step of the impairment test, we complete a reconciliation of our
market capitalization and overall enterprise value to the fair value of all of our operating segments.

The enterprise fair value is sensitive to the amount of EBITDA generated by Frontier and the EBITDA muitiple used in the
catcutation, Significant changes in the assumplions or esfimates used in our impaimment analyses, such as a reduction in
profitability andler cash flows, could result in a non-cash goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment charge and
materially affect our operating results. if the assumplions for either of our EBITDA or EBITDA multiple were to decrease by 10%
there would be an indication of impairment. Declines in our stock price
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could also affect the reconciliation of our market capitalization and overall enterprise value to the fair value of all of our operating
segments and indicate impairment. For more information on goodwill, see Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Depreciation and Amorlization

The calculation of depreciation and amoriization expense is based upon the estimated usefut lives of the underlying property, plant
and equipment and identifiable finitelived intangible assets. Depreciation expense is principally based on the compasite group
method for substantially all of our properly, plant and equipment assets. The estimates for remaining lives of the various asset
cafegories are determined annually, based on an independent study. Among other considerations, these studies include models
that consider actual usage, replacement history and assumptions about technology evalution for each category of asset. The latest
study was completed in the fourth quarter of 2016 and did not result in any significant changes in ramaining tives for any of our
asset categories, A one year decrease in the estimated useful lives of our property, plant and equipment would result in an
increase of approximately $157 million to depreciation expense.

Our finite-lived intangibles consist principally of customer base; 32,428 milfion from the 2010 Acquisition, $570 million from the
Connecticut Acquisition and $2,090 million from the recently completed CTF Acquisition. These customer bases are being
amortized on an accelerated method because this method most closely resembles the projected underlying revenue streams, In
assigning lives, which range from between eight and 12 years, a separate evaluation and determination is made for residential and
business custorners,

See Notes 5 and 6 of the Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion.

Asset Impairments

We review long-lived assets to be held and used, including customer lists and long-lived assets to be disposed of for impairment at
least annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable. Recoverability af assels to be held and used is measured by comparing the camrying amouni of the asset to the

-gstimated fair value, which is based on the future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset.

Recoverability of assets held for sale is measured by comparing the carrying amournt of the assets to their estimated fair market
value, If any assels are considered io be impaired, the impairment is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the
asseis exceeds the estimated fair value, Also, we periodically reassess the useful lives of our tangible and intangible assets fo
determine whether any changes are required.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

We sponser a defined benefit pension plan covering a significant number of our current and former employees as well as other
postretirement benefit plans that provide medical, dental, life insurance and other benefits for covered retired employees and their
beneficiaries and covered dependents, As of December 31, 2016, the unfunded benefit obligation for these plans recorded on our
conhsolidated balance sheet was §1,62% million. During 2018, we contributed $28 million to these plans and recorded $155 milfion
of expense before capitalization, including $26 million of special termination benefits. Pension and other posiretirement benefit
costs and obligations are dependent upon various actuanal assumptions, the most significant of which are the discount rate and
the expected long-term rate of retum on plan assets.

Cur discount rate assumplion is determined annually with assistance from our actuaries based on the pattem of expected future
venefit payments and the prevailing rates available an fong-term, high quality corperate bonds with durations approximate fo that
of our beneflt obligation. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, we utilized an estimation fechnique that is based upon a settlement
model {(Bond:Linkj that permits us io closely match cash flows to the expected paymants to participarts. This rate can change from
year-io-year based on market conditions that affect corparate bond yields.

We are utilizing a discount rate of 4,10% as of December 31, 2016 for our qualified pension plan, compared to rates of 4.50% and
4.10% in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The discount rate for postietirement plans as of December 31, 2016 was a range of 4.10%
to 4.30% compared {o a range of 4,50% {0 4.70% ih 2015 and 4.10% to 4.20% in 2014,

tn the following table, we show the estimated sensitivity of cur pensien and cther pestretirement benefit plan liabilities to a 25 basis
peint change in the discount rale as of December 31, 2016:
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Increase in Discount Rate Decrease in Discount Rate
iy fmifli of 25 bps of 25 bps

Pensicn plans
Projected benefit obligation 5 81 & 84

Other postretirement plans
Accumulated postretirement henefit abligation 5 . {33y & 34

{n develeping the expected long-term rate of retum assumption, we considered gublished surveys of expected market returns, 10
and 20 year actual retums of varicus major indices, and our own historical 5 year, 10 year and 20 year investment retums. The
expected long-term rate of retumn on plan assets is based on an asset allocation assumption of 40% in long-duration fixed income
securities; and 60% in equity securities and other investments. We review our asset allocation at least annually and make changes
when considered approprate. Our asset refurn assumption is made at the beginning of our fiscal year. In 2016, 2015 and 2014,
our expected long-term rate of retum on plan assefs was 7.50%, 7.75% and 7.75%, respectively. Our actual refum on plan assels
in 2046 was 10.38%. For 2017, we will assume a rate of return of 7.50%. Our pension plan assets are valued at fair value as of
the measurement date,

For additional infarmation regarding our pension and olher postretirement benefifs see Mote 17 to the Notes to Cansclidated
Financial Statements.

fncome Taxes

We file a consclidated federal income tax returm, Ye utilize the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under
the asset and liability method, deferred income taxes are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial
statement basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect when the temparary differences
are expecied to reverse, Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due fo fufure changes in governing law or review by
taxing authorities.

Ve use a "more likely than not” threshold {e the recognition and derecegnition of uncertain tax positions either taken or expected
to be taken in Frontier's income tax returns. The total amount of our gross tax liability for tax positions that may not be sustained
under a “more likely than not" threshold amounts to 517 million as of December 31, 2016 including interest of $1 million. For
additional information regarding our accounting for income laxes see Note 12 of the Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements.

Business Combinations

We allocaie the total cost of an acquisition to the underlying net assets based on their respective estimated fair values. As part of
this allocation process, we identify and attribute vatues and estimaied lives to the intangible assets acquired. These determinations
invotve significant estimates and assumplions about several highly subjective variables, including future cash flows, discount rates,
and asset lives. There are also different valuation models for each component, the selection of which requires considerable
judgment. Qur estimates and assumplions may be based, in part, on the availability of listed market prices or other transparent
market data. These determinations will affect the amount of amartization expense recognized. in fulure periods. We hase our fair
value estimates on assumpfions we belisve are reascnable, buf recognize that the assumptions are inherently uncertain.
Depending on the size of the purchase price of a paricular acquisition and the mix of intangible assets acquired, the purchase
price allocation could be materially impacted by applying a different set of assumptions and estimates. Frontier allocated
$9,871 million and $2,018 million in total consideration to the “fair market value” of the assets and liabilities acquired in the CTF
Acquisition and the Connecticut Acquisition, respectively. The estimales of the fair values assigned to property, plant and
equipment, custamer list and goodwill, are more fully described in Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recent Accounting Proncuncements

See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements included in Part IV of this report for additional information related to
recent accounting prencuncements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the normal course of our business operations due to ongoing investing and funding activities,
including these associatet with our pension plan assets. Market risk refers to the potential change in fair value of & financial
insfriment as a result of fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices. We do not hold or issue denvative instruments, derivative
commodity instrumants or other financiat instruments for trading purposes. As a result, we do not undertake any specific actions to
cover our exposure to market risks, and we are not parly to any market risk management agreements other than in the nermal
course of business, Our primary markel risk exposures from interest rate risk and equity price risk are as follows:

Interest Rate Exposura

QOur exposure to market risk for changes In interest rates refates primerily to the interest-bearing portion of our pension investment
portfolio and the refated actuarial lability for pension obligations, as well as our floafing rate indebtedness, As of December 31,
2016, 88% of our long-term debt had fixed interest rates. We had no interest rate swap agreements related to our fixed rate debt in
effect at December 31, 2016 and 2015. We believe that our currently oulstanding obligaticn exposure to interest rate changes is
minimal.

Cur objectives in managing our interest rate risk are to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to
Iower our overall barrowing costs. To achieve these objectives, only $2,151 million of our outstanding borrowings at December 31,
2018 have floating interest rates. Our undrawn $750 milfion revolving credit facility has interest rates that float with the LIBO Rate,
as defined. Consequenlly, we have limited material future earnings or cash flow exposures from changes in inierest rates on our
debt. An adverse change in inferest rates would increase the amount that we pay on our variable rate obligations and could result
in fluctuations in the fair value of our fixed rate obhgations, Based upon our overall interest rate exposure at December 31, 2016, a
near-term change in interest rates would not materiafly affect our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

At December 31, 20186, the fair value of our long-term debt was estimated to be appraximately $17.5 billion, based on prevailing
interest rates, our overall weighted average borrowing rate of 8.58% and our overall weighted average maturity of approximately
eight years. As of December 31, 2016, there has been na significant change in the weighted average maturity applicable to our
obligations since Decemnber 31, 2015,

Equity Price Exposura

Qur expesure to market risks for changes in equity security prices as of Dacember 31, 2016 is himited to our pension plan
assets. We have no other securily investments of any significant amount.

Qur pension plan assets increased from $1,572 miliion at December 31, 2015 1o $2,766 million at December 31, 2018, an increase
of $1,194 mitkon, or 768%. This increase was a result of cash transfers and accounts receivable from Verizon and the Verizon
pension plan frusts of §1,125 million related to the CTF Acquisition, positive investment returns of $195 milkion, net of investment
management and administrative fees, and contributions of $28 million, partially offset by benefit payments of $154 millign.

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following documents are filed as part of this Repont;

1. Financial Statements - See Index on page F-1.

2. Supplementary Data - Quarteriy Financial Data is included in the Financial Statements (see 1. above).
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Item 9.
None.
Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures
{i) Evaluation of Disclosure Controfs and Procedures
We camfed out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our
principal executive officer and principat financial officer, regarding the effectiveness of our disclosure confrols and procedures
{as defined in Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-15{e} under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, as amended). Based upon this
evalualion, our principal executive officer and principal Tinancial officer concluded, as of the end of the peried covered by this
report, December 31, 2016, that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
{li) Intemal Conirol Over Financiat Reporting
{a) Management's annual report on internal control aver financial reporting
Our management report on intemal contro) over financial reporting appears on page F-2,
{b) Report of registered public accounting firm
The report of KPMG LLP, our independent registered public accounfing firm, on internal control over financial reporling
appears on page F-4.
{c) Changes in internal controt over financial reporting
We reviewed our intemal controt over financial reporling at December 31, 2016. There have been no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting identified in an evaluation thereof that occurred during the l1ast fiscal quarter of 2016
that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internat cantrol over financlal reporting.
ifem 9B.  Other Information
Nane.
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PART
ltem18.  Directors, Executive Offi d Cor v

Certain of the information required by this Item Js incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2017
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with ihe SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 2016.

Executive Officers of the Registrant
Our Executive Officers as of February 10, 2017 were:

Name Age Current Position and Officer

Kenneth A. Amdt 52 Executive Vice President, Commercial Sales Operations
Donald Daniels 49 Senior Vice President and Controller

Steve Gable 43 Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer
John J. Lass 60 Executive Vice President, Cusiomer Cperations

R. Perley McBride L Executive Vice Prasident and Chief Financial Cfficer
Daniel J. McCarthy 52 President and Chief Executive Officer and a Director
Cecilia K, McKenney 54 Executive Vice President and Chief Custemer Officer
Mark D. Nielsen 52 Executive Viee President and Chief Legal Officer

Tim Travaille 59 Execttive Vice President, Operational Transformation
Kathleen Weslock 61 Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer

There is no family relationship between the directors or executive officers. The term of office of each of the foregoing officers of
Frontier is annual and will confinue until a successor (if any) has heen elected and qualified.

KENNETH A. ARNDT has been with Frontier since 2003 and was appointed Executive Vice President, Commercial Sales
Operations, in Cecember 2016. Mr. Amdt previously had oversight of Frontier's operations in Connecticut, New York, Ohio,
Pennsylvania and West Virginia, Before joining Frontier, Mr. Amdt served as Vice President of Marketing for Lucent Technologies
and Vice Presidant of Sales and Marketing for Commonwealth Telephone Company in Pennsylvania.

DONALD BANIELS jeined Frontier in July 2014 as Senior Vice President and Controlier. From October 20062 to July 2014 he held
various positions with JetBlue Airways Cotporation, including Carporate Controller, Chief Accounting Cfficer, Vice President and
Controller, Assistant Conirolier, and Direclor of Financial Reporting. Prior fo that Mr. Daniels held various positions of increasing
responsibility al Delta Air Lines and Deloitte and Touche, LLP. Mr. Daniels is a veteran of the United States Army and a certified
public accountant. :

STEVE GABLE became Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer of Frontier in April 2015. He joined Fronfier in
November 2012 as Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer. Prior to Frontier, Mr. Gable was Executive Vice
Presidert/CTO of Tribune Cempany while also serving as President of Tribune Digital. Before Tribune, Mr. Gable served as Vice
President of Technology fer Clear Channel Radia.

JOHN J. LASS has been with Frontier since 1880 and was appointed Executive Vice President, Customer Operations, in
November 2016. Previously, Mr. Lass was Executive Vice President, Field Qperations. He has also served as President of
Frontier's Central Region (comprising lllinois, Indiana, lowa, Michigan, Minnesota and Nehbraska), Vice President of Revenue
Assurance and as Regional Operations Vice President at Frontier, Vice President and General Manager of Citizens Utllities
Vermont Electric Division, and has held cperations positions in New York and the Midwest with Frontier, GTE and Contel.

R. PERLEY MCBRIDE became Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice Fresident of Frontier on November 4, 2016, Prior ta
Juining Frontier, Mr. McBride was the Chief Financial Officer of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc until its May 2016 acquisition
by Liberty Global plc. Previously, Mr. McBride served as Chief Financial Officer at L eap Wireless International from December
2012 through May 2014 and was part of the Executive team that led the business through its acquisition by AT&T Ine. Priar to
teap Wireless, he served as Executive Vice President of Finance at The Weather Company, owner of The Weather Channel
among other assets, between 2010 and 2012. He also served in several senfor financial management roles at Frontier between
1998 and 2010, and also between 1994 and 1997.
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DANIEL J. McCARTHY has been with Frentier since December 1990 and is the President and Chief Execufive Cificer. Prior to
becorring President and Chief Executive Officer in April 2015, Mr. McCarthy held other positions of responsibility at Frontier,
including President and Chief Operating Oificer, from April 2012 to April 2015, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer, from January 2006 e April 2012, and Senior Vice President, Field Operations, from December 2004 to December 2005.
Mr. McCarthy serves as a Trusiee of Sacred Hearl University in Fairfield, Conneclicut, and of Foundations in Education for the
Diocese of Bridgeport, Connecticut. He is a member of the Board of Directors of the Westem Connecticut Health Network, the
Board of Directors of the Business Council of Fairfield County, and a member of the Business Roundiable. He is also a director of
Constellation Brands, Inc,

CECILIA K, McKENNEY has been with Frontier since February 2006, She is cumently Executive Vice President and Chief
Custamer Officer, Before this, she was Executive Vice President, Frontier Secure and Administration. Previously, she was
Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Sales Operations from May 2012 to January 2013, Executive Vice President,
Human Resources and Call Center Sales & Service from February 2008 to May 2012 and Senior Vice Presidenf, Human
Resources from February 2006 to February 2008. Prior to joining Frontier, she was Group Vice President, Headquarters Human
Resources, of The Pepsi Botting Group (PBG) from 2004 to 2005. Previously at PBG Ms. McKenney was Vice President,
Headguarers Human Resourcas from 2000 to 2004,

MARK D. NIELSEN joined Frontier in March 2014 and is Executive Vice President and Chief Legal Officer. Pricr to joining Frontier,
he was Associate General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer for Praxair Inc. and Vice President and Assistant General
Counse! of Raytheon Company. Before that, Mr. Nielsen served as Chief Legal Counsel, and then Chief of Staff, to Massachusetts
Governor Mitt Rormnney from 2004 to 2007.

TIM TRAVAILLE has been with Frantier since 2010 and is Executive Vice President, Operational Transformation. Previously, he
held other positions &l Frontier, including Senfor Vice President of Integration, Chief Information Officer and General Manager for
Frontier in Washingion State,

KATHLEEN WESLOCK joined Frontier as Executive Vice President and Chigf People Officer in July 2015. Previously, she had
worked as Senior Vice President/Chief Human Resources Officer at Cisco Systemns, Inc. and Senior Vice President, Chief Human
Resources Officer & Internal Communications, at SunGard Data Systems. She has alse worked as Director of Human Resources,
Financial Advisory Services, at Deloitte and Director of Global Human Resources at the global law firm Shearman & Sterting.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information regiired by this Hem is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2017 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days after December 31, 2016,

Item 12.

The information raquired by this itemn is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statemerit for the 2017 Anmual Meeting
of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days afler December 31, 2016.

ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Hem is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2017 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be fited with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 144 within 120 days afier December 31, 2016,

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Hem is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the 2017 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be fited with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 144 within 120 days after December 31, 2016.
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Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

List of Documents Filed as a Part of This Report;

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
Consolidated Staterents of Comprehensive Loss for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
Consclidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 20186, 2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

Motes o Consclidated Financial Statements

All other schedules have been omitted because the required information is included in the consalidated financial statements or the
notes therelo, or is not applicable or net required.

{2) index to Exhibits:

All documents referenced below were filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by Frontier, file number 001-11001,
unless otherwise indicated.

Exhibit
No,
21

2.2

3.1
3.2
3.3
34
3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

Description

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2013, by and between AT&T Inc. and Frantier
(filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Frontier's Current Report on Farm 8-K filed on December 17, 2013).*

Sacurities Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 5, 2015, by and between Verizon
Communicaiions Inc. and Frontier (Bled as Exhibit 2.1 ta Frontier's Current Report on Form 8K filed on
February 5, 2015).*

Restated Certificate of Incorporation {filed as Exhibit 3.200.1 te Frontier's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2000)." _

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effective July 31, 2008 (filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to Frontier's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2008).*
Cerlificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation, effective June 28, 2010 (filed as
Exhibit §9.2 to Frontier's Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2010),*

By-laws, as amended February 8, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Frontier's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on February 6, 2009).*

Cerlificate of Designations of 11.125% Mandatory Convertible Prefermed Stock, Series A (filed as
Exhibit 3.5 to the Cument Report on Form 8-K filed on June 10, 2015).*

Indenture of Securities, dated as of August 15, 1991, between Frontier and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
M.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee {lhe “August 1981 Indenture™ (filed as Exhibit
4.100.1 to Frontier's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal guarter ended September 30, 1981).
Fourth Supplementat Indenture to the August 1991 Indenture, dated Qclober 1, 1994, between Frontier
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee, with respect tc 7.68%
Debentures due 2034 (filed as Exhibit 4.100.7 to Frontier's Currert Report an Form 8-K filed on
January 3, 1995).*

Fifth Supplemental Indenture 1o the August 1991 Indenture; dated as of June 15, 1995, between
Frontier and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee, with respect {o
7.45% Debentures due 2035 (filed as Exhibit 4.100.8 to Frontier’s Cuwrent Report on Farm 8-K fited on
March 29, 1996 (the “March 29, 1896 B-K"}).*

Sixth Supplemental Indenture to the August 1991 Indenture, dated as of October 15, 1995, between
Frontier and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. {as successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustes, with respect {o
7% Debentures due 2025 (filed as Exhibit 4.100.% to the March 29, 1996 8-K).*
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4.7

4.8
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Seventh Supplemental Indenture to the August 1991 Indenture, dated as of June 1, 1996, between
Frontier and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A, (as successor to Chemical Bank}, as Trusiee, with respect to
8.8% Debentures due 2028 {filed as Exhibit 4,100.11 to Frontier's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1996 (the "1996 10-K").*

Fighth Supplemental Indenture fo the August 1981 Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1996, between
Frantier and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bank}, as Trustee, with respect to
7.05% Debantures due 2046 {filed as Exhibit 4,100.12 to the 1986 10-K}.*

Indenture, dated as of August 15, 2001, between Frontier and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as
successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank), as Trustes, with respect to 9% Senior Notes due 2031
(including the form of note attached thereta) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 of Frontier's Current Report on Form
8-K filed on August 22, 2001).”

Indenture, dated as of Decamber 22, 2006, between Frontier and The Bank of New York, as Trustee,
with respect to 7.875% Senior Notes due 2027 (including the form of note attached thereto) (filed as
Exhibit 4.1 to Frentier’s Curent Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2006).*

indenture dated as of March 23, 2007 by and between Frontier and The Bank of New York with respect
ta the 7.125% Senior Notes due 2019 (including the form of such note aitached thereto} (filed as
Exhibit 4.2 to the March 27, 2007 8-K).*

indenture dated as of April 2, 2009, between Frontier and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee
{the “Aprit 2009 Indenture™ (filed as Exhibif 4.1 to Frontier's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April
g, 2008 (the “April 9, 2009 8-K").*

Second Supplemental Indenture to the April 2009 Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2008, between
Frontier and The Bank of Mew York Metllen, as Trustee, with respect {o 8.125% Senior Notes due 2018
{including the form of note aftached thereto} {filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Frontier's Current Repart on Form
8-K filed on October 1, 2009)."

Third Supplemental Indenture to the Aprl 2009 Indenture, dated as of May 22, 2012, between Frontier
and The Bank of New York Meilon, as Trustee, with respect to 9.25% Senior Notes due 2021 (filed as
Exhibit 4.1 to Frontier's Current Repert an Form 8-K filed on May 22, 2012 (the “May 22, 2012 8-K")).*
Form of Senfor Note due 2021 {filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the May 22, 2012 B-K).*

Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the April 2009 Indenture, dated as of August 15, 2012, between
Frontier and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee, wilh respect {o 7.125% Senior Notes due 2023
{the "Fourth Supplement lo April 2010 Indenture®) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Frontier's Current Reporl on
Form 8-K filed an August 15, 2012 {the “August 15, 2012 8-K"}).*

Form of Senior Note due 2023 (filed as Exhibit 4.2 fo the August 15, 2012 8-K).*

First Amendment to the Fourth Supplement to April 2008 Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2012,
petween Frontier and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustes, with respect to 7.125% Senior Notes
due 2023 {filed as Exhikit 4.1 to Frontier's Current Regort on Form §-K filed on Qciobear 1, 2012).*
Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the Aprit 2008 Indenture, dated as of April 10, 2013, between Frontier
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee, with respect to 7.625% Senior Notes due 2024 (filed as
Exhibit 4,1 to Fronlier's Current Report an Form 8-K filed on April 10, 2013 (the “April 10, 2013 8-K"),*
Sixth Supplemental Indenture to the April 2009 Indenture, dated as of September 17, 2014, between
Frontier Communications Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (including the
form of 6.250% Senior Notes due 2021) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Frontier's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on September 17, 2014 (the "September 17, 2014 8-K")}.*

Seventh Supplementai Indenture to the April 2009 Indenfure, daled as of September 17,

2014, between Frontier Communications Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee,
with respect to 6.875% Senior Notes due 2025 (including the form of notes attached thereto) (fited as
Exhibit 4.2 to the September 17, 2014 8-K).*

Farm of Senior Note due 2024 (filed as Exhibif 4.2 to the April 10, 2013 8-K).*

Indenture, dated as of April 12, 2010 {the “Apri} 2010 Indenture™), as amended, between New
Communications Heldings Inc. {"Spinco”) and The Bank of New York Meflen, as Trustee {including the'
farms of notes attached thereto) (fifed as Exhibit 4.22 to Spinco’s Registration Staternent on Form 10
fited an April 26, 2010 (Fite No. 000-53850) (the "Spinco Farm 107)).*

First Supplemental Indenture to the April 201C Indenture, dated as of July 1, 2010, between Frontier
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee, with respect fo 7.875% Senior Notes due 2015, 8.25%
Senior Notes due 2017, 8.5% Senior Notes due 2020; and 8.75% Senior Motes due 2022 (filed as
Exhibit 4.2 to Frontier's Registration Statement on Form 54 filed on July 2, 2010 (File No. 333-
167862Y)."

Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1994, between Frontier North Inc. {formery GTE North Incorporated)
and Bank of New York Melion (as successor to The First National Bank of Chicago), as Trustee {the
*Frontier North Indenture™) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Frontier's Quarterly Report on Form 10-G for the
fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2010).*
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

First Supplemental Indenture to the Frontier North Indenture, dated as of May 1, 1996, between
Frontier Morth Inc. {formerly GTE North Incorperated) and Bank of New York Melon (a8 successor to
The First National Bank of Chicago), as Trustee {filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Frontier’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal guarter anded June 30, 2016).*

Form of Debenture under the Frontier Narth Indenture (filed as Exhibit 4.24 to Frontier's Annual Repart
an Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2041 (the “2011 10-K")),*

Base Indenture, dated as of September 25, 2015 (the “2015 Base Indenture™), between Frontier
Communications Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee {filed as Exhibit 4.1 fo
Frontier's Quarlerly Report on Form 16-Q for the fisca! guarter ended September 30, 2015 (the
“September 30, 2015 10-0').*

First Supplemental Indenture to the 2015 Base Indenture, daled as of September 25, 2015, between
Frontier

Communications Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, with respect to 8.875%
Senior Notes due 2020 {including the forms of notes aitached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.2 ta the
September 30, 2015 10-Q).*

Second Supplemental Indenture to the 2015 Base Indenture, dated as of September 25, 2015, between
Frontier Communications Corporation and The Bark of New York Meilon, as trustee, with respect to
10.500% Senior Notes due 2022 {including the forms of notes attached thereto) {filed as Exhibit 4.3 to
the September 30, 2015 10-Q).*

Third Supplementat Indenture fo the 2015 Base Indenture, dated as of September 25, 2015, between
Frontier Communications Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, with respect to
11.000% Senior Notes due 2025 {including the forms of noles attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to
the September 30, 2015 10-Q}. *

Restated Indenture, dated as of March 25, 2008, between Southwestern Associated Teiephone
Company and First National Bank in Dallas, as trustee (fled as Exhibit 4.1 to Frontier's Quartery
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2016 (the “June 30, 2018 10-Q)).*
indenture, dated as of December 1, 1993, hetween GTE California Incorporated and Bank of America
National Trust and Savings Association, as trustes ({the “Califomia Indenture™) (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the
June 30, 2018 10-Q). *

First Supplemental Indenture to the California Indenture dated as of April 15, 1996, between GTE
California Incarporated and First Trust of California, National Association, as trustee (fled as Exhibit 4.3
to the June 30, 2016 10-Q), *

Indenture, dated as of November 1, 1993, between GTE Florida Incorporated and Nations Bank of
Georgia, Mational Association, as trustes (the *Florida Indenture”) (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the June 30,
2016 10-Q). *

First Supplemental Indenture to the Flarida Indenture dated as of January 1, 1998, between GTE
Fiorida Incorporated and 1he Bank of New York, as trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.5 to the June 30, 2016 10-
Q).

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 2, 2014, by and among Frontier, as the Borrower, and the

Lenders parly thereto and CoBank, ACB, as Administrative Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Frontier's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2014 (the "June 30, 2014 10-Q"
{lhe “2014 CoBank Credit Agreement”)).”

Second Amendment, dated as of March 5, 2015, to the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement,

among Frontier, as the Borrower, and CoBank, ACB, as the Administrative Agent and the Lenders
referred to therein (flled as  Exhiblt 10,2 to the March 5, 2015 8-1).*

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 12, 2016, by and among Frontier, as the Barrower, the Lenders
party thereto and CoBank, ACB, as the Administrative Agent {filed as Exhibit 10 to Frontier's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on Octeber 12, 216).*

First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of February 27, 2017, among Frentier, the
Lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Ghase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent {filed as Exhibit 18 to
Fronfier’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 28, 2017).*

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of May 13, 2009, by and among Verizon Communications Inc.
{*Verizan™}, New Communications Holdings Inc. {(“Spince”) and Frontier, {filed as Exhibit 10.3 fo
Frontier's Current Repart on Form 8-K filed on May 15, 2008).*

Agreement Regarding Intellectual Property Matters, dated as of March 23, 2010, among Frontier,
Spince and Verizon (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Spinco Form 10).*

Non-Employee Directars’ Deferred Fee Equity Plan, as amended and restated December 29, 2008
(filed as Exhibit 10.7 to Frontier's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008
(the “2008 10-K"). *

Non-Employee Directors’ Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and reslated December 29, 2008 ({filed as
Exhibil 10.8 to the 2008 10-K}),*
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Separation Agreement between Frontier and Leonard Tow effective July 10, 2004 {fited as Exhibit 10.2.4 of Frontier's
Quarterly Report on Fonm 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2004).*

1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated Decermnber 22, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.11 io the 2008 10-K).*
2013 Frontier Bonus Plan {filed as Appendix A to Frontier's Proxy Statement dated March 25, 2013 (the “2013 Praxy
Statemeni™)),*

Amended and Restated 2000 Equity incentive Plan, as amended and restated December 29, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.13 to
the 2008 10-K}y.*

2009 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix A to Frontier's Proxy Statement daled April 6, 2008).*

2013 Equity Incentive Pfan (filed as Appendix B to the 2013 Proxy Statement).”

Separation Agreement and Relgase, dated September 14, 2016, between Frontier and John M. Jurelier (fled as Exhibit
18.1 to Frontier's Quarierly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarier ended September 30, 2016 (the "September 30,
2016 10-Q").*

Offer of Employment Letter, dated Septembaer 1, 2018, between Frontier and R. Perley McBride {filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the
September 30, 2016 10-Q). *

Change in Contrel Lefter Agreement, dated Aprit 27, 2012, between Frontier and Danigl J. McCarthy {filed as Exhibit 10,1
ta Frontier's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2012).*

Offer of Employment Letter, dated February 25, 2015, between Frontier and Daniel .J. McCarthy (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
Frontier's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 3, 2015 {the "March 3, 2015 8-K")L*

Offer of Empioyment Letter, dated January 13, 2006, between Frontier and Cecilia K. McKenney (“McKenney Offer Letter”)
{filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Frontier's Quartery Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008).
Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to Offer of Employment Letter, dated January 13, 2006, between Frontier and Cecilia K.
McKenney (fited as Exhibit 10.5 to the June 30, 2012 10-Q)L*

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2013, between Frontier and Mary Agnes Wilderotier
{filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Frontier's Current Repert on Form 8-K filed on March 13, 2013 (the "Wilderotter Employment
Agreement™)).”

Amendment to the Wilderotter Employment Agreement, dated as of February 25, 2015, between Frontier and Mary Agnes
Wilderotter {filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the March 3, 2015 8-K)."

Ofter of Employment Letter, dated January 15, 2014, between Frantier and Mark D. Nielsen (filted as Exhibit 10.1 to the
June 30, 2014 10-Q).*

Offer of Employment Letter, dated June 9, 2014, between Frontier and Donald W. Daniets, Jr. (fled as Exhibit 10.3 fo the
June 30, 2014 10-O).*

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement far CED (filed as Exhibit 10.32 to Frontier's Annual Report on Form  10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009 (lhe 2009 10-K").”

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for named executive officers other than CEO (filed as Exhibit 10,33 to the 2009 {0-
K).r

Form of LTIP Agreement for CEO (fited as Exhibit 10.32 to the 2012 10-K).*

Form of LTIP Agreement for named execufive officers other than CEC {filed as exhibit 10.33 to the 2012

10-K).*

Summary of Mon-Employee Directors' Compensation Arrangements Outside of Formal Plans.

Computation of ratio of eamings to fixed charges {this item s included herein for the scle purpose of incorporation by
reference).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 {the
“1934 Act").

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant te Rule 13a-14{a} under the 1934 Act.

Ceriifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section: 906 of {the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

XBRL instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxoniomy Presentation Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Calculalion Linkbase Decument.

XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxeonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

Exhibits 10.7 through 10.29 are management contracts or compensatery plans or arangements.

* Incorporated by reference.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPDRATION
{Regisirant}

By: fsf Danisl .i. McCarthy
Daniel 4. McCarthy

President and Chief Executive Officer

February 28, 2017
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed helow by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 28" day of February 2017.

Signature Title

s/ Leroy T. Barnes, Jr. Dfrector
{Leroy T. Bames, Jr.)

fsi Peter C. B. Bynce Diractor
{Peter C, B. Bynoe)

fsf Donald Daniels Senior Vice President & Contreller
{Donald Daniels) {Principal Accounting Officer)

fsf Diana 8. Ferguson Directer

{Diana S. Ferguson}

fs{ Edward Fraioli Directar
(Edward Fraioli)

/sf R, Pedey McBride Execuiive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(R. Perley McBride) {Frincipal Financial Officer)

s/ Daniel ... McCarthy Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
{Daniel J. McCarthy) {Principal Execulive Officer)

s/ Pamela D.A. Reeve Director

{Pamela D.A. Reeve)

/s/ Virginia P, Ruesterholz Director
{Virginia . Ruesterholz}

/s Howard L. Schrott Diractor
{Howard L. Schrott}

fsf Larraine D. Segil Directer
{Larraine D. Segil)

/sf Mark Shapire Director
{Mark Shapiro}
s/ Myron A, Wick lil Director

(Myron A, Wick 11}
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATICN AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Managemant's Report On Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Sharsholders
Frontier Communications Gorparation:

The management of Frontier Communications Corperation and subsidiaries is responsibe for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal coniral over financtal reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{f) and 15¢-15(f).

Under the supervision ang with the participation of our management, we conducted an evaluation of the effecliveness of our intemal
coniral ever financial reporting based on the framewoark in Intemal Confrel-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0). Based en our evaluation, our management concluded that our infernal
cohirol over financial reporting was effective as of Decamber 31, 2016,

Qur independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, has audited the consolidated financial staternents included in this report
and, as part of their audit, has issued their repont, included herein, on the effectiveness of our intemal control over financial reporiing.

1/ Daniel J. McCarthy s/ R. Perley McBride
Daniel J. McCarthy R. Perley McBride
President and Chief Executive Gfficer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

MNorwalk, Connecticut
February 28, 2017

F-2
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Report of independent Reqgistered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Direclors and Stockholders
Frontier Communicaticns Corparafion:

We have audiled the accompanying consofidated balance sheets of Frontier Communications Corporation and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the refated consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, equity and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2016. These consclidated financial statements are the responsibitity of
the Company's managemant. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accouniing Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstaiement. An audi! includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial staternents referred to above present fairdy, in all material respects, lhe financial position of
Frontier Communications Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with U.5. generally accepted
accourting principles.

We also have audited, in accordances with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Frontier
Communications Corporation and subsidiaries internal contrel over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on criteda
established in Intemal Conirol—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO), and our repert dated February 28, 2017 expressed an ungualified opinion on the effecliveness of the Compary's
intemal controf over financial reporting.

fsf KPMG LLP

Stamiord, Connecticut
February 28, 2017

F3
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Steckholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We have audited Frontier Communications Corporation and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
20316, based on criteriz astablished in iniernal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Commiltee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (CCSO). Frontier Communications Corporation’s management is respensible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for ils assessment of the effectiveness of internal contro! over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management's Report On Internal Gontrol Over Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company's internaf control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accardance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Cversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether effective internal confrol over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and {esting and evaluating the design and operating efiectiveness of
internal contrel based on the assessed risk. Our audit alse included performing such oiher procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generafly accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal conirol over financial reporting inciudes those policies and procedures that (1) perlain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable defail, accurately and fairdy reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that {ransactions are recorded as necessary {o permit preparaion of financial statemants in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made enly in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasenable assurance regarding
prevention ar timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposilion of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cantrol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to fulure periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compfiance wilh the policies or procedures may deterorate.

In our opinion, Frontier Communications Corporation and subsidiaries maintained, in ali material respecis, effective intemal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on critetia established in Intemal Control — Integrated Framework (2013} issued by
COsC.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the
consolidated halance sheels of Frontier Communications Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the
related consofidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2016, and our report dated February 28, 2017 expressed an ungualified opinion on those consclidated financial
statements,

/s KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 28, 2017
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOILIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
{$ in millions and shares in thousands, except for per-share amounts}

ASSETS
Current assals:
Cash and cash egquivalenis
Accounts receivable, less sllowances of $131 and $57, respectively
Restricted cash
Prepaid expenses
Income taxes and other current assets
Total current assets

Proparty, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangibles, net
Other assets
Total assets

LIAB. H 0
Current liabilities:
Long-term debt due within one year
Atccounts payable
Advanced biflings
Accreed other taxes
Accrued interest
Pension and other postretirement benefits
Other current liabitities
Tutal current labilities

Deferred incoma taxes
Pension and other postretirement benefits
Other tiabilities
Long-term debt
Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value (50,000 authorized shares,
11.125%, Series A, 19,250 shares issued and outstanding)
Commaon stock, $0.25 par value (1,750,000 authorized shares,
1,192 986 issuved, and 1,172,553 and 1,168,200 outstanding,
at December 34, 2016 and 2015, respectively)
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumufated other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Treasury common stack
Total equity
Total Habilities and equity

2016 2015
) 522 % 938
938 571
- 8,444
88 100
108 BO
1,658 10,131
14,802 8,493
8,674 7,166
2,662 1,143
119 151
$ 29,013 § 7 084
$ 363 % 384
608 467
301 160
134 87
437 403
23 33
ABS 358
2,444 1,883
2,516 2,666
1,602 1,163
372 240
17.560 15,508
298 298
5,283 8,034
(450} {B7)
{387) {353)
(215 {278)
4,518 5,614
E 20013 §$ 27.084

The accompanying Motes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 20186, 2015 AND 2014
{$ in millions and shares in thousands, except for par-share amounts)

2016 2015 2014

Reverue $ 56896 3 5576 § 4772
Operating expenses:

Network access expenses 1,470 B40 485

Metwork related expenses 1,887 1,287 1,118

Sefling, general and administrative expenses 2,003 1,346 1,086

Depreciation and amartization 2,031 1,320 1,13¢

Acquisition and infegration cosis 4356 236 142

Restructuring costs and other charges 91 2 2
Total operating expenses 8,008 4,831 3,852
Operating income 888 745 820
Investment and other income, net 20 7 ag
Interest expense 1,531 1,113 =125

Incoma (loss) hefore income taxes 623) (361) 183
Income tax expense (henefif) {260) {183) 30
Net income (loss) {373) (126) 133
Less: Dividends on preferred stock 214 120 -
Net income (foss) attributable io

Frontler commoen shareholders $ {587) & {316) § 133
Basic and diluted net income {loss) per share

atiributable to Frontier commaon sharghalders ] {0.51} & {0.29) §. 0.13
Total weighted averane shares oulstanding - basic 4,164,089 1,084,606 934 418
Total weighted average sharzs oulstanding - diuted 1,164,089 1,084,606 958,162

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2015 AND 2014
{$ in millions)
2016 2015 2014

Net income {loss) % (373 % {198} % 133
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax {34) 31 {143]
Comprehensive loss $ 407y % (145} § {10)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016, 2015 AND 2014
($ in millions and shares in thousands)

Drataieard It

Additienat Eamings Ciher Freasury
Prefered Stock Cartipon Stock Paid-In tAccumalated Comprehensive Comman Sinck Tatal
Shares  Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficil) Loss Sharas Amouni Eguity
Balance Decamber 31, 2013 -5 - 10274986 % 257§ 4321 3 T8 & {261} {28524 § {(338) § 4,055
Stock plans - - - - {3 - - 2067 44 14
Dividends on commen sloth - - - - {3at) (100} - - - {401}
Ned income - - - - - 123 - - - 133
MHher comprehensive lass, .
net of tax - - - - - - (1433 . - (143)
Halance December 31, 2014 - - 1,027,088 257 3,990 108 [404) {25,517} {294) 3,658
|ssuance of commen slock - - 165,000 41 758 - - - - i
Issuancs of preferred stock 19,250 - - - 1,866 - - - - 1,868
Stock plans - - - - {4) - - 73 16 12
Dlvidends on comman stock - - - - (455} - - - - (456)
Dividends on prefarred siock - - - - (120} - - - - 1120
et loss - - - - - [ 186} - - - {198)
Olhar comprehensive income,
nel of 1ax - - - - - - 51 - - 51
Balance Decemnber 31, 2015 19.250 - 1.162.886 298 6,034 (87} {353) {24,788) {278) 5,814
Stock plans . - - - {44 - - 4,353 63 19
Dividends cn common stock - - - - 403} - - - - {493}
Dividends on prefemed stock - - - - 214 - - - - 214
Net lass - - - - - (373 - - - {373)
Other cormprehensive loss, net
of lax - - - - - - 34 - - {3_4.11
Balance December 31, 2016 18258 5 - 1192886 § 288 ¥ 5.2& % {4601 3 {187} (20433 & (215 § 4.57%

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016, 2015 AND 2014

Lash flows provided fram {used by) aparating aclivites:
el incama [foss)
Adjustments ta resoncile net ineoms (|oss) to nel cash provided from
operating aclivittes:
Cepreciation and amertization
Leosy on dabl exchangas
Pension/CPEB cosls
Spacial Termination Benelits
Siock based compensdlion expense
Gauns on sale of assets
Amertization of defarrad financing costs
Ciher non-cash adjustments
Dafarred income taxes
Change in acsounls receivabla
Change in peyable and other
Change In prepaid expenses, mcome taxes and other curent assels
Met cash provided from operating aclivitios

Cash flows provided from (used by} invashng activilies:
Caszh paid for CTF Acquistion
Cash pald for Connechcut Acquisition
Capilal expenditures - Busi parali
Capilal difures - Integretion
Hetwork expansion fundad by Canpect America Fund - Phase 1
Grant funds recaived for nebwork expansion from
Connect America Fund - Phage 1
Procesds on sale of assels
Cash paid for n aequisthan, net of cazh acquirad
Oiher

et cash used by investing acliviiies

Cash fews providad from (used by) financing aclivitles.
Proceeds from fang-tarm debt borrowings
Financing costs paid
Leng-terrn debt payments
Proceeds from issuance of comman slock, net
Proceeds from issuance of prafarred atack, nat
Dividands paid en common stack
Dividends paid on praferred stock
Othar
Met cash provided from f
Increased{Decrease) in cash. cash equivalents and restrictad cash
Cash, cash aquivalonts and restricted cash at January %,

Lash, cash equi and itted cash at D ber 31,
By 1 cash Mow
Cash paid frecaived) during the penod for:
[rigrest

Incame {axes (refunds), net

Nen-cash investing and-financng activies.
i i bigation for ¢ i of real propeny o pension plan

F
Reduclion

Decraase In c'.aphal experfiures due to changes
i accounts payable
Conyersion of aperating leases to capitat leases

{$ in millions)

2016 2015 2014
5 @) s {196} 5 133
2,091 1,320 1,539
T - .
79 10 {18
25 - -
24 27 23
- - =30
45 181 10
t2) - 22
(205) (167) {78}
)] 62 {61}
{22) 102 90
85 {48 47
1568 1 .3CFI'l 1,270
9871} . .
- - (2,018)
{1.259) (710} {572)
[142) {133} 118)
- 22} 156)
- - 4
& 22 T
- tn -
5 2 32
[11,259) {878y (2 .687)
1,840 B 603 1,511
k3] {119) (40)
(4523 (298} {260y
- FE) -
- 1,866 o
(492} {458) {401)
(2443 {120 -
Li:T) - 12)
T35 7275 7208
{B.858) 4,695 {20%)
5,380 £82 B31
H 52 3 5350 & 562
8 1487 § 726§ 656
5 {(t2h = 2B $ 70
$ %58 -8 -
$ 15§ -8 -
B B3 56) & (15)
3 111 ) - % -

The accompanying Notes are an integrat part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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Naotes to Consalidated Financial Statements

(1) DQescription of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies:
{s) Description of Business:

b

)

)

d

—

Frontier Communications Corporation (Frontier} is the fourth largest Incumbent Local Exchange Camier {ILEC) in the
United States, with approximately 5.4 miflion customers, 4.3 millien broadband subscribers and 28,300 employees,
operaling in 29 states, Frontier was incorperated in 1935, originally under the name of Citizens Utilittes Coempany and
was known as Citizens Communications Coempany until July 31, 2008. Frontier and its subsidiaries are referred to as
“we,” ‘us,” "our,” "Frontier,” or the “Company” in this report.

Effective Aprit 1, 2016, Frontier's scope of operations and balance shieet changed materially as a result of the completion
of the CTF Acquisition, as described in Note 3 - Acguisitions. Historical financial dats presented for Frontier is not
indicative of the future financial position or operating results for Frontier, and includes the results of the CTF Operations,
as defined in Note 3 — Acquisitions, from the date of acquisition on Aprit 1, 2018,

Basis of Presentalion and Use of Estimates;

Cur consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAPR). Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to
conform to the current presentation. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation,

For our financial statements as of and for the perfod ended Dacember 31, 2016, we evaluated subsequent events and
transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through the date that we filed this Form 10-K with the Securilies and
Exchange Commission (SEC).

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect {j) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the finangial statements, (i) the
disciosure of centingent assets and labifities, and (i) the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporling period. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Estimates and judgments are used when accounting for
the allowance for doubfful accounis, asset impairments, indefinite-ived intangibles, depreciation and amertization,
incorme taxes, business combinations, and pension and other postretirement benefits, among others.

Cash Eguivalents:

¥We censider all highly liguid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognized when services are provided or when preducts are delivered to customers. Revenue that is billed

in advance includes monthly recuming network access services {including data serviees), special access services and
monthly recurring veice, video and related charges. The uneamed portion of these fees is initially deferred as a
compenent of "Advanced biflings" on our consolidated balance sheet and recognized as revenue over the period that the
sefvices are provided. Revenue that is bifled in arrears includes non-recurring network access services (including data
sefvices), switched access services and non-recurring voice and video services. The earned but unbilled portion of these
fees is recognized as revenue in cur consclidated statements of operations and accrued in "Accounts Receivable” on our
consolidated balance sheet in the period thal the services are provided. Excise taxes are recognized as a liability when
billed. Instaflation fees and their related direct and incremental costs are initially deferred and recognized as revenue and
expense over the average temn of a customer relationship. We recognize as current period expense the poriion of
installation costs that exceeds installation fee revenue,

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based on an estimate of our ability to collect accounts receivable., At
December 31, 2018, our accounis receivable balances, including balances for delinquent accounts, were higher than
usual as a result of planned delays in cofleclion efforts for certain new customers acguired in the CTF Acquisition. These
payment defays are customary for us after large acquisitions in order

F-g
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

to allow for resolution of any service or billing issuves for new customers. Our allowance for deubtfiil accounts was
adjusted to reflect our best estimate of collectability.

Frontier collects various {axes from its customers and subsequently remits these faxes to governmental authorities.
Substantially ali of these taxes are recerded through the consolidated batance sheet and presented an a net basis in our

consolidated statements of operations. We also collect Universal Service Fund (USF) surcharges from customers

{primarily federal USF) that we have recorded on a gross basis in our consclidated statements of operations and included
within “Revenue” and “Network related expenses” of 5217 miflion, $151 million and $125 million for the years ended
December 31, 2018, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In 2015 we accepted the FCC’s Connect America Fund (CAF) Phase 1] offer of support, which is a successor to and
augments the USF frozen high cost support that we had been receiving pursuant to a 2011 FCC order. Upon completion
of the CTF Acquisition, Frontier assumed the CAF Phase [l support and related obligations that Verizan had previously
accepted with regard to California and Texas. CAF Fhase 1l funding is a program intended to subsidize the high cost of
establishing and delivering communications services to certain unserved or underserved areas. We are recognizing
these subsidies into revenue an a straight line basis, which is consistent with how the costs related to these subsidies are
baing and are expected lo be Incurred. CAF Phase It is a muiti-year program which requires us to depley broadband to a
specified number of hauseholds in each of the states where funding was accepted. Failure to meet our deployment
obligations at the end of the pregram in 2020 will result in a return of a portion of the funding received. We regularly
evaluate our ability to meet cur broadband deployment obligations and adjust revenue accardingly.

We categorize our products, services and other revenues among the following five categorias:

Voice services include traditional local and long distance wireline services, Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP)
services, as well as a2 number of unified messaging services offered to our residential and business customers.
Voice services also include the long distance voice origination and termination services that we provide fo our
business customers and other cariers;

Data and Infernef services include broadband services for residential and business customers. We provide dafa
fransmission services to high volume business customers and other carriers with dedicated high capacity
circuits {"honswitched access”™) including services to wireless providers ("wireless backhaul™);

Video services include revenues generated from services provided dirsctly to residentialt custorners through the
FiOS® and Vantage videe brands, and through DISH® satellite TV services;

»  Other customer revenue includes sales of customer premise equipment to our business customers and
directory services, less our provision for bad debts; and

Switched Access and Subsidy revenues include revenues derived from allowing other carrers to use our
network to originate andfor terminate their local and long distance voice traffic (“switched access™). These
services are primatily bifled on a minutes-of-use basis applying tariffed rates filed with the FCC or siate
agencies. We also receive cost subsidies from state and federal authorities, including the Connect America
Fund Phase il.
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The following fable provides a summary of revenues from external customers by the categories of Frontier's products and
Services:

For the year ended
Becember 31,

(% in miffions} 2016 2015 2014

Voice services 5 2,886 5 2022 ] 1,881

Data and Internet services 3,693 2337 1,848

Video services 1,244 285 134

Other 276 255 220
Customer revenue 8,089 4 Bag 4,253

Switched access and subsidy 787 677 519
Tolal revienue $ 5,896 $ 5,576 E 4,772

{e) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at original cost, including capitalized interest, or fair market value as of the date
of acquisition for acquired properties. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expenses as incurred. The
gross book value of routing property, plant and equipment retiremeants is charged against accumulated depreciation.

{f) Gogdwill and Gther Infangibfes:

)]

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair vahie of identifiable tangible and intangible net assets
acquired. We undertake studies to determine the fair values of assets and labilities acquired and alfocate purchase
prices to assets and fiabiliies, including property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other identiffiable intangibles.
We examine the carrying value of our goodwill and trade name annually as of December 31, or more frequenily, as
circurnstances warrant, to determine whether there are any impaimment losses. We tast for goodwill impairment at the
"operating segment” level, as that term Is defined in GAAP. During the second quarter of 2016, Frontier reorganized infc
seven regional operating segments, which are aggregated into one reportable segment, In conjunclion with the
rearganization of our operating segments, effective with the second quarter of 20168, we reassigned goodwill to our
regional operating segments (reporting uniis) using a relative fair value allocation approach.

Frontier amottizes finite-lived infangible assets over their estimated useful lives on the accelerated method of sum of the
years digits. We review such intangible assets at least annually as of December 31 to assess whether any potentiat
impaimnent exists and whether factors exist that would necessitate a change in useful life and a different amortization
period.

rmpairmen ong-Lived Assets and | ong-Lived Assets to j d Of:

We review long-fived assels to be held and used, including customer lists, and long-lived assets to be disposed of for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to
the future undiscounted net cash fiows expected to be generated by the asset, Recoverability of assets held for sale is
measured by cemparing the carmying amount of the assets to their estimated fair market value, If any assets are
considered {o be impaired, the impairment is measured by the amount by which the camying amount of the asseis
exceeds the estimated fair value. Also, we pericdically reassess the useful lives of our tangible and inlangible assets to
determine whether any changes are required,
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{h) Income Taxes and Deferred Income Taxes:

Y file a consclidated federal income tax return, We utilize the asset and liability method of accounting for Income taxes.
Under the asset and liability method, deferred income taxes are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences
between the financial statement basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected 1o be in effect
when the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

(i) :

We have various stock-based compensation plans. Awards under these plans are granted to eligible employees and
directors. Awards may be made in the form of incentive stack options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation
rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units or other stock-based awards, including awards with performance, market
and time-vesting conditions. Qur general policy is to issue shares from treasury upon the grant of restricted shares,
eaming of performance shares and the exercise of options.

The compensation cost recognized is based on awards ultimately expected to vest. GAAP requires forfeitures to be
estimated and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

{j} Metlncome {Loss) Per Share Attributable to Frontier Commen Shareholders:
Basic net income (foss) per common share is computed using ihe weighted average number of common shares
cutstanding during the period being reported on, excluding unvested restricted stock awards. The impact of dividends
paid on unvested restricted stock awards have been deducted in the determination of basic and diluted net income {loss)
per share attributable to Frontier common shareholders. Except when the effect would be antidiluiive, diluted net income
per common share reflects the dilutive effect of certain common stock equivalents, as describad further in Note 13 — Net
thcome (Loss) Per Common Share.

Recent Accounting Pronoyricements:

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncemenis

Business Combinations — Measurerent jod Adjustments

in Seplember 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-16, “Business Combinations — Simplifying the Accounting for
Measurement Period Adjustments.” This ASU requires that an acquirer recognizes adiustments to provisional amounts that
are identified during the measurament pericd in the reporting period in which the adjustment amounts are determined, The
amendments in this Update reguire that the acquirer recard, in the same period’s financial statements, the effect on eamings
of changes in depreciation, amortization, or cther income effects, i any, as a result of the change to the provisional amounts,
caleulated as if the accounting had been completed at the acguisition date. The amendments in this Update require an entity
to present separately on the face of the income slatement or disclose in the notes the portion of the amount recorded in
currert-period eamings by line item that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the
provisional amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date. The new guidance was effective for Frontier on January
1, 2016 and has been applied to the measurement period adjustments related to our CTF Acguisition during 2016.

Emplovee Beneffi Plans
In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-12, “Plan Accounting: Defined Benefit Pension Plans {Topic $80), Defined

Ceontribution Pension Plans (Topic 962), and Health and Welfare Benefit Plans {Topic 968)™ There are three parts fo the ASU

that aim to simplify the accounting and presentation of plan accounting. Part 1 of this ASU requires fully benefit-responsive.

investment contracts to be measured at contract value instead of the current fair value measurement. Part 1l of this ASU
requires investments {(both parlicipant-directed and nonpardicipant-directed investmenis) of employee benefit plans be
grouped only by general type, eliminating the need to disaggregate the investments in multiple ways, Part 1l of this ASU
provides a similar measurement date practical expedient for employee benefit plans as available in ASU No. 2015-04,
“Compensation — Retirement Benefits (Topic 715)," which allows employers to measure defined benefit plan assets on a
month-end date that is nearest to the year's fiscal year-end when the fiscat pericd does not coincide wilh a month-end. Parts |
and Il of the new guidance should be applied on a retrospective basis, Part [l of the new guidance
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should be applied on a prospeclive basis. The new guidance was effective for Frontier on January 1, 2016 and
Frontier has applied the new guidance in its reporting for defined benefit plans completed in 20186.

Cash Flows - Classification of Certain Cash Receipis and Cash Payments
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15," Staternent of Cash Flows — Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and

Cash Payments,” This ASU addresses eight specific cash flow issues with the objective of reducing the existing diversity in
practice. The amendments in this ASU provide guidance on the following cash flow issues; 1) debt prepayment or debt
extinguishment costs; 2) setilement of zero-coupon debi instruments; 3) contingeri consideration paymenis made after
a business combination; 4} proceeds from the setffement of insurance claims; 5} praceeds from the sefllement of corporate-
owned life insurance policies, induding bank-owned life insurance policies; 6) distributions received from equity method
investees; 7) beneficial interests in securitization transactions; and 8) separately identifiable cash flows and application of the
predominance principle. The new guidance was early adopted by Frontier in 2016 and Frontier has retrospectively applied
the new guidance in our Statement of Cash Flows for 2014, 2015, and 20186.

h Flows - Restricted Cash
In November 2816, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, “Statement of Cash Flows — Restricted Cash Flows.” This ASU
requires that a statement of cash fiows expiain the change during the period in the tofal of cash, cash equivalents, and
amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricied cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts generally described as
restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should be indluded with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the
beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The amendments in this Update
do not provide a definition of restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. The new guidance was early adopted by Frontier
in 2016 and Frontier has retrospectively applied the new guidance in our Statement of Cash Flows for 2014, 2015, and 2048,

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

Revenue Recognilion

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards tpdate {ASU) No. 2014-09,
‘Revenue fram Contracts with Customers.” This standard, along with its selated amendments, requires companies to
recognize revenue io depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflecls the
consideration fo which Frontier expects to be enfitled in exchange for those goods or services, This new standard is effective
for annual and interirs reporiing periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Companies are aiso permitted to voluntarily
adopt the new standard as of the original effective date that was for annual reporiing periods beginning after December 15,
2016, however, Frontier does not intend io early adopt. Companies are permitted to either apply lthe requirements
refrospectively to all prior periods presented, or appiy the requirements in the vear of adoption, through & cumulative
adjustment. Frontier has not yet selected a transition method and is currently evaluating the guidance and developing an
implementaticn plan.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018 — 02, “Leases {Topic B42)." This standard establishes the principles to
report fransparent and economically neutral infarmation about the assefs and liabilities that arise from lsases. Upon
implementation, lessees will need to recognize aimost all Jeases on their balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability. It will be critical to identify leases embedded in a contract to avoid misstating the lessee’s balance sheet. For income
slaternent purposes, the FASB retained a dual model, requiring leases to be classified as either operating or finance.
Classification will be based on criteria 1hat are largely similar to those applied in current lease accounting, but without explicit
bright lines, Lessor accounting is similar to the current model, but updated to align with certain changes to the lessee model
and the new revenue recognition standard. Existing sale-leaseback guidance, including guidance for real estaie, is replaced
with a new model applicable to hoth lessees and lessors. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018, including interim periods. wilhin those fiscal years. Early application is permitted. Frontier is currently
evaluating the impact of adopling the new standard, but has not yet determined the impact of adoption on its consolidated
financial statements.
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Compensation - Sfock Compensation

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-09, “Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting,” to
amend ASC Topic 718, “Compensation —~ Sieck Compensation,” The ASU is part of the FASB's ongoing simplification
initiative, which is designed o reduce cost and complexity while maintaining or improving the usefulness of the information
provided to the users of financial statements. The proposed simplifications address a variety of areas for public enfities,
including the follewing: 1) accounting for income taxes, 2} classification of excess tax benefits on the statement of cash flows,
3) forfeifures, 4) minimum statutory tax withholding requirements, 5) classifications of employee taxes paid on the statement
of cash flows when an employer withhelds shares for tax withholding purposes, and 6) classification of awards with
repurchase features, The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning afier December 15, 2016, including interim
periods within those fiscal years. Frontier has deterrnined that the impact of adoption is immaterial to its consclidated financial
statements,

intangibles — Goodwill )

In January 2017, the FASE issued ASU No. 2017-04, “Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment,” This standard was
established to simplify how an entity is required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating Step 2 from the goodwill
impairment test. Step 2 measures a goodwill impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of a reporting unit's goodwill
with the carrying amount of that goodwill. Under the amendments in this Update, an entity should perform #ts annual, or
interim, goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrving amount. An entity should
recogrize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit's fair value;
hawever, the loss recognized should not exceed ihe total amount of goodwilt allocated to that reporting unit. Additiopally, an
entity should consider income {ax effects from any tax deductible goodwill on the carrying ameunt of the reporting unit when
measuring the goodwill impairment loss, if applicable. The Board also eliminated the requirements for any reporting unit with
a zero or negative carrying amount to perform a gualitative assessment and, i it fails that quzlitative test, to perform Step 2 of
the goodwill impairment test, Therefore, the same impairment assessment applies to all reporting units. An entity is required
te disclose the amount of goodwill allocated to each reporting unit with a zero or negative camying amount of net assets. An
entity still has the option to perform the gualitative assessment for a reporting unit to determine if the quantitative impairment
test is necessary. The new guidance is effeclive for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods
within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permifted for interim or annual goodwill impairment fests performed on lesting
dates after January 1, 2017, Frontier is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard and has not yet
determined the impact of adoption on its consolidated financial statements.

Acquisitions:

The CTF Acginsitio

Cn Aprit 1, 2016, Frontier acquired the wireline operations of Verizon Communications, Inc. in Califomia, Texas and Florida
for a purchase price of $10,540 million in cash and assumed debt (the CTF Acguisition), pursuant to the Febreary 5, 2015
Securities Purchase Agreement, as amended. In addifion, Frontier and Verizon settted the working capital and net debt
adjustments with $15 miflion paid to Frontier in October 2016. As a result of the CTF Acquisition, Frontier now operates these
former Verizon properties, which inciuded approximately 2.5 million total customers, 2.1 million broadband subscribers, and
1.2 million FiOS video subscribers as of April 1, 2016 {the CTF Operations).

Our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes $3,622 miflion of revenue and
$582 million of operating income related to the nine months of aperating results of the CTF Operations since April 1, 2018,

The allocation of the purchase price presented below, which is preliminary and subject to change, represents the effect of
recording the estimates of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of the CTF Acquisition,
based on the ictal fransaction cash consideration of $2,886 million at December 31, 2016, as adjusted for the $15 million
settlement payment discussed above. These current estimates will be revised in future periods for information that is currently
not available to us, primarily related io certain legal and tax accruals and contingencies; actounts receivable; property, plant
and equipment; customer base and
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other intangibles, deferred income lax assets and Habiliies; pension assets and liabilities, as well as other assumed
postrefirement benefit obligations, pending completion of actuarial studies and the refated transfer of pension assets. The
revisions may affect the presentation of our consolidated financiaf results. Any changes to the initial estimates of the fair value
of the assets and liabilties will be recorded as adjustments to those assets and Kabilities and residual amounts will be
allocated to goodwill.

($ inr miftions)

Current assets 5 350
Properly, plant & equipment 6,235
Goadwill 2,508
Otherintangibles - primarily customer base 2,182
Current liabilittes (518)
Long-term debt (544}
Other liabiliies {323)

Total net assets acquirad % 0871

The total consideration exceeded the net estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed by $2,508 million,
which we recognized as goodwill. This goodwill is attributable to sirategic benefits, including enhanced financial and
operational scale, market diversification and leveraged combined networks that we expect 1o realize. This amount of goodwill
associated with the CTF Acquisition wilt be deductible for income tax purposes.

The Securities Purchase Agreement provides for a post-closing adjustment for both pension liabilities and pensiori assets.
Frontier and Verizon have not finalized the results of these caiculations. Such calculations will be completed in accordance
with the terms of the Securities Purchase Agreement.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of Froritier and the CTF
Operations as if the CTF Acguisition had occurred as of January 1, 2015. The pro forma information is not necessarily
indicative of what the financial position or results of operations actually would have been had the CTF Acquisition been
sompleted as of January 1, 2015. In addition, the unaudited pro forma financial informalion is not indicative of, nor does it
purport to project, the future financial position or operating results of Frontier, The unaudited pro forma financial information
excludes acquisition and integration costs and does ndt give effect to any estimated and potential cost savings or other
operating efficiencies that may result from the CTF Acquisition.

{Unaudited)
Far the year ended December 31,

(£.in mitfons, except per share amoynts) 2016 2016
Revenus ¥ 10,265 % 1,157
Operating income 3 1,433 % 1,528
Net loss attributable to Frontier

cornmon shareholders 3 262 & {182)
Basic and diluted net loss per

share attributable to Frontier

common shareholders |3 {0.23) % {0.17)
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Curing 2015, we completed ocur financing activities associated with the CTF Acqguisition, which inciuded: 1) a private debt
offering of $6,600 million of unsecured senior notes in September 2015, 2) the 2015 Credit Agreement (as defined below) for
a senior secured delayed-draw term loan faciity in August 2015 and 3} a registered offering of $2,750 milllon of preferred and
common stock in June 2015, Net proceeds from these debt and equily offerings together with the proceeds received from the
delayed draw term loan facility and cash on hand were used to fund the CTF Acquisition and pay related fees and expenses.

The Connecticut Acgquisition

On October 24, 2014, Frontier acquired the wireline properties of AT&T Inc. {AT&T) in Conneclicut (the Connecticut
Acquisition) for a purchase price of $2,018 million in cash, pursuant to the stock purchase agreement dated December 16,
2013, as amended. Following the Connecticut Acquisitiors, Frontier now owns and operates the wireline business and fiber
aptic network servicing residential, commercial and wholesale customers in Connecticut. Frontier also acquired the AT&T U-
verse® video (Vantage) and DISH® satellite TV customers in Connecticut. See Nete 7 for further discussion related o
financing the Connecticut Acguisition.

Our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 include $1,049 miliion and $216
million of reveniue, respectively, and $100 million and $38 millicn of operating income, respeciively, related to the results of
the Connecticut operations.

The final alfocation of the purchase price presented below represents the effect of recording the fair value of assets acquired,
liabfiities assumed and related deferred income taxes as of the date of the Connecticut Acquisition, based on the fotal
transaction consideration of $2 018 miliion,

(% in mitligns}
Current assets $ 59
Property, plant & eguipment 1,459
Goodwill 815
Other intangibles - customer base 570
Currant liabitities (94}
Deferred income taxes {576}
Other liablilies {225}
Total net assels acquired 3 2,018

The total consideration exceeded the net estimailed fair value of the assefs acquired and liabilities assumed by $815 million,
which we recognized as goodwill. This goodwill is aftributable to strategic benefits, including enhaneced financial and
operational scale, market-diversification and leveraged combined netwoerks that we expect {o realize. Of this amount, goodwill
associated with the Conneclicut Acquisition of $75 miflion is deductible for income tax purposes.

The following unaudiled pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of Frontier and the
Connectlicut operations as if the Connecticut Acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2014, The pro ferma information is not
necessarily indicalive of what the financial position or resulis of operations actually would have been had the Conneclicut
Acquisition been completed as of January ¥, 2014, In addition, the unaudited pro forma financial information is not indicative
of, nor does it purport to project, the future financial position or operating results of Frontier. The unaudited pre forma financiat
information excludes. acquisition and integration costs and does not give effect to any estimated and potential cost savings or
other operating efficiencies that may result from the Cennecticut Acquisition.
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{Unaudited)
For the year ended December 31,

{3 in millfons. excent per share amaunts) 2014
Revenue 5 5778
Operating income 3 985
Net income attributable to Frontier

common shareholders $ 191
Basic and difuted net income per

share attributable to Frontier

commpr shareholders % 0.19

visition and infegration Costs
Acquisition costs inciude legal, financial advisory, accounling, regulatory and other related costs. Integration costs include
expenses that are incremental and directly related to the acquisition, and were incurred to integrate the network and
information technolegy platfiorms and to enable other integration initialives.

Frontier incured operating expenses related to the CTF Acquisition and the Conneclicut Acquisition, as follows:

For the Year Ended

(£ ip millons] 2015 2015 2014

Acquisition costs:
CTF Acquisition § 23 8 44 $ -
Cennecticut Acguisition - 1 15
23 a5 15

[ntegration costs:
CTF Acquisition 412 152 -
Connacifcut Acqulsifion 1 ag 127
413 181 127

Tatal acquisition and

integration costs g 436 £ 235 % 142

We also invested $142 million and $128 miflion in capital expenditures related to the CTF Acquisition during the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2015, respectively. In connection with the Connecticut Acguisition, Fronfier invested $24 million and
$118 million in capital expenditures during fhe years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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(4) Accounts Receivable:

The components of accounts receivable, net at December 31, 2018 and 2015 are as follows.

{$ in millians) 2016 2016

Retail and Wholesale $ a78 $ 569

Other a0 53

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (131) 57y
Accounts receivable, net $ 938 -3 571

An analysis of the activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is

as follows:
Charged {Credited} to
Balance at Swilched and Nonswitched
peginning of Charged to Gther Revenue and Other White-offs, net of Balance at end of
(3 in miltions) Period Revenue Accounts Recoveries Period

2014 $ N s & $ - 5 (60} § 72
2015 $ 72 k] &7 $ (17} $ (85} % 57
2016 $ 57 3 164 $ 15 5 (105} § 13

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based on our estimate of cur ability fo collect accounts receivable. The
provision for uncollectible armounts was 5179 million, $50 miltion, and $61 miflion for the years ended December 31, 2018,
2015 and 2014, respectively. Cur allowance for doubtful accounts declined in 2015, primarily as a result of the resolution of a
principal carrfer dispute. Our allowance for doubtful accounts increased in 2018 primarily as a result of the customer account
balances related to the CTF Cperations subsequent to the CTF Acquisition,

{5) Property, Plani and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment, net at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
Estimated Useful
{3 in miflions) Lives 2016 215
Land N/A $ 235 1564
Buildings and leasehold improvements 41 years 2,300 1,327
General support 5 to 17 years 1,495 1,148
Central officefelactranic circuit equipment 5 to 18 years 7683 6,244
Poles 30 years 995 712
Cable, fiber and wire 15 to 25 years 10,267 7.280
CGonduit 55 years 1,611 515
Other 12 to 25 years 52 47
Construclion work in progress 903 378
Proparty, pfant and equipment 25,541 17,801
Less: Accumulaled depreciation (10,638} {9,308}
Properly, plant and equipment, net 5 14902 § 8,483

Property, plant, and equipment includes approximately $154 miflion and $43 million of fixed assets recognized under capital
leases as-of Decamber 31, 2016 and 2015, respeclively,
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o Depreciation éxpense is principally based on the composite greup methed. Deprecialion expense was as follows:
For the Year Ended
% in millions) 2016 2015 2014
Depreciation expense 3 1,388 3 983 ] 835
We adopted new estimated remaining usefut fives for cerfain plant assets as of Cctober 1, 2018, as a result of an anniia
independent study of the estimated remaining useful lives of our plant assets, with an insigrificant impact to depreciation
expense, In addition, the estimated useful fives for assets acquired in the CTF Acquisition were adopted for such assets
based on a similar study performed as of October 1, 2015 and were effective Agril 1, 2016
{6) Goodwill and Other Intangibles:
The activity in our goodwill frem January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016 is as follows:
(% in miffions) Goodwill
Balance at January 1, 2015 5 7,205
Commecticut Acguisition Adjustment (53)
Other Acguisition . 14
Balance at December 31, 2015 7,166
CTF Acquisition {Note 3) 2,508
Balance at December 31, 2018 % 9,674
The componants of other intangibles at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as foliows-
2016 2015
Grass Camying Accumulated Met Carrying Grozs Carrying Accumulated Met Carmying
{3 in milfions) Amount Amertization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
S
) Dther Intangibles: )
Cuslormer base $ 5,088 F {2.604) $ 2484 % 2,998 % (1.877) & 1.021
Trade name 122 - 122 122 - 122
Royally agreement 72 {16] 6 - - ; -
‘folal other intangibles $ 5,282 § {2,620) $ 2662 § 3120 % {1,977} % 1,143
Amortization expense was as follows:
For the Year Ended
{%.in millians) 2018 2015 2014
Amortization expense 5 €43 5 337 5 304
Amortization expense pimarily represents the amortization of cur customar base acquired as a result of the CTF Acquisition,
the Connedticut Acquisition and the acquisition of cerfain Verizon properties in 2010 with each based on a useful life of 8 to
12 years on an accelerated melhed. The approximate weighted average remaining life of our customer base is 7 years and
for our royaity agreement is 4 years. Amortization expense
F-19
K

hips:iwww.sec.goviArchives/edgar/data/20520/000002052017000003/ftr--20161 23110k .him 7707




71202017 2016 Form 10K

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Stalements

based on our current estimate of useful lives, is estimated to be approximately $663 million in 2017, $552 million in 2018,
%439 milltors In 2019, $342 million in 2020, and $251 million in 2021.
{7} Long-Te
The activity in aur long-term debt from January 1, 2016 1o December 31, 2016 is summarized as follows.

Year ended December 31, 2016

Paymenls Interest Rale at
danuary 1, and Mew Delr December 31, December 31,
(% in milions] 2016 Retirements  Bomowings _Assumed Reclassifications 2018 2016°
Senior & Subsidiary
Unsecured Oebt § 16055 8§ a1g 5 401 5 00§ 837 & 15,900 9.18%
Senior Secured Cebt - {426) 1840 - 637 Z15 3.88%
Secured Subsidiary Debt - - - 400 - 00 B.50%
Secured Debt 23 L) - - - 19 4.50%
Rural Utifities Service Loan Contracts 2 - - - - 8 6.15%
Total Long-Term Debt 5 16086 _§ 849 & 2341 3 B00 3 - & 18,173 8.55%
Less: Debt Issuance Costs (1986} {209
Less: Debl Prernium {Discounl) 2 {46}
Less: Currenl Portion {384} {363
§ 15,808 5 17,560

* interest rate includes amortization of debt issuance costs and debl premiums or discounts. The interest rates at December 31, 2016
represent a weighted average of multipfe issuances.
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Additional information regarding our senjor unsecured debf, senior secured debt and subsidiary debt at December 31, 2016 and
2015 is as foliows:

2018 2015
Princlpal Interest Principal Interest
f3.ip milliprs) Qutstands Rate Outstanding Rate
Senlor Unsecured Debt Due:
41152017 $ 210 8.250% 3 a07¢ §.250%
10/1/2018 583 B.125% 583 8,125%
3f15/20189 434 7.125% 434 7.125%
41512020 1,168 8.500% 1,022 8.500%
9/15/2020 1.066 B.B75% 1.000 8.5E75%
Tifen21 500 9.250% 500 9.250%
8/15/2021 775 6.250% 775 6.250%
4/15/2022 500 8.750% 500 B.750%
9/1512022 2.188 10.500% 2,000 10.500%
1415/2023 B50 7.125% 850 7.125%
41152024 750 7.625% 750 7.525%
1415/2025 775 B.875% 775 B.875%
9M5/2025 3,600 11.000% 3,800 11.000%
142025 138 7.000% 138 7.000%
B8/15/2026 2 6.800% 2 B.8500%
115/2027 346 7.875% 348 T.B75%
B/1572031 aas 8.000% 845 B8.000%
100172034 1 T.BBO% 1 7.680%
7172035 125 F.450% 125 7.450%
10172048 183 7.050% 163 7.050%
15,150 15,146

Senior Secured Dehi Due:

10142016 ™ N . 344 2.805% (Variable)
10242019 = 280 4.145% (Variable} 315 3.805% Mariahie)
a3zaz1 @ 1,664 3.270% (Variable} -

1011212021 307 4.145% (Variable} -
215 559
Subsidiary Dahenbures Due:
51572027 200 B.750% -
2112028 300 5.8650% -
211572028 200 8.730% 208 B.730%
1041572028 50 8.400% 50 B8.400%
117152031 100 B.500% -
a50 250
Tolal 3 18.151 8.30% = $ 16,058 B.74% ™

" Represents borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below, Ihat besame secured as of Aprif 1, 2015.
“  Represents borrowings under the 2074 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below. Ihal became secured as of Aprit 1, 2015,
' Represents bomrowings under the 2015 Credit Agreement, as defined below,

Reprasents borrowings under the 2016 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below.
*Interest rate rep ts a weighted average of the stated intarest rates of multipte issuances,

During 2016, we completed non-cash debt exchanges ingluding related accrued interest, of $397 million of our 8,25% Notes
due Aprit 2017 for approximately $147 million of our 8.50% Notes due April 2020, $86 million of our 8.875% MNotes due
Geptember 2020, and §188 million of our {0.50% Notes due September 2022. A pretax Inss of approximately $7 miflion was
recognized and included in “Investment and othar income, nel” in our consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

On Seplember 25, 2015, Frontier completed a private offering of $6,500 million aggregate principal amount of unsecured
Serifer Notes, as follows: $1,000 million of 8.875% Senior Notes due 2020; $2,000 millian of 10.50%
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Senior Notes due 2022; and $3,600 miliicn of 11.00% Senior Notes due 2025, Each was issued at a price equal to 1005% of
its principal amount. Frontier used the net proceeds fram the offering (after deducting underwriting fees) to finance a portion
of the cash consideration paid in connection with the CTF Acquisition and to pay related fees and expenses. The nel
proceeds of the debt offering of $6;485 million were included in "Restricied cash” in the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2015, In June 2016, we completed an exchange offer of registered senior notes for the privately placed senior
notes.

On August 12, 2015, Frontier entered into 2 credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, NLA., as administrative agenl, and
the lenders party thereta, for a 1,500 million senior secured delayed-draw term loan facitity {the 2015 Credit Agreement).
Frontier exercised its right under the 2015 Credit Agreement to obtain additional commilments and increased he size of the
factlity to $1,625 milliors. On April 1, 2018, in connection with the closing of the CTF Acquisition, Frontier drew $1,550 million
under that facility, with the additional 375 million drawn subsequentfy. The final maturity date is March 31, 2021. Repayment
of the outstanding principal balance will be made in quarterly installments, initially in the amount of $20 million par installment,
which commenced on June 30, 2016. The quarterly instaliments will increase {o $41 million, beginning with the 13th quarterly
installment. The remaining outstanding principal balance will be repaid on the final maturity date. Borrowings under the term
loan will bear interest based on margins over the Base Rate {as defined in the 2015 Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, af the
election of Frontier. interest rate margins under the facility (ranging from 0.75% to 1.75% for Base Rale borrowings and
1.75% te 2.75% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject {o adjustment based an Frontier's Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the
2015 Credit Agreement). Borrowings under the 2015 Credit Agreement are secured by a pledge of the stock of Frontier North
Inc.,, a wholly owned subsidiary, primarily representing Frontier operations in the states of lllineis, Indiana, Michigan, Qhio and
Wisconsin.

Upon completion of the CTF Acquisition on Apsit 1, 2016, we assumed additional debt of $800 milfion, including $200 million
aggregaie principal amount of 6.75% Senior Notes due May 15, 2027, $300 million aggregate principat amount of 6.86%
Senior Notes due February 1, 2028 and $100 million aggregate-principal amount of 8 50% Senior Notes due November 15,
2031,

On February 5, 2015, we entered into & commitment for a bridge fean facility {the Verizon Bridge Facility) and recognized
related interest expense of $10 million and $184 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The
accrued liabilities relaied to the Verizon Bridge Facifity of $184 million were paid afier the closing of the CTF Acquisition and
were included in “Other current liabilities” in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015. The Verizon Bridge
Facility terminated, in accordance with its terms, on Septernber 25, 2015,

Frontier has a credit agreement with CoBank, ACE, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a lender, and the other
lenders party thereto, for a $350 millioh senior unsecured term loan facility (the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement}. The facility
was drawn upon closing of the Connecticut Acquisition with proceeds used te parfially finance the acquisition. The maturity
date is October 24, 2019, Repayment of the cutstanding principal balance will be made in quarterly instailments of $9 millien,
which commenced on March 31, 2015 with the remainlng outstanding principal balance to be repaid on the maturity date.
Borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement will bear interest based on the margins over the Base Rate (as defired
in the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of Frontier. Interest rate margins under tha facility {ranging
from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR berrowings) are subject to adiustments
based on our Total Leverage Ratio, as such term is defined in the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement. The interest rate on this
facility at December 21, 2016 was LIBOR plus 3.375%.

Frontier has fwo senfor secured credit agreements with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agent, lead arranger and a [ender,
and the other lenders party thereto: the first, drawn in 2011 {the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement}, was refinanced in Ociober
2016 with a similar facifity for $315 mitian, maturing an October 12, 2021 {the 2016 CoBank Credit Agreement), and the
second, drawn in 2014 (the 2014 CoBank Credii Agreement), matures on October 24, 2019, We refer to the 2011 CoBank
Credit Agreement, the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement and the 2016 CoBank Credit Agreement colleclively as the CaBank
Credit Agreements. Borrowings under the CoBank Credit Agreemenis are secured by a pledge of the stock of Frontier North,
Inc.
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Repayment of the outsianding principal balance for the 2016 CoBank Credit Agreement is being made in quarterly
installments of approximately $8 million which began on December 31, 2016. Any remaining oulstanding principal balance
will be repaid on the final maturity date. Borrowings under the term loan will bear interest based on margins over the Base
Rate {as defined in the 2016 CoBank Credit Agreament) or LIBOR, at the election of Frantier. Interest rate margins under the
facitity {ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate horrowings and 1.875% o 3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject
to adjustment based on Frontier's Total Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2016 CoBank Credit Agreamenf). The term loan
under the 2016 CoBank Credit Agreement is secured by a pledge of the stock of Frontier North Inc.

Frontier has a revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, M.A., as administrative agent. the lenders party
theretc and the other parties named therein {the Revolving Credit Agreement), for a $750 million revalving credit facility (the
Revolving Credit Facilify) with a scheduled termination date of May 31, 2018, As of December 31, 2016, the Revolving Credit
Facility was fully available and no borrowings had been made thereunder. Associated commitment fees under the Revolving
Credit Facility will vary from time to time depending on our debt rating (as defined in the Revolving Credit Agreement) and
were 0,45% per annum as of December 31, 2016, During the term of the Revolving Credit Facilify, Frontier may borrow, repay
and reborrow funds, and may obtain letters of credit, subject ta customary borrowing conditions. Loans under the Revolving
Credit Facility will bear interast hased on the alternate base rate or the adjusted LIBO Rate (each as determined in the

Revolving Credit Agreement), at our election, plus a margin based on our debt rating (ranging from 0.50% 1o 1.50% for

alternate base rate borrowings and 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIBO Rate bomowings). The interest rate on this facility
would have been the alternate base rate plus 1.50% or the adjusted LIBO Rate plus 2,50%, respectively, as of December 31,
2016, Letters of credit issued under the Revolving Credit Facllity wili alse be subject to fees that vary depending on our debt
rating. The Revolving Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes but may not be used to fund dividend
paymeants.

On February 27, 2017, Frontier amended and restated its April 2021 term loan and its revolving credit facility, combining them
into & single credit agreement and unifying the covenants. The amended and restated credit agreement provides Frontier
with more flexible terms, increases the revelving credit facility to $850 million and extends the maturity of the revolving credit
facility from 2018 to 2022. The determination of interest rates remains unchanged. The mast significant change in the
covenants is an increase of the maximum Leverage Ratio (as defined) to 5.25 to 1.0 initially, migrating to 5.0 to 1.0 beginning
in the second quarter of 2018, 4.75 to 1.0 in the second quarier of 2019, and 4.5 fo 1.0 in the second quarier of 2620. In
addition, under the amended and resiaied credit agreement, Frontier will be expanding the securily package to include
pledges of the equity interests in certain Frontier subsidiaries and guaranties by certain Frontier subsicharies.

Upon the drawdown of the termn loan under the 2015 Credit Agreement in conneciion with the clasing of the CTF Acquisition,
borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement, the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement and the Revalving Credit Fadility
became secured debl. These borrowings are secured, equally and ratably with borrowings under the 2015 Credit Agreement,
by a pledge of the stock of Frentier North Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary.

On September 17, 2014, Frontier completed a registered debt offering of $775 million aggregate principal amount of 6.250%
senior unsecured notes due 2021, and $775 million aggregate principal amount of 6.875% senior unsecured notes due 2025.
We received net proceeds, after deducting underwriting fees, of $1,518 million from the offering. Frontier used the net
proceeds from the offering of the noteés, tegether with borrowings under the 2014 CoBank Credil Agreement, as defined
ahove, and cash on hand, to finance the Connecticut Acquisition, which closed on Gotober 24, 2014, See Note 3 for further
discussion of the Connecticut Acquisition,

During 2015 and 2014, we also entered into secured financings totaling $3 million and $11 million, respectively, with four year
terms and no stated interast rate for certain equipment purchases.

As of December 31, 2016, we were in compliance with all of cur debt and credit facility covenants.
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Our scheduled principal payments are as folfows as of December 31, 2016:

Principal
{3 in milfions} Paymants
207 3 383
2018 ] 733
2019 g 818
2020 $ 2.429
2021 3 2,554
Thereafter 5 11,281

Other Obligations

During 2016, Frontier contributed a real estate property with a fair value of $15 million for the purpose of funding a portion of
its contribution obligations to its qualified defined henefit pension pian. The pension plan cbtained independent appraisals of
the property and, based on these appraisals, the pension plan recorded the contribution at its fair value of $15 million.
Frontier has entered into a lease for the contributed property with initial ferms of 15 years at a combined aggregate annual
rent of approximatedy $2 million, The property is managed on behalf of the pension plan by an independent fiduciary, and the
terms of the lease were negotiated with the fiduciary on an arm's-length basis.

The contribution and leaseback of the property was treated as a financing transaction and, accordingly, Frontier continues to
depreciate the camying vaiue of the property in its financial statements and na gain or loss was recognized. An obligation of
515 million was recorded In our consolidated balance sheet within “Other liabilities” and the fiability is reduced annually by a
portion of the lease payments made to the pension plan.

During 2018, Frontier medified certain operating leases for vehicies which resulied in the classification as capital leases.
These agreements have fease terms of 1 o 7 years.. These capilal lease obligations are included in our consolidated balance
sheet wilhin "Other liabilities” and “Other current liabilities”.

In 2012, Frontier entered into a sale and leaseback arrangement for a facility in Evereft, Washington and entered into a
capital jease for the use of fiber in the state of Minnesota. These agreements have lease ferms of 12 and 23 years,
respectively. These capital lease obligations are included in our consolidated balance sheet within "Cther liabilities” and
“Other cumrent [fabilities.”

Future minimum payments for finance lease-obligations and capital lease obligalions as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

{$ in milfions) Finance Lease Obligations Capital Lease Dbligations

Year ending December 31:

2017 3 9 5 ag
201R8 a 37
2018 9 28
2020 9 is
2021 9 9
Thereafter 60 21
Total future payments 105 147
Less: Amounts representing interest {57) {18)
Present value of minimum lease payments g 48 5 128
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{8} Restructuring Costs

As of December 31, 2016, restructuring related fiabilities of $47 million pertaining to employee separafion charges are
included in “Cther current liabilities” in our consolfidaied balance sheet.

During 20186, restructuring costs and other charges, primarily consisting of severance and other emplayee-related costs of
$65 million, and pension/OPEB benefit enhancemenis of $26 million, totaling $91 miflion in connecticn with workforce
reductions, are included in “Restructuring costs and other charges™ in our consolidated statement of operations for the year

ended December 31, 2016.

The felfowing is a summary of the changes in the liabifities established for restructuring programs at December 31, 2016:

{3 in mittions)
Resfrecturing Lisbility

Balance, January 1, 2016 ]
Severance costs
Cash payments during the pefiod

85
{19)

Balance, Decamber 31, 2018 5

47

(9) Investiment and Other Income, Net:

The components of investment and other income, net for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 andg 2014
are as follows:

{$.in mitfons) 2016 2015 2014

Interest and dividend incoms 3 13 % 7 8 2

Loss on debt exchanges 7 - -

Gain on sate of Fairmount Cellular LLC -

Gain en sale of 700 MHz spectrum . - i2

Gain on expiration/settiement of customer advances 13 - “

All other, nat 1 - -
Total investment and ather incame, net 5 20 % 7 3 38

- 25

During 2016 and 2015, we received $13 milllon and $7 milfion, respectively, in interest and dividend income, primarily due to
interest earned on restricted cash.

During 2016, we recognized income of $13 million in connection with certain retained liabilities that have terminated,
assaciated with customer advances for construction from our disposed water properties,

During 2014, we sold assets that were unrelated to Frontier's operations and recognized a gain of $25 million asseciated with
the sale of our interest in Fafmount Cefiular LLC and recegnized a gain of $12 million related to the sale of our 700 MHz
spectrum,

{10)Capital Stock:

We are authorized to issue up to 1,750,000,000 shares of comman stock and 56,000,000 shares of preferred stock. The.
amount and timing of dividends payable on commen and preferred stock are, subject to applicable law, within the sale
discretion of our Board of Directors,

Com ck Offeri

On June 10, 2015, we completed a registered offering of 150,000,000 shares .of our commen stock, par value $0.25 per
share, at an offering price of $5 per share. On June 24, 2015, Frontier issued an additional 15,000,000 shares of eammon
stoek in connection with the over-alloiment option that was exercised in fult by the underwriters. Aggregate net proceeds were
approximately $799 million after deducting cormmissions and
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estimated expenses. We used the net proceeds from this offering to fund a portion of the acquisition price of the CTF
Acquisition and related fees and expenses.

Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (Sgries A) Offering
On June 10, 2015, we alsoc compieted a registered offering of 17,500,000 shares of pur 11.125% Mandatary Convertible

Preferred Stock, Series A, par value $0.01 per share (the "Series A Preferred Stock™, at an offering price of $100 per share.
On June 24, 2015, Frontier issued an additional 1,750,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock in connection with the over-
alloiment option that was exercised in fult by the underwriters. Aggregate net proceeds of the offering were $1,868 million
after deducting commissions and éstimated expenses. Wea used the net proceeds from this offering to furd a porfion of the
acquisition price of the CTF Acquisition and related fees and expenses.

Unless converted earlier, each share of the Series A Preferred Stock will automatically convert on June 29, 2018 into
commaon stock, (between 17.0213 and 20.0000 shares) depending on the applicable market value of our common stock,
subject to anti-difution adjustments. Subject to certain restrictions, at any time prior to June 29, 2018, holders of the Series A
Freferred Stock may elect to convert all or a portion of their shares into common stock at the minimum conversion rate then in
effect.

Dividends on shares of the Series A Preferred Stock are payable on a cumulative basis when, as and if declared by our
Board of Directors {or an authorized committee therecf) at an annual rate of 11.125% on the fiquidation preference of $100.00
per share, on the tast business day of March, June, September and December of 2ach year, commencing on September 30,
2015 to, and including, the mandatory conversion date. Series A Preferred Stock dividends of $214 million and $120 million
were paid in 2016 and 20135, respectively.

Pursuant o the terms of the CTF Acquisition, $1,955 million of the $2,665 million in net proceeds from ihe equity offerings
were deposited into escrow and were included in "Restricted cash” in the consalidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2015, Upon cloging of the CTF Acquisition, the funds were released and used to fund & portion of the purchase price.

{11} Stock Plans:

At December 31, 2016, we had six stock-based compensation plans under which grants were made and awards remained
outstanding. No further awards may be granied under five of the plans: the 1896 Equity Incentive Plan (the 1986 EIP), the
Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2000 EIP), the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan {the 2009 EIP), the Non-
Employee Directors’ Defemed Fee Equity Plan {the Deferred Fee Plan), and the Non-Employee Directors' Equity Incentive
Plan {the Directors’ Equity Plan and tegether with the Deferred Fee Plan, the Director Plans). At December 31, 2016, there
were 20,000,000 shares authorized for grant and 7,324,000 shares available for grant under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan
{the 2013 EIP and together with the 1996 EIP, the 2000 EIP and the 2009 EIP, the EiPs). Our general palicy is to issue
shares from treasury upon the grant of restricted shares and the exercise of options.

1 060, 2 an 13 Eguily incentive Plans

Since the expiration dates of the 1996 EIP, the 2000 EIP and the 2008 EIP con May 22, 2008, May 14, 2008 and May 8, 2013,
respectively, no awards have been or may be granted under the 1996 EIP, the 2600 EIP and the 2009 EIF. Under the 2013
EIP, awards of our common stock may be granted to eligible employees in the form of incentive stock options, non-quaiified
stock options, SARs, restricted stock, performance shares or other stock-based awards. As discussed under the Non-
Employee Directors’ Compensation Plans below, prior to May 25, 2006 non-employee directors received an award of stock
options .under the 2000 EIP upen commencement of service. No awards may be granted maore than 10 years after the
effective date {May 8, 2013} of the 2013 EI plan. The exercise price of stock oplions and SARs under the EIPs generally are
equal to or greater than the fair market value of the underlying common steck on the date of grant. Stock options are not
ordinarily exercisable on the date of granf but vest over a period of time {(generally four years). Under the terms of the EIFs,
subsequent stock dividends and stock splits have the effect of increasing the option shares outstanding, which
correspendingly decrease the average exercise price of outstanding options.
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Performance Shargs

Or February 15, 2012, Frontier's Compensation Commitiee, in consultation with the other non-management directors of
Frontier's Board of Directers and the Committee’s independent executive compensation consultant, adopied the Frontier
Long-Term Incentive Plan {the LTIP). LTIF awards are granted in the form of performance shares, The LTIP is currently
affered under Frontier's 2009 EIP and 2013 EIP, and participants consist of senior vice presidents and above. The LTIP
awards have performance, market-and time-vesting conditions.

Beginning in 2012, during the first 90 days of a three-year performance period {a Measurement Period), a target number of
performance shares are awarded to each LTIP participant with respect to the Measurement Period. The performance metrics
under the LTIP are (1) annuat targets for operating cash flow based on a goal set during the first 90 days of each year in the
three-year Measurement Period and (2) an overall performance “modifier” set during the first 90 days of the Measurement
Period, based on Frontier's totaf retum to stockholders (i.e., Total Shareholder Retum or TSR) retative (o the Integrated
Telecommunications Services Group (GICS Code 50101020} for the three-year Measurement Period, Operating cash flow
performance is determined at the end of each year and the annual resulis will be averaged at the end of the three-year
Measurement Peried te determine the preliminary number of shares earnad under the LTIP award. The TSR performance
measure is then applied to decrease or increase payouts based on Frontier's three year relative TSR perfarmance. LTIP
awards, io fhe extent earned, will be paid out in the form of common stack shorily following the end of the three-year
Measurement Period.

Cn February 17, 2014, the Compensation Commitiee granted approximately 1,028,000 performance shares under the . TIP
and sel the operating cash flow performance goal for 2014, which applies to the first year in the 2014-2016 Measurement
Period, the second year of the 2013-2015 Measurement Period and the third year of the 2012-2014 Measurement Period. On
February 25, 2015, the Compensation Committee granted approximately 665,000 performance shares under the LTIP and
set the operating cash flow pedormance goal for 2015, which applies to the first year in the 2015-2017 measurement period,
the secend year of the 2014-2016 measurement period and the third year of the 2013-2015 measurement period. On
February 11, 2016, the Compensation Committee granted approximately 1,669,000 performance shares under the LTIR and
set the operating cash flow performance goat for 2018, which applies fo the first year in the 2015-2018 measurement period,
the second year of the 2015-2017 measurement perod and the third year of the 2014-2016 measurement perod. The
number of shares of cormman stock earnad at the end of each three-year Measurement Period may be more or less than the
number of target performance shares granted as a result of operating cash flow and TSR performance. An executive must
maintain a satisfactory perfoimance rating during the Measurement Period and must be employed by Frontier at the end of
the three-year Measurement Period in order for the award to vest. The Compensation Commitiee will determine the number
of shares eamed for each three year Measurement Period in February of the year following the end of the Measurement
Pariod.
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The following summary presenis information regarding LTIP target performance shares as of Decembar 31, 2016 and
changes during the three years then ended with regard to LTHP shares awarded under the 2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP:

Mirmber of
Shares
{in thousands)
Balance al January 1, 2014 1,749
LTIP target performance sharss granted 1,037
LTIP target performance shares farfaited {104)
Balance at December 31, 2014 2,682
LTIP {argef performance shares granted 738
LTiP target performance shares earnad {743)
LTiP target performance shares forfeited {152)
Balance at December 31, 2015 2,525
LTiP target performance shares granted 1,669
LTH? target performance shares earned {8B7)
LTIP target performance shares forfeited {448)
Balance af December 31, 2016 2,859

For purposes of determining compensation expense, the fair value of each performance share is measured at the end of
each reperiing period and, therefore, will fluciuate based on the price of Frontier common stock as welt as performance
refative to the targets. Fronfier recognized an expense, included in “Selling, general, and administrative expenses” of §6
miiltion, 87 millicn, and $4 million during 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, for the LTIF.

Restricted Siock
The following summary presents information regarding unvested restricted stock as of December 31, 2016 and changes
during the: three years then ended with regard to restricted stock under the 2008 EIP and the 2013 EIP:

Weighted
Ayerage
Number of Grant Date Aggregate
Shares Fair Value Fair Value
fin thousands) (per share) {in miflions)
Balance at January 1, 2014 6234 B 4.80 E3 29
Restricted stock granted 4314 § 4.1 5 29
Restricted stock vested {2,372) % 5.22 $ 16
Restricted stack forfsited {369) % 4.55
Balance at December 31, 2014 7807 § 475 5 52
Rastricted stock granted 2815 % 7.82 5 13
Restricied stock vested {3.215) & 4.89 $ 15
Restricted stock forfelted (359 % 5.10
Ralance at December 31, 2015 7048 % 5.93 % 33
Restricted stock granted 593 § 4,38 3 20
Restricted stack vested {37200 % 5.26 3 13
Restricted stock forfeited fongy § 5.11
Balance at Becember 31, 2018 8356 § 5.20 $ 28

For purposes of determining compensation. expense, the fair value of each restricted stock grant is estimated based on the
average of the high and low market price of a share of our common stock on the date of grant. Total remalning unrecognized
compensation cost associated with unvested restricted stock awards that is deferred at December 31, 2016 was $26 miilion
and the weighted average vesting period over which this cost is expected to be recognized is approximately 1.3 years.
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We have granted restricted stock awards {o employees in the form of our common siock. None of the restricted stock awards
may be sold, assigned, pledged or otherwise transferred, voluntarily or involuntarily, by the employees until the restrictions
lapse, subject to limited exceplions. The restrictions are time-based. Compensaticn expense, recognized in “Selling, general
and administrative expenses”, of $18 milfion, $20 millicn and $16 million, for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014, respeclively, has been recerded in connection with these grants.

Stock Options

The number of options exercisable under the EIPs at December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were 40,000, 50,000 and 83,000,
with a weighted average exercise price of $8.81, $13.40, and $13.23, respectively. No stock options were granted or
exercised during 2016, 2015 or 2014. There is no remaining unrecognized compensation cost associated with stock options
at December 31, 2018.

Non-Employee Direclors’ Compensalion Plans

As of Oclober 1, 2013, stock units are credited to the director's account in an amaunt that is determined as follows: the total
cash value of the fees payable to the director is divided by the closing price of Frontier common stock on the grant date of the
units. Units are credited to the director’s account quarterly. Directors must also elect to convert the units to either commeon
stack {convertible on a one-to-one basis) or cash upon retirement or death.

Dividends are paid on steck units held by directors at the same rate and at the same time as we pay dividends on shares of
our common steck. Dividends on stock units are paid in the form of additional stock units.

There were 10 directors participating in the Director Plans during all or part of 2016. The total plan unils garned were
444 277, 334,188, and 237,607 in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

To the extent directors elect to receive the distribution of their stock unit account in cash, they are considered liability-based
awards, To the extent directors elect fo receive the distribution of their stock unit accounts in commen stock, they are
considered equity-based awards. Compensation expense for stock units that are considered equity-based awards is based
on the market valug of our common stock at the date of grant. Compensation expense for stock units that are considered
liabitity-based awards is based on the rmarket vatue of our common stack at the end of each period.

In connection with the Director Plans, there were no compensation cosis associated with the issuance of stock units in 2016,
(&) miliion in 2015, and $4 million in 2014, Cash compensation associated with the Director Plans was $1 million in 20186,
2015 and 2014, respectively. These costs are recognized in “Selling, general and administrative expenses”,

F-28

https:/fwww.sec.gaviArchivesfedgar/dataf20520/000002052017C00003/r-20161231x 10k.htm 87107




TI20/2017 2016 Form 10K

FRONTIER COMMUMICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes {o Consolidated Financial Siatements

{12} Income Taxes:
The folfowing is a reconciliation of the provision for income faxes computed at the federal statutory rate to income taxes
caomputed at the effective rates for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

23186 2015 2014

Consolidated tax provision at federal statutory rate 35.0 % 35.0% 350 %
State income tax provisions, net of federal income

tax benefit {0.1) 87 1.8
Tex reserve adjustment 0.6 0.3) 8.9
Domestic production activities deduction 1.8} - 8.7
Changes in certain deferred tax balances 5.8 0.8 {14.1)
Federal research and developmant credit 1.0 15 (3.3}
Non-deductible transaction costs - 0.4 1.0
Al othar, nat {0.2) {0.3) 0.3
Effective tax rate 4.2 % 45.8 % 18.7 %

inceme taxes for 2016 include the impact of $36 million of tax benefits resulting primarily from the adjustment of deferred tax
halances due to the CTF Acquisition, the impact of $6 millicn i benefits from the Federal research and development credits,
along with a $12 million reversat of henefits related to the demestic production activities deduction.

{ncome taxes for 2015 include the impact of a $3 million bengfit arising from the adjustment of deferred tax balances and a $5
miflion benefit frorm the federal research and development credit.

Income taxes for 2014 include the impact of a $23 millien benefit from the reduction in deferred {ax kabilities arising primarily
from the inclusion of the Ceonnecticut operations in the stale unitary filings, a $14 million benefit from the domestic production
activities deduction and a $5 million benefit from federal research and development credits, partially offset by the impact of &
charge of $11 million resulting from an increase in tax reserves and a charge of $2 miflion resulting from non-deduciible
transaction costs.

As a result of the retrospective implementation of Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-17. Income Taxes (Topic 740).
Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, Frontier offset all deferred tax liabilities and assets, -as well as any related
valuation allowance, and is presenting them as a single non-current amount within Deferred income taxes in the consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Amounts pertaining to income tax refated accourts of $55 million and $50 million are included in ‘Income taxes and other
current assets” in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respecfively.

In 2016, we received federal and state income tax refunds totaling $120 million,
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The compongnts of the net deferred income tax liability {asset) at December 31 are as folfows:

{$_in mifions) 2016 2015
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment basis differences ¥ 2731 B 2,401
Intangibles 878 860
Deferred revenuefexpanse 14 -
Other, net 12 15
$ 3655 3 3,376
Deferred income tax assets:
Pensicn lability 273 222
Tax operating loss carryforward 687 295
Employee benefits 255 262
Accrued expenses 44 50
Lease obligations 75 -
Tax credit 30 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts 44 10
Other, net 2 48
1,410 887
Less: Valuation allowance (271) (177)
Net deferred income tax asset 1.139 710
Net geferred income tax liability 3 2516 % 2,666

Our federal net operaling loss carryforward as of December 31, 2016 is estimated at $1.0 billion. The federal loss
carryforward will expire in 2036, unless otherwise used.

Cur state tax operating loss carryforward as of December 31, 2016 is estimated at 36.7 billion, A portion of our state loss
carryforward will continue to expire annually through 2036, unless otherwise used,

Our federal research and development credit and alternative minimum tax credit as of Degember 31, 2016 is estimated at $13
millior: and $4 million, respectively, The federal research and development credit will expire between 2034 and 2036, unless
otherwise used,

Our various state credits as of December 31, 2016 are estimated at $19 million, The state credits will expire between 201§
and 2021, unless otherwise used.

As of December 31, 2018, Frontier has & valuation allowance of 5271 millien to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount
more likely than not to be realized. This valuation allowance is related to state net operating losses and state tax credits. In
evaluating Frontier's ability to realize its deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that
some or all of the- deferred {ax assets will not be realized. Management also considered the projected reversal of deferred tax
liahilities and projected future taxable income in making this assessment. Based upon this assessment, management
believes it is more Ekely than no! Frontier will reatize the benefils of these deductible differences, net of valuation allowance.
There was a valuation allowance of $177 million recorded as of December 31, 2015.
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The provision (benefit) for federat and state income {axes, as well as the taxes charged or credited to equity of Froniier,

includes amounts both payable cumrently and deferred for payment in future periods as indicated below:

(% in.miflions) 2018 2015 2014
Income tax expense (henefit):
Current;
Federal ] 52) % 8 % 98
Slate 7 {6} 10
Total Current {45) 2 108
Deferred:
Federal {145} (128) (34)
State {60} K1)} (44)
Total Deferred (205) {167} {78)
Total income tax expense {benefit) {250) {165} 30
Income taxes charged {credited) to equity of Frontier:
Utilization of the benefits arsing from restricted stack (5) - -
Deferrad income taxes {benefits) arising from the recognition
of additional pensionfOPEB lizbility {21) 36 {30)
Total income taxes charged (credited) to equity of Frontier {26) 36 {80)
Total income taxes $ {276) $ (129) % {(50)

U.8. GAAP requires applying a “mare likely than not” threshold to the recognition and derecognition of uncertain tax positions
either taken or expected to be taken in Frontier's income tax relurns. The total amount of our gross tfax liability for tax
positions that may not be sustained under a “more likely than not” thresheold amounts 1o $17 millien as of December 31, 2016
including interest of $1 milfion. The amount of cur uncertain tax positions, for which it is reasonably possible that the fotal
amounts of unrecognized tax beneiits will significantly increase or decrease during the next twelve months, and which would

affect our effective tax rate, is $8 million as of December 31, 2016,
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Frontier's policy regarding the classification of interest and penaliies is to include these amounts as a component of incorme
tax expense. This treatment of interest and penallies is consistent with prior pericds. We are subject {c income tax
examinalions ganerally for the years 2012 forward for federal and 2008 forward for state filing jurisdictions. We also maintain

uncertain tax positions in various state jurisdictions.

The following table sets forth the changes in Frontier's balance of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended

December 31, 2016 and 2015:

% in milfions)

Unrecognized tax benefits - beginning of year
Gross increases - prior year tax positions
Gross increases - current year tax positions
Gross decreases - FIN 48 latility release
Gross decreases - expired statute of limitations
Unrecognized tax benefits - end of year

2016
$ $ 19
2_
(2;
$ $ 19

The amounts above exclide $1 million of accrued interest as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, that we have

recorded and would be payable should Frontier's tax positions not be sustained.

{13) Net Income {Loss) Per Common Share:

The recondiliation of the net incoma (loss) per commen share calculation for the years ended December 31, 2046, 2015 and

2014 is as follows:

{3 in milions and sha

Net income (loss) used for basic and dilut rr

per share;

Netincome {foss) attributable to Frontler common sharehofders
Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricied stock awards
Total basic and diluted net income {loss) attributable ta Frontier

common shareholders

Basic earnings {loss) per shara;

Total weighted average shares and unvested restricted stock

awards autstanding - basic

Less: Weighted average unvested restricted stock awards

Total welghted average shares outstanding - basic

Basic net income (loss) per share attribulable o Frontier

common shareholders

iluity rnings {loss) per share:
Total weighted average shares outstanding - basic
Effect of dilutive shares

Total weighled average shares outstanding - diluted

Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to Frontier

common shareholders

in thousands, except per share amounis,

2016 2015 2014
{587) 8 (318) 133

)] {3} {3)

(580) S (319) 130
1,172.131 1,007,798 1,001,812
(8,032) (7,192} {7.394)
1,164,089 1,084, 606 984 418
(0.51) § (0.29) 0.13
1,164,085 1,084 606 954 418
- - 2.744
1,164,088 1,084 806 988 162
(.51 § (9.29) 0.13

in caleutating diluted net loss per common share for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the effect of all commen
stock equivalents is excluded from the computation as the effect would be antidiutive.
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¢ i
For the years ended December 31, 2018, 2015 and 2014, options to purchase 40,000, 50,000 and 83,000 shares,
respectively, issuable under employee compensation pians were excluded from the computation of diluted earmnings (loss) per
share {(EPS) for those perlods because the exercise prices were greater than the average market price of our common stock
and, therefore, the effect would be antiditutive.

. Stoek Uni

At Decernber 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, we had 1,881,460, 1,437,183 and 1,102,995 stock units, respectively, issued under
the Direcior Plans and the 2013 EIP. These securilies have not been included in the diluted income per share of commen
stock calculation because their inclusion would have an antidilutive effect.

Mandatary Convertible Preferred Stock
The impact of the commen share equivalenis associated with the 19,250 000 shares of Seres A Preferred stock described
above were not included in the calculation of dikuted EPS as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, as their impact was antiditutive.
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Comprehensive income {loss) consists of net income (loss) and other gains and losses affecting shareholders’ investment

and pension/postretirement benefit (QPEB) liabilities that, under GAAP, are exduded from net income/(foss).

The components of accumulated olher comprehensive loss, net of tax at December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, and changes

for the years then ended, are as follows:

{%$ in millions}

Balance at January 1, 2014
Clher comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications
Amounts reclassiffed from accumulated olher

comprehensive income {loss)

Met cumrenl-perod olher comprehensive income (loss)
Balance al December 31, 2014

Other comprehensive Incame {lass) before reclassificalions
Amounls reclassified fram accumulated other

comprehensive incoma {loss)

Met current-pariad other comprehensive income (ioes)
Balance at December 31, 2015

Other comprehensive income (fnss) before reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss)

Nzl current-period other comprehensive income (joss)
Balanee at December 31, 2016

Cieferred laxes on
pension and OPER

Penslor Costs CPEB Cosis cosls Total

$ (412) 3 5 § 156 $ {261)
(140} (113} g8 {155}

24 {1 (7} 12
{120 {114} 81 {143)
(532 119 247 (4a4)

{a1) 136 {24y 31

29 3 {12) 20

{52) 139 {38} 51
{584) 20 211 (253)
{103) 17 32 34

40 {8} (12 20
[B3) g 20 134)
3 B847) & 28 & 231 3 (387)

As a resuit of the CTF Acquisition, the Frontier Communications Pension Pian (lhe Plan) was remeasured. This
remeasurement resulled in a decrease. in the discount rate from 4.50% at December 31, 2015 to 4.00% at the date of the
CTF Acquisition. This change in the discount rate resulted in a remeasurement charge to Other comprehensive income (loss)

of $105 miffion during 20186,
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The significant items reclassified from each component of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the years ended
Decernber 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Amaunt Reclassifed from
i Arcumulated Qther Comprehensive Lass ™

Details about A Tated Caher Comp Loss Affected Line ltern in the Stalement Vhere Met
Components 2018 2018 2014 Income {Loss) is Presentad
Amprization of Pension Cost Items
Actuarial gains {losses} 5 AL ] (28] 5 jedi))
40 [29} (200 intome {joss) befere intome taxes
Tax impacl 35 11 7 Income lax (&xpense} benefit
3 [T 8 3 {3 Mat mzame (lass)
Amortizetion of OPEB Cost ltems ™
Prior-service costs 5 9 3 5 8§ 4
Actuarial gains {losses) M 8 3
B [ 1 Incoma (lose} before Income taxes
Tax impacd {3 1 - [ncome {ax (expense) beneft
5 5 3 [ 1 Nelincome {loss}

(a) Amounls in parentheses indicale losses,
(b) These accumutated cthar comprehensive loss components are included in the computalion of net perodic pension and DPEB costs (see Note 17 -
Retirement Plans for additiona) detsils)

{15) Segment Information:
We operate in one reportable segment. Frontier provides both regulated and unregulated voice, data and video services to
residential, business and wholesale customers and is typically the incumbent voice services provider in its service arees.

We have utilized the aggregation criteria to combine our seven regional operating segments because all of these regional
operations share similar characteristics, in that they provide the same products and services to similar customers using
comparable technologies in al of the states in which we operate. The reguiatory structure is generally similar.

(16) Quartery Financial Pata (Unaudited):

18 jn ritfions, except per share amaounts} First Quarter Second Quarler Third Quarter Fourth Quarter Total Year
2016
Revenue $ 1355 § 2508 § 2524 § 2409 % 8,896
Operaling income 58 31 264 255 888
Met loss attributable to Frontier

camman shareholders (240} {80) {134} {133) (587)
Basic net loss per share attributable

to Frontier cormmen shareholders & 0.21) 3 {0.07) § 012 $ (0,12} 8 0.51)

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Faurth Quarter Total Year

2015
Revenue $ 1371 § 1,368 § 1424 §$ 1,413 § 5576
Operaling income 163 183 207 182 745
Net loss attributable to Frontier

common shareholders (51) {28) B1) {156} {318)
Basic net loss per share attributable

to Frontier common shargholders 3 {0.05) % {0.03) $ (0.07) $ (0.14) $ 0.29)

The quarierly net income {loss) per share amounts are rounded to the nearest cent. Annual net income {loss) per share may
vary depending on the effect of such rounding. The change in revenue, operating income, net
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income (loss) and net income {loss) per share during the second quarer of 2016 and each subsequent guarter of 2016
reflects the additional results of the CTF operations refated to the CTF Acquisition, as described further in Note 3.

We recognized $11 millien (57 million or $0.01 per share after tax) and $80 miflion ($52 million or $0.04 per share after tax} of
restructuring costs and other charges during the third and fourth quarters of 2016, respectively,

We recognized $1 million of restructuring costs and other charges during each of the third and fourth quarters of 2015,

We recognized $138 million ($85 million or $0.07 per share after tax), $127 million {376 million or $0,07 per share after tax),
$122 million ($74 million or $0.06 per share after tax} and $49 million ($48 million or $0.04 per share after tax) of acquisition
and integraticn: costs during the first, second, third and fourth quariers of 2015, respectively.

We recognized $57 million {$35 million or $0.04 per share after tax}, $35 million {$23 million or $0.02 per share after tax), $58
miflion ($27 miliion or $0.02 per share after lax) and $86 miflion ($47 mitkon or $0.04 per share afler tax) of acquisition and
integration costs during the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2015, respectively.

(17)Retirement Plans:

We sponsor a nonconiribulory defined benefit pension plan covering a significant number of our former and current
employees and other postretirement benefit plans that provide medical, dental, life insurance and other benefits for covered
refired employees and their beneficiaries and covered dependents, The pension plan and postretirement benefit plans are
closed to the majority of our newly hired employees. The benefits are based on years of service and final average pay or
career average pay. Coniributions are made in amounts sufficient o meet ERISA funding requiremients while- considering tax
deductibility,. Plan assets are invested in a diversified porifolio of equity and fixed-income securities and altemative
investments,

The accounting resuits for pension and other postretirement benefil costs and obligafions are dependent upon various
actuarial assumptions applied in the determination of such amounts. These acluarial assumptions include the following:
discount rates, expected fong-term rate of return on plan assets, future compensation increases, employee tumover,
healthcare cost trend rates, expected retirement age, optional form of benefit and mortality, We review these assumptions for
changes annually with our independent actuaries. We consider our discount rate and expeacted long-term rate of retum on
plan assets to be our most oritical assumptions,

The discount rate is used to valug, on a present value basis, our pension and other postretirement benefit obligations as of
the balance sheet date. The same rate is also used in the interest cost component of the pensien and postretirement benefit
cost determination for the following year, The measurement -date used in the selection of our discount rate is the balance
sheet date. Our discount rate assumption is determined annually with assistance from our independent actuaries based on
the pattern of expected fuiure benefit payments and the prevailing rates available on long-term, high quality corporate bonds
that approximate the benefit obligation.

As of December 31, 2016, 2615 and 2014, we ulilized an estimation technigue that is based upon a =etttlement model
{Bond:Link) that permits us {o closely match cash flows to the expected paymenis to parlicipants. This rate can change from
year-fo-year based on market conditions that affect corporate bond yields.

As a result of the technique described above, Frontier is utilizing a discount rate of 4,10% as of December 31, 2016 for its
qualified pension plan, compared to rates of 4.50% and 4.10% in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The discouni rate for
postretirement plans as of December 31, 2018 was a range of 4.10% to 4,.30% compared to a range of 4.50% to 4.70% in
2015 and 4.10% {o 4.20% in 2014,
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As a result of the CTF Acquisition, the Frontier Communicalions Pension Plan (the Plan) was remeasured. This
remeasurement resulted in a decrgase in the discount rafe from 4.50% at December 31, 2015 to 4.00% at the date of the
CTF Acguisition. This change in the discount rate resulted in a remeasurement charge to other comprehensive income (loss)
of $105 millicn during 2018. :

The expected leng-tern rate of return on plan assets is applied in the determination of periodic pension and postretirement
benefit cost as a reduction in the computation of the expense. In developing the expected long-term rate of retum
assumplion, we considered published surveys of expected market retums, 10 and 20 year actual reiurns of various major
indices, and our own historical 5 year, 10 year and 20 year investment refurns, The expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets is based on an asset allocation assumption of 40% in fong-duration fixed income securifies, and 60% in equity
securities and other investments. We review our asset allocation at least annually and make changes when considered
appropriate. Qur pension asset investment allocation decisions are made by the Relirement investrment & Administration
Commitiee {RIAC), a cornmittee comprised of members of management, pursuant to a delegation of authority by the
Retirement Pian Committee of the Board of Directors. The RIAC is responsible for reporting its actions o the Retirement
Plan Committee, Asset allocation decisions take into account expected market relurn assumptions of various asset classes
as well as expected pension benefit payment streams, When analyzing anticipated benefit payments, management considers
both the absolute amount of the payments as well as the timing of such payments. In 2016, 2015 and 2014, our expected
ong-term rate of retum on plan assels was 7.50%, 7.78%, and 7.75%, respectively, For 2017, we will assume = rate of
return of 7.50%. Cur pension plan assets are valued at fair valug as of the measurement date. The measurement date used
fo determine pension and other postretirement benefit measures far the pension plan and the postretirement benefit ptan is
December 31.
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Pension Benefits

The following tables sel forth the pension plan's projected benefit obligafions, fair values of plan assets and the pension
benetfit liahility recognized on our consolidated balance sheets az of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the components of
total pension benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014:

{§ in millions)

hange in projech kgation (PBO
PBQ at beginning of year
Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarisl (gain)loss

Benefits paid

Connecticut Acquisition transfer
CTF Acquisition PBO

Speciat termination benefits
PBO at end of year

Changa in sset

Fair vaiue of plan assets at beginning of year

Fair value of plan assets for the CTF operations as of acquisition date

Fair value of plan assets for the Conneclicut Operations a5 of acquisition date
Actual return on plan assets

Emgloyer contributions

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status
Amaunts recaqnized in the consolidated balance sheat
Pension and other postrelrement benefits - current

Pension and ofher postrefirement benefits - noncurrent
Accumulatad other comprahensive loss

2018 2015

$ 2142 S 2,210
88 55

122 88

137 (88)

(155) (128)

- 5
1,108 -
23 -

5 3465 5 2,142
$ 1572 % 1,673
1,120 -

- 5

201 {40)

28 B2

(155) (128)

% 2766 3§ 1,572
$ (699) $ (570)
$ - (9)
$ (699} §$ (561)
3 847 & 584

In connection with the completion of the CTF Acquisition, certain employees were transferred to the Frontier
Communications Pension Plan (the Plan) effective April 1, 2016. Assets of $1,108 milfion related to the CTF Acquisition
were transferred from Verizon and the Verizon pension plan trusts during 2018,

(& in illions)

Co nents of total pension benefit cost
Service cost

Irterest cost on projected bensfit obligation
Expectad return on plan assets
Amuortization of unrecognized joss

Net periodic pension benefit cost
Special termination benefifs

Total pension benefit cost

2015 2014

88 55 42
122 88 80
(168} (129) {89)
40 29 20
82 23 43
23 - .
105 43 43

The expected amorlization of unrecognized loss in 2017 is $35 million,
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We capitalized $25 milfion, $20 miilion and $15 milfion of pension and OPEB expense into the cost of our capital expenditures
during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, as the costs relate to our engineesring and plant
construction activities

The plan's weighted average asset allocations at December 31, 2018 and 2015 by asset category are as follows:

2016 2015
Assel categqory;
Equity securities 50 % 47 %
Debt securitias ki 46 %
Alternative investments 11 % 5%
Cash and other 1% 1%
Total 100 % 100 %

The plar’s expected benefit payments over the next 10 years are as foliows

{8 in mittions) Amount

2017 $ 375
2018 308
2019 283
2020 284
2021 271
2022-2026 1,224
Total § 2752

We made tofal contributions to our pension plan of $28 million during 2018 consisting of cash payments of $13 milfion and the
contribution of real property with a fair value of $15 miflion, as described below.

See Note 7 for further discussion of a Frontier contribution of real estate property in 2016 with an aggregate fair vaiue of $15
mitlion for the purpose of funding a portion of its contribution obligations to the Plan.

We made total cash contributions to our pension plan during 2015 and 2014 of $62 million and $83 million, respectively.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the plan was $3,363 miflion and $2,048 million at December 31, 2015 and 2015,
respectively.
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Assumptions used in the computation of annual pension costs and valuation of the year-end obligations were as follows:

2016 2013 2014
Discount rate - used al year end fo value obligation 4.10 % 4,50 % 4.10 %
Discount rate - used to compute annual cost 4.50% 4.410% 4.90 %
Expected lang-latm rate of refurn on plan assets 7.50% T75 % T35 %
Rate of increase in compensation fevels 250 % 2.50 % 2.50%
ii enefits Of an Pensions—" g

The following tables set forth the OPER plans’ benefit obligations, fair values of plan assets and the postretirement benafit
liahility recognized on our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2015 and the components of total
postretirement benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,

{$ in mifiions) 2018 2015
Change in benefit ohligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 626 % 727
CTF Acquisttion PBO 276 -
Service cost 18 18
tnterest cost 37 a0
Flan participants' contributions 5 5
Actuarial {gain¥loss (18 {1135)
Benefits paid (23) (28)
Connecticut Acguisition fransfer - _ 5
Plan change - {20
Special termination benefits 3 -
Benefit obligation at end of year 8 925 & 626
Change in pfan assels
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ] - 5 -
Plan participants’ contributions 5 5
Employar contribution 18 20
Benefits paid {23) {25}
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ - § -
Funded status ] {925} % {626)
AIunds ized in the consglidated batance sheetl
Pension and other postretirement benefits - current 3 {23 § (24}
Pension and other postretirement benefils - noncument & {9027 % (682)
Accumilated other comprehensive (gain) loss 3 {29 § (20}
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% in mifligns) 2018 2015 2014
Components of total posirgtirement benefit cost

Service cost % 18 % 19 % 11
Interest cost on projected benefit obfigation 37 30 22
Arnortization of prier service cost fcredit) (%) {5} {4}
Armortization of unrecognized loss 1 8 3
Net periadic postretirernant benefit cost 48 52 32
Special termination benefits 3 - -
Total postretirement benefit cost 5 51 § 52 § 32

The expected amortization of prior service credit in 2017 is $9 million and the expected amortization of unrecognized loss in
2017 is §0.

Assumptions used in the computation of annual OPEB costs and valuation of the year-end OPEB obiigations were as
foltows-

2018 2015 2014
Discount rate - used at year end to value obligation 4.10%5 - 4.30% 4. 50% - 4.70% 4.10% - 4.20%.
Discount rate - used to compute annual cost 4.50% - 4.70% 4.10% - 4.20% 4. 50% - 5.20%

The OPER plan's expected benefit payments over the next 10 years are as follows;

£ in milfions) Gross Benefit Medicare Part D Subsidy Tolal

2017 $ 24 3 - % 24
2018 30 - 30
2018 38 - 38
2020 44 - 44
2021 49 - 43
2022-2028 208 1 289
Total $ 483§ 1 % 484

Far purposes of measuring year-end benefit obligations, we used, depending on medical plan coverage for different retiree
groups, a 7.00% annual rate of increase in the per-capita cost of covered medical benefits, gradually decreasing io 5.00% in
the year 2024 and remaining at that level thereafter. The effect of a 1% increase in the assumed medical cost trend rates for
each fulure year on the aggregate of the service and interest cost compenents of the total postretirement benefit cost would
ke §1 million and the effect on the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for health benefits would be $20 millicn,
The effect of a 1% decrease in the assumed medical cost trend rates for each future year on the aggregate of the service
and inferest cost compongnts of the total postretirement benefit cost would be ${1) million and the effect on ihe accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation for health benefits would be ${19) milion
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The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive {gain) loss that have nol yet been recognized as components of net
periodic benefit cost at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as foliows:

Pension Plan OPEB
(3 in mitlions} 2016 2015 2016 2015
MNet actuarial loss 3 B47 3 584 B 108 20
Prior service costiicredit) - - {30y (40}
Total 3 547 8§ 584 § (29) 3 {20)

The amounis recognized as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31,
2018 and 2015 are as follows:

Pension Plan OPEB

{4 in milions} 2018 2015 2016 2015
Accumulated other camprehensive (gain) loss at

beginning of year $ 5B4  § 532 §$ {20} $ 119
Net actuarial gain {Joss) recognized during year {40 (28 {1} {8)
Prior service (cost) credit recognized during year - - 9 S
Net actuarial loss {gain} occurring during year 103 &1 {17} (136}
Net amount recognized in comprehensive income

{luss) for the year 63 52 {9} {138}
Accumulated other comprehensive {(gain) loss at

end of year $ 647 584 & {29 3§ {20}

401(k) Savings Plans

We sponsor employee retirement savings plans under section 401{k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plans cover
substantially all full-time employees, Under cerlain plans, we provide matching contributions. Employer contributions were
$48 miliion, $28 millian and $21 million for 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

{18)Fair Value of Financial Instruments: .
Fair value is defined under GAAF as the exit price associated with the sale of an asset or transfer of a liability in an orderly
transaclion between market paricipants at the measurement date, Valuation techniques used to measure fair value under
GAAF must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unchservable inputs. In addition, GAAFP
establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value.

The three input levels in the hierarchy of fair value measuremenis are defined by the FASB generally as follows:
Input Level  Description of Input

Level 1 Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices in aclive markets that are either directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which litlle or no markef data exists
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The following {ables represent Frontier's pension plan assefs measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31,
2016 and 2015,

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2015

(2 in miflions} Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and Cash Equivalents -3 42 % 42 3 - % -
U.8. Govemment Obligations 29 - 29 -
Corporate and Other Obligations 400 - 400 -
Commen Stock 487 487 - -
CommoniColiective Trusts 1,104 - 1,104 -
Interest in Registered investment Companies 334 334 - -
Intarest in Limited Partherships and

Limited Liability Companies 118 - - 118
Total investmeants at fair value & 2514 3§ B3 & 1,533 § 118
Receviable for plan assets of the CTF Operations 258
Interest and Dividend Receivable 8
Duie from Broker for Securities Sold 27
Receivable Associated with Insurance Contract 7
Due to Broker for Securities Purchased {d8)
Totat Pran Assets. at Fair Value 5 2,768
{3 in mflions) Fair Value Measuremants at December 31, 2045

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Cash and Cash Eguivalents 3 23 5 23 5 - 5 -
U.5. Government Cbligations 32 - az -
Corporate and Gther Obligations 315 - 318 -
Common Stack 178 178 - -
CommoniCaollective Trusts 894 - B94 -
Interest in Registered Investient Companies 49 49 - “
Interest in Limited Parinerships and

Limited Lizsbility Companies &2 - - 92
‘Total invesiments at fair value 5 1583 % 250 8 1241 % 92
Interest and Dividend Receivable 4
Due from Braker for Securities Soid Al
Receivable Associated with Insurance Contract 7
Bue to Broker for Securities Purchased (43}
Total #lan Assets, at Fair Value [ 1,572
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There have been nao reclassifications of investments between Levels 1, 2 or 3 assets during the years ended December 31,
- 2016 or 2015.

The tables below set forlh a summary of changes in the fair value of the Plan's Level 3 assets for the years ended December
31, 2016 and 2015:

Interest in Limited Partnerships and Limited Liability

Companies

{%.in millions) 2018 2015

Balance, beginring of year k3 92 $ 103
Realized gains 7 B

Unrealized insses 13 (11
Purchases 15 -
Salas and distributions {9y {8)
Balance, end of year H 118 8 82
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The following table provides further infarmation regarding the redemptlion of the Plan’s Level 3 investments as of Decembér

31, 2016:;
Redernption  Liquidation
(3 in milfions} Fair Value Redemption Frequency Notlice Period Pariod
Interest in Limited Partnerships and Limited
Lfabitity Companies
™ Through liquidation of
MG IFHF SWP LP Cayman 3 1 underlying investments Nong 4 years
. Through liguidation of
(a
M5 IFHF SVP LP Alpha 1 underlying investments Nong 4 years
Through liguidation of
[}
RII World Timberfund, LLC * 8 underlying mvestmants None 10 years
. Thraugh liguidation of
=
426 E Casino Road, LLC 15 underlying investments None HA
. Through liquidation of
1c)
100 Comm Drive, LLC 8 underlying investments None NA
. . Through liguidation of
&4
1G0 CTE Drive, LLC 13 underlying Investments Nene NA
e Through Fquidation of
6430 Oakbraok Parkway, LLC 25 underlying investments None NA
. Through liquidation of
8001 West Jefferson, LLC 25 underiying invastments Mone NA
w Through liquidation of
1500 MacCorkie Ave SE, LLC 14 undarlying invesiments Nore NA
. 0 Through liquidation of
400 S. Pike Road West, LLC i underlying investments None NA
@ Through liquidation of
801 N US 131, LLC 1 underlying investments None MA
- Through kiquidation of
5260 E. Stackton Elvd., LLC ¢ [ underlying investments None NA
Total Interest in Limited Partnerships and Limited
Liability Companies $ 118

{a)The partnershjps’ investment objective is to seek capital appreciation principatly through investing in investment funds managed by third
parly investment managers who employ a variety of alternative investmenit sirategies. These instruments are subject to cerain
withdrawal restrictions, The Plan is in the process of liguidating its interast in the partnerships and distributions are expected to he made
aver the nexdt four yaars.

{bYThe. fund’s objective is fo realize substantial long-term capial appreciation by investing in timberland properiies primatily in South
America and Australia. This investment is subject to certain withdrawal restrictions.

tciThe entity invests in commercial real estate properties that are leased to Frontier. The teases are triple net, whereby Fronfier is
raespansible for afl expanses, including but not limited to, insurance, repairs and mainienance and payment of property taxes,

hitps:/iwww.sec.goviArchives/edgar/data/20520/000002052017000003/1r-20161231x 10k him

1044107



712012017

2016 Form 10K

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The foliowing table represents the Plan's Level 3 financial instruments- for its interest in cerfain limited partnerships and
limited liability companies, which all use the direct capitalization valuation fechnique to measure the fair value of those
financial instruments as of December 31, 2016, and the significant unobservable inputs and ranges of values for those inputs:

Instrument Property Fair Value Capitalization Rate
426 E. Casino Road, LLC $ 15 7.00%
100 Gormm Drive, LLG 5 ] 7.75%
100 CTE Drive, LLC 5 13 9.00%
6430 Oakbrook Parkway, LLC s 25 7.75%
Interest in
Limited Partnerships 8001 West Jefferson, LLC % 26 2.50%
and Limited Companies
1500 MacCorkle Ave SE, LLC % 14 8.25%
400 S. Pike Road West, LLC 3 1 8.50%
601 N US 131, LLE 3 1 8.50%
9260 E. Stockion Blvd., LLC 3 [ 7.50%

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and estimated fair values for long-term debt at December 31, 2016 and
2015. Forthe other financial instruments including cash, accounts receivable, restricted cash, [ong-term debt due within one
year, accounts payable and other current labilities, the camying amounts approximate fair value dug to the relatively short
maturities of those instruments.

2018 2018
Carrying Carrying
[E in miflions) Amounl Falr Value Amount Fair Value
Long-term debt & 17,560 % 17,538 % 15,508 % 14,767

The fair value of our long-term debt is estimated based upon quoted market prices at the reporting date for thase financial
instruments.
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{19) Commitments and Contingencies:

Although from time to time we make short-lerm purchasing commitments to vendors with respect to capital expenditures, we
generally do not enter into firm, written contracts for such activifies,

In June 2015, Frontier accepted the Federal Communications Commission’s (FCC) offer of support to price cap carriers
under the Connect America Fund (CAF) Phase Il program, which is intended te provide long-term support for breadband in
high cost unserved or underserved areas. This program provides 3332 miliicn in annual support, including $4% million in
annuat support refated to the properlies acquired in the CTF Acquisition, through 2020 to make available 10 Mbps
downstream/1 Mbps upstream broadband service to approximately 774,000 househaolds zcross certain of the 29 states where
we now operate. To the extent we do not enable the required number of househelds with 10 Mbps downstream/1 Mbps
upsiream broadband service by the end of the CAF Phase Il term, we will be required to return a portion of the funds
previously received.

On April 28, 20186, the FCC completed its inquiry into whether certain terms and conditions contained in specifically identified
special access fariff pricing plans offered by four camiers, including Fronfier, are just and reasonable. The FCC held that
certain of the tariff terms for business data TDM services, specifically DS1s and 383s, were unreasonable. Spedifically, the
FCC struck down ‘excessive” early fermination fees and “all-or-nothing™ provisions, Froniler has revised its tariffs in
accordance with the FCC's Order, The FCC's decision has no retroactive effect, and we anticipate no material impact to
Frontier from it.

The FCC deferred the issue of how its ruling will affect customers currently purchasing services from these tanifis to a Notice
of Proposed Rulemaking. It is seeking comment on proposed changes to the way the FCC reguiates fraditional special
access senvices and on a proposal to adopt pricing rules for Ethemmet services in markets that are feund {0 be
“noncompetitive.” The potential impact to Frontier of this proceeding is unknown, though any pending initative could
adversely affect our operations or financial results,

We are parly te various legal proceedings {including individual, class and putative class actions) arising in the normal course
of our business covering a wide range of matters and types of claims including, but not limited to, general contracis, billing
disputes, rights of access, taxes and surcharges, consumer protection, trademark and patent infringament, employment,
regulatory, tort, claims of competitors and disputes with other camiers.

In Qctober 2013, the Califarnia Attomey General's Office notified certain Verizon companies, including one of the subsidiaries
that we acguired in the CTF Acquisition, of potential viclations of Cafifornia state hazardous wasie stalutes primarily arising
from the disposal of electronic components, batieries and aerosol cans at certain California facilities. We are cooperating with
this investigation, While penalties refaling to the alleged violalions could exceed $100,000, we do not expect that any
penalties ultimately incurred will be material.

We accrue an expeanse for pending litigation when we determine that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of
the loss can be reasonably estimated. Legal defense costs afe expensed as incurred. None of our existing aceruals for
pending matters, after considering insurance coverage, is material. We monitor our pending litigation for the purpose of
adjusling our accruals and revising our disclosures accordingly, when required, i#igation is, however, subject to uncertainty,
and the cutcome of any paricular matter is not predictable. We will vigorously defend our inferests in pending litigation, and
as of this date, we believe that the ultimate resoclufion of all such matters, after consitdering insurance coverage or other
indemnities to which we are entitled, will not have a malerial adverse effact on our consclidated financial position, resulls of
operations, or cur cash flows.

We conduct certain of our operations in leased premises and also lease certain equipment and other assets pursuant to
operating leases. The lease amangements have terms ranging from 1 to 89 years and several contain rent escalation clauses
providing for increases in monthly rent at specific infervals. When rent escalation dauses exist, we record annual rental
axpanse based on the total expected rent payments on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Cerain leases also have
renewal options. Renewal oplions that are reasonably assured are included in determining the lease term.
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Fufure minimum rental commitments for all long-term noncancelable operating leases as of December 21, 2016 are as

foliows-

(8 in mitfions) Operating Leases

Year ending December 31;

2017 $ g1
2018 18
2018 18
2020 22
2021 21
Thersafter Fi-]
Totat minimum lease payments $ 247

Total rental expense included in our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and
2014 was $137 mitlion, $118 million and $100 million, respectively.

We are party to confracts with several unrefated long distance carriers. The contracts provide fees based on traffic they camy
for us subject to minimum monthly fees.

At December 31, 2016, the estimated future paymenis for obligations under our noncancelable long distance contracts and
service agreements are as follows:

{3 in miliions] Amourt

Year ending Decernber 31;

2017 $ 42
2018 44
2019 7
2020 8
2021 2
Thereafter 10
Totat 3 108

At December 31, 2016, we have oultstanding performance letters of credit as foliows-

f& in miflians] Amount

CNA Financial Corporation {SNA) $ 48

AlG insurance 75

All ather 1
“Total $ 125

CNA serves as our agent with respect to general liability claims (auto, workers compensation and other insured perils of
Frontier). As our agent, they administer al claims and make payments for daims on our behalf. We reimburse CNA for such
services upon presentation of their inveice. To serve as our agent and make payments on our behalf, CNA requires that we
establish a letter of credit in their favor. CNA could potentially draw against this lettar of credit if we failed to reimburse CNA in
accordance with the terms of cur agreement. The amount of the letter of credit is reviewed annually and adjusted based on
claims history.

None of the above letters of credit restrict our cash balances.
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12{b} of the Exchange Act:
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Securifies registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the Registrants are well-known seasoned issuers, as defined in Rule 403 of the Securities

Act. Yes [l No

Indicate by check mark if the Registrants are not required to file pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrants (1} have filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period that the Registrants were required to file such reports), and (2) have
been subject to such filing requirementds for the past 90 days. Yes 00 No K

Note: As voluntary filers, not subject to the filing requirements, the Registrants have filed all reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act during the preceding 12 months.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrants have submilted electronically and posted on their corporate Web site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation 8-T during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the Registrants were required to submit and post such files). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and wili not
be contained, to the best of the Registrants” knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part
HI of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. Not Applicable.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrants are large accelerated filers, accelerated filers, non-accelerated filers or smalier
reporting companies. See the definitions of “targe accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company™ in Rule 12b-2

of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filers O Accelerated filers B
Non-accelerated filers & Smaller reporting companies [

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrants are shell companies (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes O No H
State the aggregate market value of the common equity held by non-affiliates of the Registrants: Not Applicable
Indicate the number of shares cutstanding of the Registrants” common stock: Not Applicable

* Medtacom Broadband Corporation meets the conditions set forth in Genera! Instruction I (1) {a) and (b} of Form 10-K and is
therefore filing this form with the reduced disclosure format.
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This Annval Report on Form 10-K is for the year ended December 31, 2016. Any stalement contained in a prior periodic report shall
be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Annual Report to the extent that a statement herein modifies or supersedes
such statement. The Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”} allows us to “incorporate by reference” information that we file
with them, which means that we can disclose important information by referring you directly to those documents. Information
incorperated by reference is considered to be part of this Annual Report.

Mediacom Broadband LLC is a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mediacom Communications
Corporation, a Delaware corporation. Mediacom Broadband Corporation is a Delaware corporation and a whoily-owned subsidiary of
Mediacom Broadband LLC. Mediacom Broadband Corporation was formed for the sole purpose of acting as co-issuer with Mediacom
Broadband LLC of debt securities and does not conduct operations of its own.

References in this Annual Report to “we,” “us,” or “our” are to Mediacom Broadband L.L.C and its direct and indirect subsidiaries
{(including Mediacom Broadband Corporation), nnless the context specifies or requires otherwise. References in this Annual Report to
*Mediacom™ or “MCC” are to Mediacom Communications Corporation,
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
You should carefully review the information contained in this Annval Report and in other reports or documents that we file from time
to time with the SEC.

In this Annual Report, we state our beliefs of future events and of our future financial performance. In some cases, you can identify
those so-called “forward-locking statements™ by words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “continue,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,”
“intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts.” “should” or “will,” or the negative of those and other comparable words. These
forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future perforihance or results, and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could
cause actwal results to differ materially from historical resulis or those we anticipate as a result of various faciors, many of which are
beyond our control. Factors that may cause such differences to occur include, but are not limited to:

» increased levels of competition from direct broadcast sateliite. operators, local phone companies, other cable providers,
wireless communications companies, providers of over-the-top video, and ather services that compete for our customers;

+ lower demand for our services from existing and potential residential and business customers due to increased competition,
weakened economic conditions or other factors;

* our ability to contain the continued increases in video programming costs, or to raise video rates to offset, in whole or in
part, the effects of such costs, including retransmission consent fees;

+ an acceferation in bandwidth consumption by high-speed data customers at rates greater than current expectations, which
could require unpianned network investments and meaningfully increase our capital expenditures;

= our ability to continue to grow our business services customer base, and associated revenues, which has continued to make
increasing contributions to our results of operations;

+ our ability to realize the anticipated benefits from the major initiatives under MCC’s plan for approximately $1 billion in
total capital expenditures during the three years ending December 31, 2018, as further described in this Annual Report;

* our ability to successfully adopt new technologies and introduce new products and services, or enhance existing oncs, to
meet customer demands and preferences;

= our ability to secure hardware, software and operational support for the delivery of products and services 1o consumers;

« disruptions or feilures of our network and information systems, including those caused by “cyber-attacks,” natural disasters
or other events outside our conirol;

= our reliance on certain inteliectual property rights, and not infringing on the intellectual property rights of others;
» pur ahility to generate sufficient cash flows from operations to meet our debt service obligations;

+ our ability to refinance future debt maturities on favorable terms, if at all;

+ changes in assumptions underlying our critical accounting policies;

+ changes in legistative and regulasory matters that may cause us to incur additional costs and expenses; and

= other risks and uncertainties discussed in this Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2016 and other reports or
documents that we file from time to time with the SEC.

Statements included in this Annual Report are based upon information known to us as of the date that this Annual Report is filed with
the SEC, and we assume no obligation to update or alter our forward-fooking statements made in this Annwval Report, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as required by applicable federal securities faws.
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PART I

ITEM 1, BUSINESS
Mediacom Communications Cerporation

We are a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mediacom Communications Corporation {(“Mediacom™ or “MCC”). MCC is the fifth largest
cable operator in the U.S., serving almost 1.4 million residential and business customer relationships in smaller markets primarily in
the Midwest and Southeast. MCC effers a wide array of information, communications and entertainment services to households and
businesses, including videc, high-speed data (*HSD™), phone, and home security and antomation. Through Mediacom Business, MCC
provides scalable breadband communications solutions to commercial and public sector customers of all sizes, and sells advertising
and production services under the OnMedia brand,

MCC’s cable systems are owned and operated through cur ¢perating subsidiaries and those of Mediacom LLC, another wholly-owned
subsidiary of MCC. As of December 31, 2016, MCC’s cable systems passed an estimated 2.8 miltion homes and served approximately
828,000 video customers, 1,156,000 HSD customers and 479,000 phone customers, aggregating 2.5 million primary service units
(“PSUs").

MCC is a privately-owned company. An entity wholly-owned by Rocco B, Commisso and related parties is the sole sharehoider of
MCC, a C corporation. Mr. Commisso is MCC’s founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. MCC manages us pursuant o
management agreements with our operating subsidiaries. See Note 9 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Mediacom Broadband LLC

We are a holding company and do not have any operations or hold any assets other than our investments in our operating subsidiaries,
As of December 31, 2016, our cable systems passed an estimated 1.5 million homes and served approximately 463,000 video
customers, 643,000 HSD cusiomers and 264,000 phone customers, aggregating 1.4 million PSUs. As of the same date, our cable
systems served 754,000 residential and business customer relationships.

Our phone number is {(845) 443-2600 and our principal executive offices are located at | Mediacom Way, Mediacom Park, New York,
10918. Qur Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to
such reports filed with or furnished to the SEC under sections 13(a) or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are made available
free of charge on MCC’s website (www.inediacomec.com} as soon as reasonably practicable afier such reports are electronicalty filed
with or furnished to the SEC. The information posted on MCC’s website is not incorporated into our SEC filings.

Recent Pevelopments
MCC s Capital Plan

In 2016, MCC announced a plan for approximately $1 billion of total capital expenditures to be made by us and Mediacom LLC during
the three years ending December 2018 (“MCC’s Capital Plan™). Among the planned initiatives under MCC’s Capital Plan include;

- “Project Gigabit,” a wide-scate deployment of nexi-generation DOCSIS 3.1 technology that allows the provisioning of 1
gigabit per second (“Gbps™) HSD service to substantially all of MCC’s homes passed;

- “Prgject Open Road,” which will connect over 70,000 new commereial locations that contain multiple potential customers in
an effort to continue to grow business services revenues at an accelerated rate;

- Residential line extensions resulting in at least 50,000 additional homes passed; and

- Development of community Wi-Fi access points throughout high-traffic commercial and public areas.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, MCC made an aggregate $335.2 million of capital expenditures, of which $179.9 million
was invested by us. We expect similar levels of capital invesiments by us and MCC over each of the next two years, with our portion of
the initiatives outlined above approximating a level that is commensurate with our capital expenditures as a percentage of MCC's total
capital expenditures. We have already made meaningful progress under MCC’s Capital Plan, including the re¢ent anncuncement that
MCC has become the first major U.S. cable company to have fully installed the necessary equipment to transition to the DOCSIS 3.1
platform. We believe these initiatives will allow us to continue to improve our competitive position for both residential and business
setvices customers in our markets, with additional future revenue and cash flow growth driven by incremental gains in market share
than we would have experienced otherwise.
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Deseription of Qur Business

The fellowing table provides an overview of selected operating data for our cable systems as of December 31:

2016 2015 2014 23 2012
Estimated homes passed (1) 1,504,000 1,496,000 1,499,000 1,495,000 1,493,000
Video
Video customers {2) 463,000 480,000 500,000 528,000 358,000
Video penetration (3) 30.8% 32.1% 334% 35.3% 37.4%
High Speed Data
HSD customers (4} 643,000 605,000 564,000 534,000 505,000
HSD penetration (5} 42.8% 40,4% 37.6% 35.7% 33.8%
Phone
Phone customers (6} 264,000 239,000 218,000 207,000 190,000
Phone penetration (7 17.6% 16.0% 14.5% 13.8% 12.7%
Primary Service Units (PSUs)
PSUs (8) 1,370,000 1,324,000 1,282,000 1,269,000 1,253,000
PSUJ penetration {9) o1.t% 88.5% 85.5% 84.9% 83.9%
Customer Relationships
Customer relationships (10} 754,000 732,000 710,000 719,000 708,000

(1) Estimated homes passed represent the number of single residence homes, apartments and condominium units that we can connect
to our distribution system without further extending the transmission lines, based on best available information.

(2) Represents customers receiving video service. Business services video customers that are billed on a bulk basis are converted into
equivalent video customers by dividing their associated revenues by the applicable full-price resideatial video rate, which is
generally consistent with the methodology used in determining paymenis made to programmers. Video customers. include
connections 1o schools, libraries. local government offices and employee houscholds that may not be charged for basic or
expanded video service, but may be charged for higher tier video, HSD, phone or other services, Our methodofogy of caleulating
the number of video customers may not be identical to those nsed by other companies offering similar services.

(3) Represents video customers as a percentage of estimated homes passed.

(4} Represents customers receiving HSD service. Smali- to medium-sized business HSD customers are converted to equivalent HSD
customers by dividing their associated revenues by the applicable full-price residential HSD rate, Medium- to large-sized business
customers who take our enterprise network services are not counted as HSD customers. Our methodology of calculating HSD
customers may not be identical to those used by other companies offering similar services.

(5) Represents HSD customers as.a percentage of estimated hemes passed.

(&) Represents customers receiving phone service. Smail- to medium-sized business phone customers are converted to equivalent
phene custemers by dividing their assaciated revenues by the applicable full-price residential phone rate. Customers who take our
IP-enabled voice trunk service are not counted as phone customers. Qur methodology of calculating phone customers may not be
identical to those used by other companies offering similar services.

(7} Represents phone customers as a percentage of estimated homes passed,

(8) Represents the sum of video, HSD and phone customers.

(9) Represents PSUs as a percentage of our estimated homes passed.

(10) Represents the total number of residential and business customers that receive at least one service, without regard 10 the amount
of or which service(s) customers purchase.

Services

We offer video, HSD and phone services individually and in bundied packages to residential and small- to medium-sized business
(“SMB™) customers over ovr hybrid [iber and coaxial cable (“HFC”} network, and provide fiber-based network and transport services
to medium- and large-sized businesses, governmenis and educational institutions. We alse sell advertising to local, regional and
national advertisers on television and digital platforms, and offer home security and aitomation services o residential customers,
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Our services are typicaily offered on a subscription basis, with installation fees, monthly rates and related charges associated with the
services, equipment and features customers choose. We generally offer discounted packages for new customers, and for these who take
multiple services. Customers are typically billed in advance on a monthly basis, and additional charges may apply for installation and

other one-time items. Residential customers are generally not subject to minimum-term contracts, while substantially all of our
business services customers are under contracts that typicaliy have 3 to 7 vear terms.

QOur Service Areas

Approximately 75% of our homes passed are in the top 110 television markets in the United States, or designated market areas
{“DMAS™), substantialfy all of which rank between the 65t and 110th largest.

Our largest markets are;
*  Des Moines and Cedar Rapids, lowa;
*  The Quad Cities area in [Nlinois and lowa, comprising Bettendorf, Davenport, East Moline, Moline and Rock Island;
»  Springfield, Jefferson City and Columbia, Missouri; and
*»  Columbus, Albany and Valdosta, Georgia.

Residential Services

We market our residential services individually and in bundled packages, with discousits generally available for the subscription to
bundled packages or other combinations of services. As of December 31, 2016, approximately 37% of our residential customers took
twa or more of our services, including about 25% that took ail three.

Video

We offer a wide variety of video services, with multiple packages, tiers and equipment options to appeal to a variety of customer
preferences and demographics. Residential video customers are charged a monthly fee that varies depending on the level of video
service and equipment taken, with additional revenues generated from one-time installation expenses, video~-on-demand {“VOD") fees
and other ancillary purchases.

Our residential video customers receive, at a minimum, a limited basic tier that includes local broadcast stations and public,
government and leased access channels, with additienal packages and tiers available that include national cable networks and regional
sporis networks, foreign-language and international programming, digital music channels and other specialty programming. Video
customers may also subscribe to premium network programming from HBO, Showtime, Starz and Cinemax that provides commercial-
free original programming, movies, live and taped sporting events and concerts, and other special events. We have recently introduced
*skinny bundles” as a value proposition to video customers that do not require certain national and regional sports networks, but seek a
lower cost option that offers most of the non-sports content in our most popular video packages. Most of our video programming,
including many titles in our VOD library, is available in a high-definition (“HD™) formmat that offers a higher resolution picture,
improved audio-quality and a wide-screen format,

Our VOD service provides videc customers access to over 27,000 titles, including a wide selection of movies, naticnal broddeast and
cable network shows, music videos, and locally produced events. Most of our VOD content carries no additional charge when
customers take a content peckage that includes the affiliated content. Special event programs, including live concerts, sporting events,
and first-run movies are also available on a pay-per-view basis. Qur digital video recorder {*“DVR™) service aliows customers to record
and store content to view at their convenience, aleng with the ability to pause and rewind live programming.

Our video service generally requires the use of a digital set-top box (“set-top™), which typically provides an interactive, on-screen
program guide and access 1o our VOD library. A rapidly increasing number of our video customers take our next-generation Internet
Protocol (“IP7) set-top that aoffers a cloud-based, graphically-rich TiVo guide with integrated access and search functionality to certain
Internet-based, or “over-the-top,” (“OTT™) video services such as Netflix, Hulu, and YouTube, along with a multi-room DVR service
and the ability to download certain conteni to persenal devices. In 2017, we plan to infroduce a new, lower-cost, [P set-top that offers
the TiVo guide and OTT video services, but without the required equipment for DVR service,
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We also enable video customers to watch certain programming on personal devices connected to the Internet connection, whether in or
outside their home, which we refer 1o as “TV Everywhere.” Our video customers currently have access to enline content for up to 76
channels, and we plan to further expand our “TV Everywhere” line-up in 2017. Our video customers that take a set-top with the TiVo
guide may also remotely view programming listings and schedule and manage DVR recordings remotely through our mobiie apps and
online portal.

HSD

We offer high-speed Internet access to suit the reguirements of our HSD customers, with minimum downstream speeds of 60 megabits
per second {“Mbps™), and packages available that provide downstream speeds up to 200 Mbps. Through Project Gigabit, we have
installed the necessary equipment to transition substantially all cur homes passed to the DOCSIS 3.1 platform, which will allow us to
introduce packages offering speeds of up to 1 Gbps across most of our markets in 2017. We will also deploy community Wi-Fi access
points throughont high-traffic commercial and public areas in our markets, which we believe will add additional value for our HSD
customers.

Qur residential HSD customers are charged a monthly fee that varies depending on the speeds and usage allowance associated with
their level of HSD service. Our residential HSD service requires a modem, which most of our customers lease from us for a monthly
fee. We also offer wireless gateways that combine a modem with a wireless router and phone adapter for an additional monthly fee,
which ensures the performance of multiple personal devices used at the same time,

Phaone

Our residential phone custamers enjoy unlimiled nationwide calling and other popular features, including Caller ID. call waiting, call
forwarding, three-way calling and, for these who also take our video service, the ability to receive Caller ID information on the
custemer’s television. Residential phone customers are charged a monthly fee, with voicemail services, directory assistance and
international calling plans made available for an additional fee. Qur residential phone service requires equipment that is either included
in the wireless gateway taken by many customers that take both HSD and phone service, ot is typically leased by our customers for a
monthly fee.

Business Services

Mediacom Business provides SMB cusiomers videe, HSD and phene services similar to those offered to our residential customers,
along with a multi-line phone service, music services and other features. We alse furnish custom fiber solutions, with transmission
speeds up to 10 Gbps, for medium- and large-~sized businesses and institutions, with [P-enabled trunk-based voice services, and
point-to-peint, multi-point wide area, and local area network solutien. We also supgly high-capacity fiber transport and dedicated
Internet access to national and regionai carriers to support cell tower backhaul, Ethernet and regional transport. Cur initiation of
“Project Open Road” will extend our network to tens of thousands of new commercial locations that contain multiple husinesses, in an
‘effort to sustain or accelerate our rate of growth in business services revenues.

Advertising

We sell advertising and production services to local, regional and national customers under our OnMedia brand. As part of the
programming agreements with national cable networks, we generally receive an zllocation of scheduled advertising time, typicalty two
minutes per hour, and insert commercials during this allotied time. Our local sales team generally sells the placement of advertising
and, in certain markets, we have entered info agreements with other cable operators in the same DMA where we sell advertising an
behalf of these cther operators, or vice versa, facilitating customers’ ability to purchase local advertising in multiple markets. We also
sell digital ad placement and other media services as an extension of our advertising business.

Marketing and Sales

We employ a wide range of sales channels to reach current and potential customers, including outbound telemarketing, direct mail,
in-bound customer care centers, retail focations, door-to-door field technician sales, and an e-comimerce site, Customers are directed to
our inbound call centers or websiie through various forms of advertising, including television advertising on our own cable systems.
Mediacom Business has a dedicated sales force and outbound telemarketing, and we have several relationships with third-party agents
who sell our services. Xtream is our marketing brand for bundled packages that include video with DVR service and set-tops with the
TiVo guide, HSD with a wireless gateway, and phone service. We believe the simplified pricing and value proposition of our Xtream
bundles has positively influenced the market’s perception of our producis and services, and has driven higher levels of sales activity.
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Customer Care

We continue to make investments that improve the reliability and guality of our services to enhance our customers’ experience. Cur
field operations team focuses on providing a guality experience during installation and service calls, with the goal of resclving any
technical issues on the first attempt. We offer 30 minute arrival windows and evening and weekend availability for installation and
service calls to provide more convenient scheduling for our customers. Field activity is scheduled and routed seamlessly with remote
dispatching and workflow management and GPS systems that facilitate on-time arrival for customer appointments, Our technicians are
equipped with diagnostic and monitoring tools that determine the quality of service at the customer’s home in real-time.

Our customer care group has multipie contact centers with dedicated customer service, sales, and technical support representatives
available at all times, and our virtual contact center allows us to manage resources efficiently and effectively function as a single,
unified catl center. Our website and mobile applications allow customers to manage their billing account, utilize self-help tools and
schedule appointments. Customers whe are seeking to speak to an agent for further assistance may use the “call back™ feature where
our technical staff will call the customer when available, eliminating the need for excessive wait times. We maintain a strong presence
on many social networking websites and message boards, including Facebook and Twitter, atlowing us the ability to be more proactive
in customer service, along with providing customers another point of contact.

Technology

Our services are delivered through a fiber-rich, technologically-zdvanced, route-diverse network that consists of a national backbone;
large-scale, centralized platforms; regional networks and headends; neighborhood nodes; and last-mile connectivity to customer homes
or businesses. We utilize an IP ring architecture that minimizes service outages through its redundant design, and our network
operations center supports and continuously monitors our netwerk. We believe our network infrastructure provides several advantages
over most of our competitors, including sigaificantly more bandwidth capacity, greater reliability and higher quality of service.

Qur national backbone is connected to leading carriers, with a presence in several major carrier hotels, and allows us to introduce new
services across all our markets and realize greater economic efficiencies and scale. Our national backbone connects centralized
platforms that contro} video content delivery, HSD and phone services, provisioning, customer care and email, and provides access to
several aggregation and exchange points in our regional networks to ensure network redundancy and enhanced quality of service.

The last-mile connectivity is delivered through our HFC network, transposting content via laser-fed fiber-optic cable by regional
networks and headends to local nodes, and by coaxial cable from these nodes to our customers. We have installed back-up power
supplies that are intended to allow our services to continue to be avatlable in the event of a commercial power outage. For certain
business customers that have high-capacity requirements, we extend fiber-optic cable {from the node site directly to the customer’s
premise.

HSD customers have consumed rapidly increasing amounts of bandwidth over the last several years, largely driven by increased usage
of OTT video, and we expect this trend to continue. To provide additional network capacity to facilitate meaningful bandwidth
consumpticn increases, we have deployed multiple tools 1o recapture bandwidth and optimize our network to allow for faster HSD
speeds and greater levels of capacity. In substantially all of our markets, we have converted video service to an “all-digital” delivery
platform, freeing up spectrum that was previously used to deliver analog video signals that require more capacity. We have installed the
necessary equipment to transition to the DOCSIS 3.1 platform in subs